
            

 

Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel 

 
THURSDAY, 19TH SEPTEMBER, 2013 at 18:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN, LONDON N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Adamou (Chair), Bull, Erskine, Stennett, Winskill, Dowd and 

Moffat 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

2. URGENT ITEMS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.  Late 

items will be dealt with under the agenda item where they appear.  New items will be 
dealt with at the end of the agenda. 
 
 

3. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, paragraph 

29 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 



 

2 

 A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter who attends a meeting of 
the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 

(i) Must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 

(ii) May not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 

 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Members’ Register of Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are 
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

5. HEALTH ASSESSMENTS OF LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN  (PAGES 1 - 16)  
 
 To receive a presentation on health assessments of looked after children. 

 
Attending: Dr Kim Holt, Haringey Designated Doctor for Children in Care and Marian 
Parks Specialist Nurse, Whittington Health 
 
 

6. CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS    
 
 Cllr Vanier, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Services, will attend to answer 

questions on her portfolio area. 
 
 

7. BUDGET MONITORING  (PAGES 17 - 36)  
 
 To receive: 

• The Budget Monitoring report; 

• Progress in achieving savings from last MTFP; and  

• Progress of agreed recommendations from Budget Scrutiny in 2012. 

 
8. END OF YEAR PERFORMANCE MONITORING  (PAGES 37 - 78)  
 
 To review relevant areas on the year end performance monitoring report. 

 
9. REPONSE TO WINTERBOURNE VIEW  (PAGES 79 - 120)  

 
 
10. PRIMARY CARE STRATEGY UPDATE    
 
 To receive an update on the Primary Care Strategy (Michael Hepworth, Head of 

Primary Care Development, Haringey Clinical Commissioning Group). 
 



 

3 

11. SCOPING REPORT - MENTAL HEALTH AND ACCOMMODATION  (PAGES 121 - 
158)  

 
 To discuss and agree the scoping report for the Mental Health and accommodation 

panel project. 
 

12. SCOPING REPORT - MENTAL HEALTH AND PHYSICAL HEALTH  (PAGES 159 - 
166)  

 
 To discuss and agree the scoping report for the Mental health and physical health 

panel project. 
 

13. FEEDBACK FROM AREA CHAIRS    
 
 To receive any items from Area Chairs. 

 
14. FEEDBACK FROM JHOSC    
 
 To receive any feedback from the  last Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

meeting. 
 

15. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING  (PAGES 167 - 172)  
 
 To agree the minutes of the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel meeting of 29th July 

2013. 
 

16. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 
17. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 



 

4 

 Panel meetings: 

• 11th November 6.30pm 

• 12th December 6.30pm (Budget scrutiny) 

• 27th February 6.30pm 

 

Mental health project meetings 

17th October – 6.30-9.30pm – Evidence session 1 for both projects 

28th October – 6.30-9pm – Evidence session 2 – Mental Health & Physical Health 

15th November – 10-12.30 – Evidence session 2 – Mental health and Accommodation 

28th November – 7-9.30pm – Evidence session 3 – Mental Health & Physical Health 

6th December – 10-12.30 – Evidence session 3 – Mental health and Accommodation 

9th January 2014 – 6.30-9.30pm – Conclusions and recommendations for both 

projects 

 
 

 
David McNulty 
Head of Local Democracy  
and Member Services  
Level 5, River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Melanie Ponomarenko 
Senior Scrutiny Officer 
Level 7, River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel: 0208 489 2933 
Email: 
melanie.ponomarenko@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Wednesday, 11 September 2013 

 
 
 
 



Haringey Children in Care Health 

team

September2013

Dr Kim Holt Designated Dr 
Marian Parks Specialist Nurse

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 5

P
a
g
e
 1



Background

Health Statutory Responsibility to address health 
needs in CIC

• Children in care have additional unidentified, and /or 

unmet health or developmental issues with a high 

prevalence of emotional and behaviourial difficulties.prevalence of emotional and behaviourial difficulties.

• CIC health team are commissioned to provide the 

statutory Initial Health Assessment (IHA) by a 

Paediatrician and Review Health Assessments by 

Specialist Nurses

– Under 5 years  2 assessments per year

– 5 to 18 years  1 assessment per year

P
a
g
e
 2



Targets for CiC health team

• IHAs guidance is that these are completed 

within 20 working days following child coming 

into care.

• RHAs guidance is that they are seen within 20 • RHAs guidance is that they are seen within 20 

working days of the due date.

• Currently for Haringey 82.3% we are working 

towards 90% 

P
a
g
e
 3



IHAs performance children seen with in 4 weeks 

2012/2013 Q4 2011/2012 Q4

0-4 weeks: 61% 0-4 weeks: 47%

4-6 weeks: 7% 4-6 weeks: 17.6%7% 17.6%

6-8 weeks: 18% 6-8 weeks: 17.6%

8-10 weeks: 4% 8-10 weeks: 11.7%

10+ weeks: 7% 10+ weeks: 5.8%

P
a
g
e
 4



Adoption medicals:

Adoption medicals 2012 - 2013 

40

50

60

70

Prospect ive adopt ers seen 

0

10

20

30

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Quar t e r  

Prospect ive adopt ers seen 

Number seen 

P
a
g
e
 5



Review health assessments

2012-2013 April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

RHA Due by month 63 43 37 40 48 52 30 41 38 45 42 53

RHA Seen in month 38 27 27 42 44 46 27 47 26 51 41 37

DNA/Cancellations 11 6 9 6 0 4 12 6 2 11 8 9

Fully immunised 

for age 26 14 21 23 28 29 25 30 21 35 31 27

P
a
g
e
 6



Review health assessments

P
a
g
e
 7



Immunisation rate 2013

P
a
g
e
 8



Developments in 2012 - 2013

• Integrated nursing and paediatric teams-positive team working through shared base, and 
clinical meeting and shared reflection.

• Willingness to work flexibly and jointly, especially with regard to complex cases.

• Improved health assessment quality since the team have been responsible for all 
assessments

• IHA improved coverage – essentially virtually all the children are now seen.

• Immunisations rate improved now 71% -target is 100%

• Adoption – 90 children seen & 15 children placed for adoption

• Two away days –working processes & systems-developed operational policy

• Integrated data base for reporting- work in progress• Integrated data base for reporting- work in progress

• Developed business case for additional nurse and admin – accepted, and nursing post 
advertised.

• Multi-Agency Operational Group constituted

• Attachment & child development & behaviour level 3 module at City University for nurses

• Masters dissertation in Complex Care and CP- paediatrician

• Developed links with First Step

• Education & Training for adopters and social workers, nurses, and foster carers

• Rooms refurbishment at our base in Bounds Green.

P
a
g
e
 9



Current Challenges

Current Challenges
– Children placed out of borough 74%.

– Immunisation rate

– Meeting our targets for health assessments

– Adoption workload

– Complex cases, emerging neurodevelopmental problems particularly – Complex cases, emerging neurodevelopmental problems particularly 
in children secondary to drugs and alcohol exposure in the womb

– Genetic conditions- number of chromosomal disorders being 
identified

– Sexual health and teenage pregnancy

– Severe mental health issues

– Unaccompanied minors/asylum seekers

– Young people on remand

P
a

g
e
 1

0



Vision for the future

• Embed our operational policy and develop our links with 

social care.

• All children will be seen within the recommended time frame

• Improving immunisation rates- recognising 100% may be 

unachievable.unachievable.

• To be more pro active regards foster carers training

• To explore with social care other ways of supporting parents 

with drug or alcohol problems to reduce the number of 

affected children.

• To explore ways of engaging hard to reach young people.

P
a
g
e
 1

1



P
a

g
e
 1

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 1

 
Haringey Children Community Health Services 

 
 

 

Qualitative Audit of Review Health Assessments completed by Whittington 
Health 

August 2012 
 
 
  
Aim of the audit: The aim of the audit is to assess the quality of the Review Health 
Assessments (RHA) carried out by the specialist nurses for Children in Care (CiC) 
 
Standard: The national standard for the health assessments is: 
That a RHA is provided bi-annually for children under the age of 5 years and annually 
for children and young people over the age of 5. 
 
Background 
Since January 2011 all RHA’s are carried out by the CiC nursing team, which 
consists of the Designated Nurse and two Specialist Nurses.  This quality audit was 
first carried out in 2011. 
 
2011 Audit, summary of findings:  
10 RHA were selected randomly and audited by the Designated Dr for CiC. 
The findings in relation to RHA’s were: 
 
Missing data/information was completion of immunisations 
Location of new born blood spot screening 
 
The recommendations were: 

• To continue with the current commissioned model and improve further 
through integration/co-location of CPMT and CiC nursing team for delivery of 
the health assessments.  

• To develop a process to access immunisation data and develop action plans 
if immunisations have not been completed  

• To re audit in one year. 
 
 
The 2012 audit: 
The 2012 audit was carried out for the RHA’s by the Named Nurse Child Protection. 
The audit questions are in appendix 1. 
 
Findings: 
Question 1: Was the health care plan adequate? 
Findings - 9 were adequate one inadequate. 
 
Of the health care plan that was not adequate the reason/s given was: 
Evidence of obtaining information before the RHA and more evidence of liaison and a 
more complex care plan with clear sign posting as the child had a disability 
 
Question 2: Did the care plan require any follow-up or additional health 
recommendations? 
Three health care plans required follow up for: 

Unclear immunisation history x 2 
Hearing 

Page 13



 2

 
 
Question 3: were all the sections completed on the health assessment? 
100% of the health assessment sections, part B & C of the BAAF were completed for 
the RHA’s. 
 
 
Question 4 What were the common health issues identified? 
 
Mental health

1
 3 

Self harm 1 

Behavioural issues 3 

Substance misuse (including alcohol) smoking  

Growth and development  2 

Sexual health
2
  

Missing immunisations 2 

Oral health 0 

Vision 
3
  

Hearing 1 

Nutrition  1 

Disabilities 2 

Other please state: 
Unclear immunisation history 

 
2 
 

 
 
Question 5 Overall how would you rate the quality of the health assessment? 

Poor                   Adequate - 2                      Good - 2                      Excellent - 6 
 
Findings & Discussion 
The 2012 audit has been compared to the 2011 audit findings. 
 
Question 1: 9 out of 10 RHA remain adequate as in 2011. This remains unchanged. 
 
Question 2: in 2011 one care plan required follow-up for developmental issues. In 
2012 follow-up was required due to unclear immunisation status and one for hearing. 
 
Question 3:  in 2011 and 2012 100% of the health assessment sections, part B & C 
of the BAAF were completed for the RHA’s. 
 
Question 4: common health referrals/issues were: 
The table below shows the type and number of referrals made following a RHA 2012 
compared to 2011. 
 
The most common health reason for referral in 2011 10 referrals were made most 
commonly for missing/incomplete immunisations; in 2012 this number had dropped 
to 2 referrals. 
 
6 referrals were made in 2011 for children to go to their dentist no referrals following 
the RHA’s audited in 2012 were referred to the dentist. 
 
4 referrals in the 2011 RHA’s audited were referred for a hearing assessment this 
has changed to 1 in 2012.   
 

                                                 
1
 Maternal mental health from Part A not transferred to part B 
2
 Details of maternal health and pregnancy are in the case conference minutes but not 
transferred to Part B 
3
 to see optician but no evidence of a problem 

Page 14



 3

The next most common reason for referral in 2011 and 2012 remained unchanged as 
was for behaviour. 
 
What is noticeable is that referrals for missing incomplete immunisations have 
changed considerably from 10 to 2.  
 
The total number of referrals made following RHA’s, was a total of 31 referrals made 
in 2011 and 17 in 2012. 
  
It would be nice to think that this is due in part to the nursing team referring and 
children having receiving their immunisations; however the number or RHA’s audited 
is too small to draw any conclusions. 
 

Type of referrals made from Review Health Assessments 2012 compared to 2011

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

M
en
ta
l i
llh
ea
lth

Se
lf 
ha
rm

Be
ha
vi
ou
r 

Su
bs
ta
nc
e 
m
is
us
e

G
ro
w
th
 &
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

Se
xu
al
 H
el
at
h

O
ra
l h
ea
lth

Vi
si
on

H
ea
rin
g

N
ut
rit
io
n 

D
is
ab
ilit
ie
s

M
is
si
ng
 im
m
un
is
at
io
ns

U
nc
le
ar
 im
m
un
is
at
io
n 
hi
st
or
y

Sk
in

SL
T

Ab
do
m
in
al
 p
ai
n 
po
st
 a
bo
rti
on
 

Si
ck
le
 c
el
l s
cr
ee
ni
ng

Referal Reason

N
u
m
b
e
r

2012

2011

 
 
 
Conclusions: 
RHA’s continue to be adequate with 8 out of the 10 RHA’s audited being of good to 
excellent quality. 
 
The two RHA’s that were adequate quality could have been improved by: 

• Attempting to gather information before the RHA – this however will only be 
possible when staff have capacity 

• More complex care planning for a child with disability 

• Evidence of clear sign posting 
 
Recommendations: 
Repeat audit in one year 
Improved care planning with sign posting for children with disability 
 
 
With thanks to Karen Miller Child Protection Named Nurse 

 
Judy Mace Designated Nurse for Children in Care 

August 2012 

Page 15



 4

Appendix 1 

 
 
Audit created June 2011 on the recommendations of the CQC and Ofsted Recommendations 

 
Audit: 

 To assess the quality of the health assessments for children in care 
 
Audit to be carried out by: Named Nurse Child Protection or the Designated Dr for Children in 
Care for the Review Health Assessments 
 
The Standard: Haringey use the BAAF forms for all health assessments for children in care. 
 
Audit outcomes: 
 
10 randomly selected community paediatric medical files were audited the results are below: 
 

1. Was the health care plan adequate?  Y 9  N 1 
 
 

2. Did the care plan require any follow-up or additional health recommendations?     Y 3 
  
Follow up for: 
Unclear immunisation history x 2 
Hearing 

 
3. Were all the sections completed on the BAAF assessment  
 

Part B   Y 10 
Part C  Y 10  

 
4. What were the common health issues identified, please tick all that is relevant?  

 

Mental health
4
 3 

Self harm 1 

Behavioural issues 3 

Substance misuse (including alcohol) smoking  

Growth and development  2 

Sexual health
5
  

Missing immunisations 2 

Oral health 0 

Vision 
6
  

Hearing 1 

Nutrition  1 

Disabilities 2 

Other please state: 
Unclear immunisation history 

 
2 
 

 
5. Overall how would you rate this health assessment? Please circle 
 
Poor                   Adequate - 2                      Good - 2                      Excellent - 6 

 
Audit completed by: Karen Miller (Named Nurse Child Protection)  
Date: 23/08/2012 

 

                                                 
4
 Maternal mental health from Part A not transferred to part B 
5
 Details of maternal health and pregnancy are in the case conference minutes but not 
transferred to Part B 
6
 to see optician but no evidence of a problem 

Page 16



Agenda Item 8Page 43 Agenda Item 7Page 17



Page 44Page 18



Page 45Page 19



Page 46Page 20



Page 47Page 21



Page 48Page 22



Page 49Page 23



Page 50Page 24



Page 51Page 25



Page 52Page 26



Page 53Page 27



Page 54Page 28



Page 55Page 29



Page 56Page 30



 

Page | 1 

 

 

Report for: 
Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel, 

19th September 2013 
Item Number:  

 

Title: Budget Report 

 

Report 

Authorised by: 

Mun Thong Phung 

Director of Adults and Housing  

 

Lead Officer: 
Katherine Heffernan, Head of Finance, Adults and Housing 
katherine.hefferna@haringey.gov.uk 
0208 489 3732 

 

Ward(s) affected: All Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 

 

1 Describe the issue under consideration  
 
1.1 The Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel have requested information on the following 
items: 

• Budget Monitoring report on service areas covered by A&HSP; 

• Update on the recommendations of Budget Scrutiny; 

• Directorate update on progress in achieving savings in the last MTFP.   
 
The following report provides an update on these items. 
 

2 Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Adult and Health Scrutiny Panel note the contents of this report. 

 
3 Other options considered 

 
3.1 N/A 
 
4 Background information  

 
4.1  The Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel contribute to the Council’s financial planning 
and management by scrutinising budget proposals and financial performance and 
making recommendations. 
 

Page 31



 

Page | 2 

 

4.2 The panel met as part of the Medium Term Financial Planning process for 2013-16 
and made a number of recommendations.  The response and subsequent action are 
outlined below.   
 

4.3 Financial performance including any forecast variation against agreed budgets is 

monitored regularly by Council officers and reported quarterly to Cabinet.  The most 

recent such report was made based on the position at the end of period four (July) and 

reported to Cabinet at the meeting of the 10th September. 

 
5 Budget Monitoring Position 

 
5.1 Based on the position at the end of July, Adults and Community Services are 
forecasting an overspend of £1.2m.  The relevant paragraph of the Cabinet report is 
paragraph 5.2 and is reproduced below: 

 

“Pressures are continuing in the Adults care purchasing budget, and at this stage of the year 

there may be some level of over commitment in the data. As a result, the reported pressures 

have been estimated at £1.2m. The level of commitment recorded in the commissioning 

systems are being monitored and refined as the year progresses, and an action plan is being 

developed to manage pressures.” 

5.2 The relevant paragraph concerning the Public Health Directorate is 5.11 and is 
reproduced below: 

“There has been a delay in some areas of the commissioned budget which means that 

service delivery is not in line with the grant allocation. The unspent grant will be transferred 

to a reserve at year end for future commitments, and this will result in a break even position.” 

 
6 Update on the Recommendations of Scrutiny. 

 
6.1 The Adults and Health Panel made six recommendations.  There are no issues to 
report concerning their implemention.  Comments on each are presented below: 
 

7 Update on Progress in Making Savings 
7.1 The paragraph concerning progress in making savings is paragraph 6.2 of the Cabinet 
report and is reproduced below: 

“In respect of social care the staffing structural savings of £720k over 2013/14 and 

2014/15 are particularly challenging, and other savings may need to be brought 

forward from 2015/16 in order to assist in delivering the overall saving. The £1.4m 

saving on the placement budget in 2014/15 remains amber, although work continues 

with the North London Strategic Alliance (NLSA) and high end placements are being 

reviewed.”  

 

Page 32



 

Page | 3 

 

7.2 There are no other areas of concern with all other savings currently assessed as 

“Green” – on target.   

9.  Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications  

9.1 This report is largely based on information presented by Corporate Finance and the 

Chief Financial Officer’s comments are included throughout.   

 

10. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications  

10.1 Not applicable:  

11. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 

11.1 Equalities issues are a core part of the Council’s financial and business planning 

process. 

 

12. Head of Procurement Comments 

12.1 Not applicable. 

 

13. Policy Implications  

13.1 There are no specific legal implications in this report 

 

14. Use of Appendices 

14.1 The latest budget monitoring report to the Cabinet is included as an appendix.  

14.2 A table showing progress against the Panel’s budget recommendations is provided 

as appendix 2.   

 

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

 

Page 33



 

Page | 4 

 

 ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 Recommendation Cabinet Response Update 

1 a) Any moves which are made in relation 

to the redesign of Adult social work 

assessment relating to Occupational 

therapy and social work assessment 

should focus on the integration of health 

and social care. 

 

b) The Council should be the lead 

authority on service provision. (A2) 

 

Closer integration between Social Care and 

Health services is a leading priority for Adults 

and Community Services and will be a key 

design principle in all the Directorate’s service 

transformation work.   

 

In integrating services the Directorate will take 

care that the best balance of control and 

efficiency is achieved.  In many cases the 

Council will be the most appropriate lead 

provider; however there may be services for 

which a health lead would be more appropriate 

– for example in some more specialist provision 

where health expertise is greater.  The 

Directorate will provide a full justification for all 

service reconfigurations.    

Integration remains a priority and work is 

continuing on ensuring Social Care and 

Health staff can work together across 

service boundaries.   

 

 

There are currently no plans to change 

the lead authority for any services.   

2 a) The move to enable more people with 

learning disabilities to live independently 

in the community is welcomed and the 

Panel looks forward to hearing further 

updates on progress. 

The Campsbourne model, which the 

Panel considered at its meeting in 

Officers from Adults and Housing will be happy 

to provide updates to future meetings.   

 

 

Officers will continue to build on and develop 

£500k of funding has been made 

available in this year’s Housing capital 

programme to support development of 

more schemes like Campsbourne.  We 

are continuing to develop the model and 

will be happy to report back later as 

projects are completed. 

P
a

g
e
 3

4



 

Page | 5 

 

September, should be used as a model 

for other supported housing schemes. 

(A16) 

 

previous good practice such as the 

Campsbourne project.   

 

 

3 The Panel raised concerns that a 

Principal Policy Officer post in the Adult 

Commissioning service is being cut at a 

time of transition when these skills may 

be needed.  The Panel therefore 

recommends that Public Health consider 

picking up the full funding of the post, at 

least during the forthcoming transitional 

period. (A17) 

 

The Public Health Grant is ringfenced and can 

only be spent within agreed parameters.  

Furthermore, work to allocate the grant in the 

target areas is advanced.  However, the Director 

of Public Health is committed to working closely 

with colleagues over the coming year to 

maximise synergies and achieve the optimum 

outcomes for public health of the Borough 

The Director of Public Health has been 

establishing her staffing team and is now 

well resourced to support Council 

objectives and public health outcomes. 

 

4 The Panel welcomes the NHS Grant and 

recognises that the service needs an 

injection of funding in order to manage 

the demographic changes and an 

increase in demand.  

 

The Panel therefore recommends that 

the full amount of money is given to 

Adults in all of the remaining years of the 

grant. 

 

The Cabinet approves this recommendation and 

has therefore included the additional grant 

funding announced within the Adutlts and 

Housing cash limit from 1 April 2013. This 

adjustment is included within the MTFP as set 

out in this report. 

 

 

 

 

Additional funding equal to the grant has 

been provided in the Adults budget for 

2013-14.  A report will be presented to 

the Health and Wellbeing Board and 

Cabinet in October showing how the 

funding will be used to support Adults 

and Health objectives.    

 

The Chancellor announced further 

funding for 2015-16 in the latest 

Spending Round.  There will be a report 

to the Health and Wellbeing board on this 

P
a
g
e
 3

5



 

Page | 6 

 

The Panel also strongly supports making 

a further business case to ensure that 

the level of the NHS grant continues to 

keep pace with the increased pressures 

on the service and an increased demand. 

(NHS Grant to Support Care and Benefit 

Health) 

 

 

Officers from Adults and Housing will continue to 

make best efforts to ensure funding from the 

NHS keeps pace with demand. 

 

in the near future.   

5 The Panel is encouraged by the number 

of health and social care integrated 

services and recommends acceleration 

in the move to greater integration in order 

to improve outcomes for service users 

and improved financial efficiency.  

(Health and Social Care Integration) 

Adults and Housing are working on further 

integration between health and social care 

services and will be happy to report on this 

further next year.   

Integration remains a priority and work is 

continuing on ensuring Social Care and 

Health staff can work together across 

service boundaries 

6 Public Health - The Panel understands 

that the Public Health budget is not yet 

available and looks forward to receiving 

the Public Health budget when it 

becomes available in order to allow the 

Panel to scrutinise the proposals as per 

its constitutional duty. 

 

A report on the new Public Health budget for 

2013/14 is planned to be discussed by Cabinet 

in March 2013. Cabinet are content that, once 

approved, the report is passed to Overview and 

Scrutiny for further consideration.  

This Cabinet report was published in April  

 

P
a

g
e
 3

6



 

 

1 

Report for: Cabinet – 9 July 2013 
Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: The Council’s End of Year Performance Assessment 2012/2013 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

The Chief Executive  

 

Lead Officer: 
Eve Pelekanos – Head of Strategy and Business Intelligence  
                 Telephone 020 8489 2508 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: 
All 

 
Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 
Information 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
1.1. To inform Cabinet of progress against the Council’s priorities and other major 

responsibilities in 2012/13. 

 
2. Introduction by Cabinet Member for Performance Management  – Cllr Kober, 

Leader of the Council 
3.  
2.1 Over the last year our residents have faced some significant challenges: Haringey was 

selected to pilot the benefit cap ahead of the rest of the country, the bedroom tax has now 
been implemented and government cuts to council budgets have continued unabated. Despite 
these tough circumstances, we’ve managed to register 491 residents on our Jobs for Haringey 
programme and 221 of these have started work – this is against only 10 jobs being delivered 
in Haringey by the government’s Youth Contract scheme. We’ve also seen some substantial 
improvements in our schools, with the majority of them now being rated as good or 
outstanding. The challenging recommendations from Outstanding For All and our subsequent 
actions will ensure this positive trend continues. 
 

2.2 Last year I said I wanted to see crime rates reduce and I’m pleased to see that this has 
happened, including a reduction in the number of first-time entrants to the Youth Justice 
System. Despite these improvements, youth re-offending rates have continued to increase. 
Working with our partners in the police and through our work to reduce youth unemployment, 
I’m hopeful that we will begin to see re-offending rates among our youth reduce. While there is 
still much to do, I’m pleased that residents are beginning to see tangible outcomes of our 
regeneration programme in Tottenham, including the re-opening of 639 High Road, rebuilding 
of the Carpetright building and the conversion of the A10 High Road to take two-way traffic.  

 

3 Recommendations 

Agenda Item 11Page 115 Agenda Item 8Page 37



 

 

Produced by Strategy & Business Intelligence 
Presented to Director’s Group on 11 June 2013 

2 

 

3.1 To note progress against the Council’s priorities and other major responsibilities in 
2012/13. 
 

3.2 To note this year’s achievements, areas for focus and emerging issues going forward. 
 

3.3 To agree the corporate set of performance indicators and targets for 2013/14. 

 
4 Background information 
4.1 This report is a self assessment of the Council’s performance in 2012/13. It also provides 

an update of key activity against the Council’s priorities and other major responsibilities as 
set out in the Council Plan agreed at Full Council on 16 July 2012. 

 
4.2 The Council is in the process of preparing its next corporate plan for 2013-15. The 

corporate performance indicator set will therefore be in line with priorities in the revised 
plan. The proposed indicators and targets are shown in Appendix 2 and will be tracked 
through the Council’s quarterly performance reports. 
 

4.3 The main body of this report begins on page 3. 
 

5 Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 
5.1 The Chief Finance Officer confirms that there are no direct financial implications arising 

from this report.  Continued focus and monitoring of key priorities and indicators should 
support the Council in delivering against stated aims and provide early indications of any 
emerging issues or shortfalls.  Action to address these could have financial implications 
but these would be the subject of a separate report. 
 

6 Head of Legal Services and legal implications 
6.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 
 

7 Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
7.1 This year we have produced a Corporate Equality Annual Report to show progress on our 

corporate equality objectives.  In recognition of how central achieving equality is to our 
work, from now on we will report progress in our regular performance reporting.  In 
addition to information on these objectives, we will continue to publish equality impact 
assessments and the annual employment profile, and promote equality through our 
procurement and commissioning processes.   

 

8 Head of Procurement Comments 
N/A 

 

9 Policy Implications 
9.1 Haringey’s quarterly performance assessment links to the following documents / 

strategies: 
• The Council Plan 2012-14  
• Key strategies 

 
10 Use of Appendices 

• Appendix 1: Performance Tables Quarter 4 and End of Year 2012/13 
• Appendix 2: Corporate Performance Indicator Set for 2013/14 
• Appendix 3: Emerging Policy Issues for 2013/14 

 
11 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

• Service performance indicator returns 

Page 116Page 38



 

 

Produced by Strategy & Business Intelligence 
Presented to Director’s Group on 11 June 2013 

3 

 

• Council Plan (incorporating departmental business plans) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117Page 39



 

 

Produced by Strategy & Business Intelligence 
Presented to Director’s Group on 11 June 2013 

4 

 

 
 
 
The Council’s End of Year 
Performance Assessment 2012/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Produced by 

Strategy and Business Intelligence 
May 2013 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 118Page 40



 

 

Produced by Strategy & Business Intelligence 
Presented to Chief Executive’s Management Board on 01 May 2012 

5 

 

Executive Summary: Overall Assessment of the Council’s Performance 
in 2012/13  
 
Introduction 
1. In 2012/13, the Council’s performance was measured against the Council’s priorities and 

other major responsibilities, as set out in the Council Plan. The highlights for the year under 

each priority are outlined below. Further detail can be found in the next section of the report, 
at the paragraph references given. 
 

 

 
Priority 1: Work with local businesses to create jobs for local people 

§ Unemployment, particularly amongst young people, remains high, especially in the east 
of the borough (paras 7 & 8). 

§ 491 residents registered on the Jobs for Haringey programme this year, 221 of whom 
have started work.  

§ In a joint project with the Greater London Authority, an Enterprise and Employment 
Centre has been established at 639 High Road, N17 to support new business, create 
new jobs and provide a focal point for volunteering and the community 

§ Economic growth and increasing employment opportunities for residents remains a 
priority for the council.  

 
Priority 2: Deliver regeneration to key areas of the borough  

§ Extensive plans are now in place for the regeneration of Tottenham and other key sites 
in the borough (paras 15-21). In the coming year, the Council needs to focus its efforts to 
deliver these. 

 
Priority 3: Tackle the housing challenges 

§ Efforts to prevent and reduce already high levels of homelessness have been hampered 
by welfare reform and economic conditions (paras 22 & 23).  

§ The Haringey based North London Support Hub has been successful in supporting many 
residents affected by housing benefit reforms and will be refocused to help households 
who are affected by the overall benefits cap from April 2013.  

§ The number of households living in temporary accommodation remains comparatively 
high (2,832 households). Reducing and preventing homelessness remains a key activity 
for the Council in 2013/14. 

§ Tackling issues relating to houses in multiple occupation by increasing licensing and the 
use of planning legislation should remain an area of focus (paras 31-34). 
 

Priority 4:  Improve school standards and outcomes for young people 
§ The majority of Haringey’s primary and secondary schools are rated good or outstanding 

by Ofsted (para 35). Improvement is needed in children’s centres.  
§ Educational attainment across key stages has improved in 2012/13, closing the gap 

between Haringey and the London top quartile (para 0). The rate of improvement in early 
years needs to accelerate. 

§ The numbers of children on child protection plans and children in care have reduced 
slightly since last year but remain comparatively high (paras 40 & 42). 

 
 

§ Good progress has been made in securing permanent placements for children in care, 
either through adoption or special guardianship orders (para 44). Focus needs to be 
maintained to ensure that national thresholds are met. 

§ The council’s focus needs to shift to improving early years provision, prevention and 
early intervention, reducing the need for more intensive services. 

Page 119Page 41



 

 

Produced by Strategy & Business Intelligence 
Presented to Chief Executive’s Management Board on 01 May 2012 

6 

 

 
Priority 5:  Deliver responsive, high quality services to our residents 

§ Progress has been made on the efficiency of processing benefit claims (para 48). 
Processing times need to reduce further in the coming year to bring performance in line 
with the best boroughs in London, particularly in the context of the transition to Universal 
Credit. 

§ The council tax collection rate is good (para 47). Maintaining this level may prove to be a 
challenge as financial pressure on households and the impact of welfare reform 
continues to bite. 

§ Complaints from residents are being dealt with in a shorter timescale than previous years 
(11 days), however, escalation to stage 2 has increased (paras 50 & 51). For the coming 
year, the Council’s aim is to resolve complaints at the earliest possible stage. 

§ Performance of the Council’s Call Centre was below expectation throughout the year 
(para 54). Improving customer services will be a key priority for the Council for 2013/14.  

§ Performance against planning application indicators was low compared to other London 
authorities (para 55).  

 
Community Safety 

§ Overall crime in Haringey reduced by 10% in 2012/13 compared to the previous year 
(para 57). In particular, major reductions have been seen in personal robbery (30% 
reduction) and residential burglary (16%reduction; para 59). 

§ The number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10-17 has reduced 
by a third (para 60). However, the youth re-offending rate continued to increase, with 
almost half of the cohort reoffending (para 62). Diverting young people from involvement 
in crime and antisocial behaviour is a key priority for the coming year. 

 
Environment 

§ The Council’s recycling rate has increased by 6 percentage points from 2011/12, to 32% 
(para 67).  

§ Street cleanliness increased steadily through the year but the annual figure has been 
adversely affected by low performance at the beginning of the year. There needs to be a 
focus on ensuring that high levels of street cleanliness are maintained throughout the 
year (para 68). 
 

Health and social care 
§ Steady progress towards the national target has been made for self directed support in 

social care (personal budgets; see para 74). 
§ Good progress has also been made in reducing teenage pregnancy (see para 76). 

Haringey is now average amongst its statistical neighbours, improving from a low ranking 
the previous year. 

§ The rate of delayed transfers of care has increased from last year (the majority are 
attributable to the NHS; see para 75). Nationally, there is a clear expectation that rates 
should improve, reinforcing the need for this to remain a focus for adult social care for 
2013/14. 

 
 

 

 

 

Context 
2. The Council’s performance over the past year should be set against the backdrop of a 

continued reduction in government spending. These austerity measures have forced the 
Council to reduce its budget at a time of increased demand for some services.  

Page 120Page 42



 

 

Produced by Strategy & Business Intelligence 
Presented to Chief Executive’s Management Board on 01 May 2012 

7 

 

 
3. The Council has been working hard to reduce the impact of these cuts on the community. 

However, there is concern that budget pressures, combined with the effects of new legislation 
(particularly the Welfare Reform Act), will bring further challenges. Many residents have 
already seen reductions in their housing benefit as a result of the welfare reforms, resulting in 
pressures on housing and employment related services in particular. More residents will be 
impacted in the coming year as the overall benefit cap comes into effect.   

 
How performance will be measured in 2013/14 
4. The Corporate Plan 2013/14 – 2014/15 sets out the Council’s priorities and the main ways in 

which it will seek to deliver its objectives.  It also identifies a new set of key performance 
indicators that will measure whether we are making the expected levels of progress towards 
meeting the objectives. Progress against outcomes and strategic priorities will be measured 
through specific performance targets. A full list of performance indicators and targets is 
provided in Appendix 2. 

 
5. Performance will be monitored quarterly and reported to Members in the Council’s Quarterly 

Performance Assessment. Missed targets will be given a red or amber traffic light, and 
detailed explanations and actions will be reported. 

 

Page 121Page 43



 

 

Priority 1: Work with local 
create jobs for local people

 

 

§ Unemployment, particularly amongst young people, re
the borough (paras 7 & 8). 

§ Economic growth and increasing employment opportuni
for the council. 
 

 
 
Employment rates 
6. In March 2013, 5.3% of Haringey’s working age popul

Allowance (JSA). The JSA claimant 
national and regional trends.   
 

7. Haringey rates remain significantly above the Londo
major split between the parliamentary constituencies;
double the England rate. 

 

8. The JSA claimant rate is disproportionately
• in the east of the borough, particularly Northumber
• for males (6.5% compared to 4.1% for females)
• for 18-24 year olds (7.4%), albeit this has decreased by 1

April 2012.�
 
 
 
 
Initiatives to increase employment

 

Priority 1: Work with local businesses to
create jobs for local people 

 
Overall Assessment 

 
Unemployment, particularly amongst young people, remains high, especially in the east of 

.  
Economic growth and increasing employment opportunities for residents 

In March 2013, 5.3% of Haringey’s working age population were claiming Jobseekers’ 
claimant rate has remained stable since the summer, mirrorin

 

Haringey rates remain significantly above the London and England rates. However, there is a 
he parliamentary constituencies; the claimant rate in Tottenham is almost 

The JSA claimant rate is disproportionately high:  
in the east of the borough, particularly Northumberland Park (11.2%) 
for males (6.5% compared to 4.1% for females) 

24 year olds (7.4%), albeit this has decreased by 18% (1.6 percentage points) since 

Initiatives to increase employment 

8 

businesses to  

mains high, especially in the east of 

ties for residents remains a priority 

Jobseekers’ 
rate has remained stable since the summer, mirroring the 

n and England rates. However, there is a 
Tottenham is almost 

 

8% (1.6 percentage points) since 

Page 122Page 44



 

 

Page 9 of 24 

 

9. Since April 2012, 491 residents have registered on the Jobs for Haringey programme (both 
Haringey-funded and European Social Fund tri-borough projects). Of these, 221 have started 
work:  

§ 80 are aged 16 to 24  
§ 190 are from a BME background  
§ 133 are women 
§ 11 have a disability 
§ 93 are parents 

 
10. The Haringey Jobs Fund was launched on 18 May 2012 with 43 jobs created by March 2013. Of 

these:  
§ 3 are women  
§ 32 are aged under 25  
§ 1 has a disability 
§ The top ethnic groups were: Black/Black British Caribbean – 10; White British – 10; 

Black/Black British African – 5 and White Other – 5 
 

11. Haringey Welcome, a programme to support non UK and EU nationals to integrate in the local 
community has 151 verified registrations of which:  

§ 125 are women,  
§ 21 are under 25,  
§ 2 have a disability 

The participants came predominantly from the following ethnic backgrounds: White Other – 38; 
Black/Black British African – 30 and Turkish – 20.  
 

12. In a joint project with the Greater London Authority, an Enterprise and Employment Centre has 
been established at 639 High Road, N17 to support new business, create new jobs and provide a 
focal point for volunteering and the community.  
 

13. Jobs Fairs were held at Hornsey Vale community centre in January 2013 and at Tottenham 
Hotspur Football Club in March 2013 (in partnership with Jobcentre Plus, the College of North 
East London, National Apprenticeship Service and the Spurs Foundation). 

 
14. As at April 2013, there had been 1,583 enrolments with the Haringey Adult Learning Service 

(HALS). Basic skills in literacy, numeracy and English as a second language (ESOL) now 
represent almost two fifths of all HALS provision, up three percentage points in a year. Over two 
thirds of HALs learners come from the 20% most educationally deprived Super Output Areas. 
 

 
 

  

Page 123Page 45



 

 

Page 10 of 24 

 

  

Priority 2: Deliver regeneration to key areas of the borough  
 

 

 
Overall Assessment 

 
Extensive plans are now in place for the regeneration of Tottenham and other key sites in the 
borough (paras 15-21). In the coming year, the Council needs to focus its efforts to deliver 
these. 

 

15. In August 2012, the council launched ‘A Plan for Tottenham’ which sets out the vision for the 

area to 2025. It outlines proposals for quality housing; stronger communities; a vibrant arts and 
culture scene; a welcoming civic heart; wide retail mix; attractive public spaces, and successful 
businesses.  
 

16. The Tottenham High Street Charter was launched through the Tottenham Traders Partnership 
with the Council and the Metropolitan Police Service in January 2013. The Charter sets out 
commitments to improve the appearance of the High Streets and the quality of the offer in the 
area.  
 

17. Construction works started on the Tottenham Gyratory programme in November 2012 with the 
initial elements of the programme to prepare the High Road (western arm of the Gyratory) for 
two-way operation.   

 
18. In November, the Mayor of London announced that Transport for London will invest £20m in the 

redevelopment of Tottenham Hale station, bringing additional passenger capacity, housing 
development and commercial floorspace.  

 
19. The Council has published its Local Plan which sets out a vision and key policies for the future 

development of the borough up to 2026. It takes forward the plans and strategies to identify a 
vision for Haringey as a place to live, work and visit and will set out an implementation framework 
to deliver the vision. Included in the plan are details of how we will protect and enhance the 
borough’s town centres as accessible locations for retail, office, leisure, community uses and new 
homes.  

 
20. As part of this, the Council will take a proactive partnership approach to reinvigorating the town 

centres, developing their identities and widening their role and offer. A Haringey High Streets 
Framework to rejuvenate and maximise the potential of Haringey’s high streets is under 
development. This framework will bring together all activity and initiatives aimed at improving 
Haringey’s high streets. 

 
21. Extensive public realm improvements are being planned for both Wood Green and Green Lanes 

through the TFL improvements scheme and additional works for Green Lanes funded by the 
Mayor’s Outer London Fund and secured by the Green Lanes Strategy Group. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 124Page 46



Page 11 of 24 

 

Priority 3: 
 

 

§ Efforts to prevent and reduce already high levels o
welfare reform and economic conditions 
in temporary accommodation remains comparat
and preventing homelessness remains a key activity 

§ The council has not met its target for the completi
(target 410, completions 376; 
challenging. 

§ Tackling issues relating to houses in multiple occu
use of planning legislation should remain an area o

 
 
22. During 2012/13, the Council’s efforts to reduce 

in the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) has resulted i
households on housing benefit and competition for accommodation from othe
has further constrained supply.
 

23. The ratio of homelessness preventions to acceptances
effectiveness of homelessness prevention efforts bu
pressures on families and constrained housing suppl
2010/11 to 0.84 in 2012/13. 
 

 
 
Initiatives to prevent homelessness

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

2011/12 2012/13

Homeless applications, acceptances and preventions 

2011/12 and 2012/13

 

Priority 3: Tackle the housing challenges

 
Overall Assessment 

 
Efforts to prevent and reduce already high levels of homelessness have been hampered by 
welfare reform and economic conditions (paras 22 & 23). The number of households living 
in temporary accommodation remains comparatively high (2,832 households). Reducing 
and preventing homelessness remains a key activity for the Council in 2013/14.

The council has not met its target for the completion of new affordable housing for 2012/13 
(target 410, completions 376; para 26). Meeting targets for the next two years will be 

Tackling issues relating to houses in multiple occupation by increasing licensing and
use of planning legislation should remain an area of focus (paras 31-34

During 2012/13, the Council’s efforts to reduce homelessness continued. However, the reduction 
in the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) has resulted in fewer properties being affordable to 

benefit and competition for accommodation from othe
has further constrained supply. 

ratio of homelessness preventions to acceptances is a good indicator of the 
effectiveness of homelessness prevention efforts but also reflects the increasing financial 
pressures on families and constrained housing supply. The ratio has deteriorated from 1.51 in 

 

 

Initiatives to prevent homelessness 

Q3 Q4

2012/13

Homeless applications, acceptances and preventions 

Applications

Acceptances

Preventions

• At 31 March 2013, there were 2,832 
households living in temporary 
accommodation, a decrease of 112 since 
2011/12.  

• However, the net rate of reduction has 
slowed compared to previous years.

 

• There were 505 homelessness 
preventions in the year, which represents 
a 9% reduction compared to 2011/12.

• There were 605 homelessness 
acceptances in the year, 
compared to 2011/12.  Haringey
acceptance numbers are close to the 
median for its statistical neighbours (576 for 
the 12 months to December 2012).

 

 

 

Tackle the housing challenges 

f homelessness have been hampered by 
. The number of households living 

ively high (2,832 households). Reducing 
for the Council in 2013/14. 

on of new affordable housing for 2012/13 
). Meeting targets for the next two years will be 

pation by increasing licensing and the 
34). 

homelessness continued. However, the reduction 
n fewer properties being affordable to 

benefit and competition for accommodation from other London boroughs 

is a good indicator of the 
reasing financial 

y. The ratio has deteriorated from 1.51 in 

At 31 March 2013, there were 2,832 
households living in temporary 

, a decrease of 112 since 

However, the net rate of reduction has 
slowed compared to previous years. 

homelessness 
in the year, which represents 

a 9% reduction compared to 2011/12.�
homelessness 

, a 6% increase 
Haringey 

are close to the 
median for its statistical neighbours (576 for 
the 12 months to December 2012). 

Page 125Page 47



 

 

Page 12 of 24 

 

24. The Haringey based North London Practical Support Hub formally ended on 31 January 2013, 
having worked with over 200 households to prevent homelessness. The Hub offered practical 
advice and help to those affected by the housing benefit reforms, including helping tenants to 
claim benefits; negotiating with creditors to reduce debt repayments; negotiating with landlords to 
reduce rents and ensuring that any arrears could be repaid by affordable instalments. The Hub 
successfully prevented homelessness in 68% of the cases it dealt with.  
 

25. Building on the success of the sub regional hub, Haringey is now refocusing efforts to help and 
support households who are affected by the implementation of the overall benefits cap, which 
came into force in the borough from 15 April 2013.  

 
Increasing housing supply 
26. There were 376 affordable housing completions in 2012/13, according to local reporting, a 

reduction on previous years. A further 592 new affordable homes are under construction and due 
for completion before March 2015 and an additional 197 are in the pipeline and expected to start 
in the near future, again with completion expected by March 2015. The current projection is for 
789 completions over the next two years, a number which could increase further as new schemes 
are brought forward. 

 
27. Haringey’s housing trajectory shows an upward trend in new housing delivery over the next 15 

years facilitated by major regeneration projects at Tottenham Hale, Haringey Heartlands and in 
Northumberland Park among others.  

 
28. Work to bring empty homes back into use continues through compulsory purchase orders and 

enforced sales where council tax is outstanding. 

• 17 properties have been brought back into use as a result of Compulsory Purchase Orders. 

• 12 properties were approved by Cabinet for Compulsory Purchase Orders in December. 

• 34 properties which together owe £207,565 are going forward for Enforced sale. 

• Money recovered for the Council so far from Enforced Sales totals £417,571. 

 
Improving housing quality 
29. In the year to 31 March 2013, 333 homes were made ‘decent’, and by March 2014 it is 

anticipated that 500 more non-decent homes will have been brought up to standard. At 1 April 
2013, there were 4,513 non-decent homes (28% of the total stock), a reduction from 4,796 in 
April 2012. 
 

30. From 2011/12 onwards (following a reduction in expected Decent Homes funding) the decision 
was made to switch from a whole house approach to an elemental approach so that essential 
external repairs to make homes weather tight and internal health and safety works are carried out 
first. This enables limited resources to be used to benefit the greatest number of residents. 
However, this elemental scope is not sufficient to bring the majority of non-decent homes up to 
the full decency standard.  

 
31. It is estimated that there are between 8,000 and 12,500 Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) 

in the borough. Over the last three years, nearly half of all complaints relating to disrepair are 
about HMOs. Of those HMOs that should be licensed, it is estimated that only half are licensed 
(as at March 2012). Unauthorised conversions to flats or unauthorised HMOs accounted for 63% 
of all planning enforcement appeals in 2012/13.  

 
32. Since the Additional Licensing scheme in Harringay ward went live in October 2011, 152 

applications have been received, and 80 licences have been issued.  
 

33. An extensive letting agency networking programme has been launched in Harringay, and portfolio 
landlords responsible for properties in this area have been targeted, using information from letting 
agents. Ninety-one individual landlords have received letters and application packs relating to 219 

Page 126Page 48



 

 

Page 13 of 24 

 

properties, and 69 applications have been received. Enforcement Action is being pursued against 
those landlords who have failed to respond. 

 
34. The Council declared its intention to introduce an Article 4 Direction Area to manage future small 

HMOs in the borough in November 2012. This is a year-long intention to curb the loss of single 
family homes and the growing level of shared accommodation in parts of the borough. It will come 
into force on 30 November 2013. The area applies to all wards east of the East Coast Railway 
Line and means that from 30 November 2013, planning permission will be required to change a 
single family dwelling unit into a small HMO. 

 

 

 

Priority 4:  Improve school standards and  
outcomes for young people 

 

 
 

 
Overall Assessment 

 
§ The majority of Haringey’s primary and secondary schools are rated good or outstanding by 

Ofsted (para 35). Improvement is needed in children’s centres.  
§ Educational attainment across key stages has improved in 2012/13, closing the gap between 

Haringey and the London top quartile (para 0). The rate of improvement in early years needs 
to accelerate. 

§ The numbers of children on child protection plans and children in care have reduced slightly 
since last year but remain comparatively high (paras 40 & 42). 

§ Good progress has been made in securing permanent placements for children in care, either 
through adoption or special guardianship orders (para 44). Focus needs to be maintained to 
ensure that national thresholds are met. 

§ The council’s focus needs to shift to improving early years provision, prevention and early 
intervention, reducing the need for more intensive services.  

 
Education and training 

 
Ofsted ratings of children’s centres and schools 
35. As at April 2013 the Ofsted ratings were as follows: 

§ Children’s centres: 14 had been inspected and eight were judged good/outstanding (57%). 
This is below the London and national averages of 77% and 70%, respectively (as at 
December 2012). 

 
§ Primary schools: 45 out of 63 (71%) were rated good or outstanding. This figure includes 

academies, but excludes free schools. This is a major improvement since January 2012 (see 
graph below). The latest available data shows the national average is 74%.  

 

§ Secondary schools: ten out of thirteen (including Haringey 6th Form Centre) were rated good 
or outstanding (77%). This figure includes academies. Again, this is an improvement 
compared to January 2012. The latest available data shows the national average is 71%. 

Page 127Page 49



Page 14 of 24 

 

 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Educational Attainment 

36.  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Validated results for Key Stage 2 
primary school) show an improvement from 
71% to 78% for pupils achieving level 4 or 
above in both English and Maths, putting 
Haringey almost on a par with England and 
moving its ranking from 109th to 99
local authorities).  
�

 

 

The percentage of children 
good level of development in the 
Years Foundation Stage 
improve (54% to 56%) but not as quickly as 
England (59% to 64%). Haringey’s ranking 
has fallen from 122nd to 138
local authorities). 
�

 (end of 
primary school) show an improvement from 
71% to 78% for pupils achieving level 4 or 
above in both English and Maths, putting 
Haringey almost on a par with England and 

to 99th (out of 150 

• Validated 2012 GCSE results show that 58.6% 
of pupils attained 5+ A*-C (including English & 
maths), close to the 59.4% national average.
Haringey is now ranked 77
authorities).   

• 75.1% of pupils are making expected progress 
from KS2 to GCSE in English, better than 
England (69.2%). Haringey is ranked 23
151 local authorities). 

• 77% of pupils are making expected progress 
from KS2 to GCSE in Maths, also better than 
England (69.8%). Haringey has improved its 
rank to 20th (out of 151 local authorities).

 

 

   

 

The percentage of children achieving a 
good level of development in the Early 

 has continued to 
improve (54% to 56%) but not as quickly as 

Haringey’s ranking 
to 138th (out of 152 

results show that 58.6% 
C (including English & 

maths), close to the 59.4% national average.  
Haringey is now ranked 77th (out of 151 local 

75.1% of pupils are making expected progress 
GCSE in English, better than 

Haringey is ranked 23nd (out of 

77% of pupils are making expected progress 
from KS2 to GCSE in Maths, also better than 

Haringey has improved its 
1 local authorities). 

Page 128Page 50



Page 15 of 24 

 

Validated results for post-16 attainment show 
that the total average point score per pupil 
has fallen slightly (661.4 to 651.7); the 
England average has also fallen from 745.9 
to 733. Haringey is now ranked 125
149 local authorities). Average point score 
per exam entry is 209.9 (England 
212.8). Haringey is ranked 52nd (out of 149 
local authorities).   
 
 
 

 
37. There has been an increase in the number 

equivalent), up to 84% from 79% the previous year 
increase in the number qualified to level 3 (A
previous year (London 61%).  

 
38. Figures for the educational attainment of looked 

Of the children looked after continuously for twelv
2012: 
• At Key stage 1, 94% achieved

88% achieved the expecte
the expected level in mathematics (compared to 71% 

• At Key stage 2, 42% achieved the expected level in English and Ma
national average of 50%. 

• At GCSE level, 19% achieved 
national average of 15%. 

• Haringey also had above average levels of children
of education at year 11 (78% compared to 71% nation

 
Young people not in education, employment or training
39. Of young people aged 16-19 whose situation is known, 

or training, an improvement since last year 4.4%
known compared to 27.9% last year higher than Statistical Neigh

 

 
Children’s Social Care 
 
40. In 2012/13, there has been an 18.5% reduction 

social care. Haringey’s rate of referrals per 10,000 population 
neighbours, largely due to robust sc
(MASH). 15% of referrals are r
performance. 
 

41. Completion of initial and core 
achieved by our statistical neighbours. 
compared to 82% for statistical neighbours (2011/12
within 35 days.  

 

attainment show 
that the total average point score per pupil 
has fallen slightly (661.4 to 651.7); the 
England average has also fallen from 745.9 

Haringey is now ranked 125th (out of 
Average point score 

per exam entry is 209.9 (England 
(out of 149 

There has been an increase in the number of 19 year olds qualified to level 2
79% the previous year (London 86%). Similarly, there has been an

qualified to level 3 (A-Level or equivalent), up to 59% from
 

educational attainment of looked after children have recently been published.
Of the children looked after continuously for twelve months during the year ending 31 March 

94% achieved the expected level in reading (compared to 67% nationally), 
the expected level in writing (compared to 57% nationally), and 81% achieved

the expected level in mathematics (compared to 71% nationally). 
, 42% achieved the expected level in English and Maths in 2012, below the 

% achieved 5+ A*-C including English and mathematics, above the 

average levels of children in full time education following completion 
of education at year 11 (78% compared to 71% nationally). 

not in education, employment or training (NEETs) 
whose situation is known, 3.3% are not in education, employment 

, an improvement since last year 4.4%. 18.6% of young people’s situation is 
ed to 27.9% last year higher than Statistical Neighbour average 

an 18.5% reduction from the previous year in referrals to children’s 
Haringey’s rate of referrals per 10,000 population is lower than statistical 

neighbours, largely due to robust screening processes by the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub 
re-referrals within 12 months, in line with statistical neighbours’ 

initial and core assessments in timescale was below target and below levels 
achieved by our statistical neighbours. 70% of initial assessments were completed within 10
compared to 82% for statistical neighbours (2011/12). 70% of core assessments were completed 

 

 

of 19 year olds qualified to level 2 (GCSE A*-C or 
Similarly, there has been an 
up to 59% from 55% the 

have recently been published. 
e months during the year ending 31 March 

ng (compared to 67% nationally), 
% nationally), and 81% achieved 

ths in 2012, below the 

C including English and mathematics, above the 

in full time education following completion 

not in education, employment 
18.6% of young people’s situation is not 

bour average  

referrals to children’s 
lower than statistical 

es by the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub 
, in line with statistical neighbours’ 

was below target and below levels 
70% of initial assessments were completed within 10 days 

). 70% of core assessments were completed 

Page 129Page 51



Page 16 of 24 

 

 
42. There were 275 children subject to a child protection plan

number recorded at the end of last year (284). This
population, which remains higher than the England a
(40). 

 
43. There has been a 5.5% reduction in the number of 

541 children were in care on the last day of March 
Haringey’s rate remains higher than 
of children in care are placed within Haringey, with

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44. There were 14 adoptions in 
2012/13 (target 15). However, 
there were also 31 special 
guardianship orders in the year
giving a total of 45 legally 
permanent orders. Increasing use 
of special guardianship orders in 
addition to adoption orders helps 
to reduce the time children spend 
in long term care. In addition, a 
large number of children have 
been placed in pre adoptive 
placements awaiting orders which 
permanency plans for around 30 children in care.
approved in 2012/13; 35 compared to 9 in 2011/12.

 
45. In 2012/13, children waited an average of 661 days from becomin

placed for adoption. This is higher than the 639 day national threshol
Haringey’s three year average for 2009/12 (749) and the

 
46. In 2012/13, children waited an average of 

adoptive parents (including foster parents who subsequently adopt), 
improvement on 647 days in 2009/12.

Rate of Children in Care 

per 10,000 population 

Haringey

Rate per 10,000 

Statistical 

Neighbours Rate 

England

Rate per 10,000

children subject to a child protection plan as at March 201
number recorded at the end of last year (284). This translates to a rate of 47.8 per 10,000 
population, which remains higher than the England average and that of statistical neighbours 

has been a 5.5% reduction in the number of children in care since the end of March 2012. 
541 children were in care on the last day of March 2013, equivalent to 94 per 10,000 population. 

remains higher than the England rate and that of statistical neighbours
children in care are placed within Haringey, with 80% placed within a 20 mile radius

However, 

in the year, 

Increasing use 
of special guardianship orders in 
addition to adoption orders helps 

dren spend 
In addition, a 

have 

which will boost adoption orders during 2013/14 and secure
permanency plans for around 30 children in care. Significantly higher numbers of adopters
approved in 2012/13; 35 compared to 9 in 2011/12. 

children waited an average of 661 days from becoming looked after to being 
. This is higher than the 639 day national threshold but an improvement

verage for 2009/12 (749) and the 2011/12 position of 715 days.

children waited an average of 436 days from entering care to moving in with 
(including foster parents who subsequently adopt), a cons

647 days in 2009/12. 

 

 

 

as at March 2013, similar to the 
 translates to a rate of 47.8 per 10,000 

and that of statistical neighbours 

since the end of March 2012. 
94 per 10,000 population. 

the England rate and that of statistical neighbours. A quarter 
aced within a 20 mile radius. 

14 and secure 
numbers of adopters were 

g looked after to being 
d but an improvement over 

2011/12 position of 715 days.  

days from entering care to moving in with 
a considerable 

Page 130Page 52



 

 

Page 17 of 24 

 

 

Priority 5:  Deliver responsive, high quality services to 
residents  

 

 

 
Overall Assessment 

 
§ Progress has been made on the efficiency of processing benefit claims (para 48). 

Processing times need to reduce further in the coming year to bring performance in line 
with the best boroughs in London, particularly in the context of the transition to Universal 
Credit. 

§ The council tax collection rate is good (para 47). Maintaining this level may prove to be a 
challenge as financial pressure on households and the impact of welfare reform continues 
to bite. 

§ Complaints from residents are being dealt with in a shorter timescale than previous years 
(11 days), however, escalation to stage 2 has increased (paras 50 & 51). For the coming 
year, the Council’s aim is to resolve complaints at the earliest possible stage. 

§ Performance of the Council’s Call Centre was below expectation throughout the year (para 
54). Improving customer services will be a key priority for the Council for 2013/14.  

§ Performance against planning application indicators was low compared to other London 
authorities (para 55).  

 

47. 95.02% of Council tax due for the year was received in the year to March, meeting the 95% 
target but marginally below levels achieved at this time last year (95.3%). 

 
48. The time taken to process housing benefit and Council tax new claims and change events 

decreased to 16.6 days in quarter 4, better than the 18 day target. The overall 2012/13 figure is 
14 days, a significant improvement on last year (22 days). Haringey’s processing time remains 
significantly longer than both the London top quartile and London average, particularly for new 
claims.  

 
 
49. In 2012/13 there were 1,922 stage 1 complaints and 3,089 Member enquiries. The table below 

shows the areas where the majority of complaints were received. These areas tend to be high 
volume / universal services. For example, there are in excess of 5 million waste collections each 
year and the number of complaints in 2012/13 was inevitably affected by the changeover to 
fortnightly waste collection. 

 
 

37.5

32.5
33.6

39.3 38.8

23.7

13.2 12.4

18.9
16.6

22.0 12.0 11.0 16.0 15.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

45.0

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2011/12 2012/13

New claims 

New Claims and Change 
events

Change events

London Average (New 
Claims)

London Average 
(Change Events)

London Top Quartile 
(New Claims)

London Top Quartile 
(Change Events)

Time taken to process Housing Benefit / Council Tax Benefit 

New Claims and Change Events (days)

Page 131Page 53



Page 18 of 24 

 

Main areas for Stage 1 complaints

Street Cleansing / Waste Collection

Benefits 

Housing 
Customer Services 
Libraries 

Parking 

On-Street Enforcement

Leisure Centre Information

 
50. The average time taken to respond to 

15 days, down from 12.5 days last year.

 

 
51. 9% of complaints received in 2012/13 were escalated

average of 28 cases per month. This represents a su
volume of escalations compared to the six months to
respectively).  
 

52. Only 2% of stage 1 complaints are escalated to the Local Go

 
53. The average time taken to respond to 

days, down from 10 days in 2011/12.

 

�

�

��

��

��

��

���	
���

�
������

��������

������

�����
���

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	

�
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�

�
	
�
�
�

�����������	�������
�

���������
�������

���� 
���

!����
��
��
���"���

Main areas for Stage 1 complaints Total 

Street Cleansing / Waste Collection 559 

221 

 164 
   150 

      107 

72 

Enforcement       71 

Leisure Centre Information       58 

The average time taken to respond to Stage One complaints was 11.4 days against a target of 
15 days, down from 12.5 days last year.  

9% of complaints received in 2012/13 were escalated to Stage 2: Independent Review
average of 28 cases per month. This represents a sustained increase in both proportion and 
volume of escalations compared to the six months to March 2012 (5% and 14 per month, 

of stage 1 complaints are escalated to the Local Government Ombudsman.

The average time taken to respond to Members’ Enquiries was 8.4 days against a target of 10 
, down from 10 days in 2011/12.  

������

�����
���

���	�������

#
����

$�
 	�%�

�
� 
��
��

&��
�����

$	������

���
����'�	�
�

$�'	������	
�

�����������	�������
�� ��
�	�
������
������	����
�

�������

���������
�������

���� 
��� �
��
���
����
����
( 	���
�

!����
��
��
���"���

 

 

ays against a target of 

 

Stage 2: Independent Review, an 
stained increase in both proportion and 
 March 2012 (5% and 14 per month, 

vernment Ombudsman. 

was 8.4 days against a target of 10 

�

���

)��

*��

+��

����

����

$�'	������	
�

�
	

�
	
��
�
	
�
�
��
��
�


��
�	�
������
������	����
�

�
��
���
����
����
( 	���
�

Page 132Page 54



Page 19 of 24 

 

 
54. Performance of the Council’s call centre was below

received, 63% were answered and 
seconds. A focused programme of work, the Customer 
address this.  

 
55. In 2012/13, the Council received

 
Type Number 

received 

Major 19 
Minor 309 
Other 1,570 

*8 weeks for Minor and Other, 13 weeks for Major

 
Performance against all types of application was low compared to other Lo

 
56. Staff sickness for Haringey Council (excluding school staff) reduc

April 2012 to 7.14 days per FTE in 
quartile of 7.11 days (based on data for 24 boroughs as at Q

 

�

�

��

��

���	
���

�
������

��������

�����������
����
�
�
��
�
�
��
	

�
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�

�
	
�
�
�

��� ��
!�"�#�����
�

���������
�������

���� 
���

!����
��
��
���"���

Performance of the Council’s call centre was below expectation throughout the year. Of the calls 
were answered and 17% were answered within the target timescale of 30 

seconds. A focused programme of work, the Customer Services Strategy, is now in place to 

uncil received the following planning applications: 

Completed to 
timescale* 

% completed 
to timescale 

12 63.2% 
175 56.6% 
1,061 67.6% 

*8 weeks for Minor and Other, 13 weeks for Major 

types of application was low compared to other Lo

for Haringey Council (excluding school staff) reduced from 7.77 days per FTE in 
days per FTE in March 2013. This puts Haringey just outside the London top 

of 7.11 days (based on data for 24 boroughs as at Q3 2012/13). 

�����������
��� ���	�������

#
����$�
 	�%�

�
� 
��
��

&��
�����

$	������

���
����'�	�
�

$�'	������	
�

��� ��
!�"�#�����
�� ��
�	�
������
������	����
��������

���������
�������

���� 
��� �
��
��,�('�����-�����

!����
��
��
���"���

 

 

 

expectation throughout the year. Of the calls 
were answered within the target timescale of 30 

Services Strategy, is now in place to 

 

types of application was low compared to other London authorities. 

ed from 7.77 days per FTE in 
puts Haringey just outside the London top 

�

���

����

����

����

$�'	������	
�

�
	

�
	
��
�
"



��
�	�
������
������	����
��������

�
��
��,�('�����-�����

Page 133Page 55



Page 20 of 24 

 

 
 

§ Overall crime in Haringey reduced by 10% in 2012/13
57). In particular, major reductions have been seen i
and residential burglary (16%reduction; para 

§ The number of first time entrants to the Youth Just
third (para 60). However, the youth re
of the cohort reoffending (para 
antisocial behaviour is a key priority for the comi

 

57. Reported crime in 
Haringey reduced by 10% 
in 2012/13 compared to 
the previous year, a bigger 
reduction than either 
London or statistical 
neighbours. Haringey’s 
rate is below London and 
in line with statistical 
neighbours.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
58. Violence with injury reduced by 

compared to the previous year. 
greater reduction of 8%.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
59. Both personal robbery and residential burglary

by the Community Safety Partnership Board) have see
robbery reduced by 30% compared to the previous year; residential burglary
reduction. In quarter four of 2012/13, the personal robbery and residential burgl
both below the London rate.  

 

Violence with Injury
(rate per 100,000 
population)

Haringey

London

 

Community Safety 

 
Overall Assessment 

 
Overall crime in Haringey reduced by 10% in 2012/13 compared to the previous year (

). In particular, major reductions have been seen in personal robbery (30% reduction) 
and residential burglary (16%reduction; para 59). 
The number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10-

). However, the youth re-offending rate continued to increase, with almost h
para 62). Diverting young people from involvement in crime

antisocial behaviour is a key priority for the coming year. 

reduced by 2.3% in 2012/13 
compared to the previous year. London overall saw 

residential burglary offences (the key property offences measured 
by the Community Safety Partnership Board) have seen major reductions in 2012/13. Personal 

compared to the previous year; residential burglary
2012/13, the personal robbery and residential burgl

Violence with Injury 
(rate per 100,000 
population) 

Haringey

London

���

���

)��

*��

+��

����

����

�
�
�
+
.�
/

�
�
�
/
.�
�

�
�
�
�
.�
�

 

 

 compared to the previous year (para 
n personal robbery (30% reduction) 

-17 has reduced by a 
offending rate continued to increase, with almost half 

). Diverting young people from involvement in crime and 

a 

offences (the key property offences measured 
n major reductions in 2012/13. Personal 

compared to the previous year; residential burglary has seen a 16% 
2012/13, the personal robbery and residential burglary rates were 

�
�
�
�
.�
�

�
�
�
�
.�
�

�
�
�
�
.�
0
�

Page 134Page 56



Page 21 of 24 

 

60. In the last year, the number of first time 
entrants to the Youth Justice System 
aged 10-17 has reduced by a third, 
268 to 182. Haringey’s rate per 100,000 is 
now 767, the 3rd lowest in its YOS family 
group (a group of 10 similar boroughs 
used for benchmarking). Diversion through 
triage and well structured occupational 
programmes has been key in this 
reduction.   

 
 
 

 
 
61. Haringey's rate of custody use

2012/13 compared to 2.70 in 2011/12. 
family group. 

 
62. The youth re-offending rate 

increase and is likely to miss the end of year ta
47.1% of offenders in the April 2010 to March 2011 
cohort have reoffended compared to 40% for the 
previous cohort. Similar increases have been seen 
across the YOS family group, though Haringey
rate remains higher than the group average. L
tracking (which runs ahead of the published 
figures) indicates that the re-offending rate has 
peaked and will begin to reduce 
over the next year.  

 
 

63. In contrast to the overall violence with injury tre
There were 181 serious youth violence offences in 2
a reduction of over a third, bringing Haringey much
 

64. The chart below shows the estimated percentage of 
and gender (Oct-Sep 2011/12)

��������	�
��������
��������

 

65. Haringey’s Community Safety Partnership has secured
Policing and Crime (MOPAC)

§ £45,000 to support to victims and witnesses of anti
Hackney.  

§ £88,000 to support Haringey’s Integrated Offender M
§ £103,000 to support the work of the domestic violen

Haringey

Statistical Neighbours

number of first time 
entrants to the Youth Justice System 

by a third, from 
Haringey’s rate per 100,000 is 

lowest in its YOS family 
group (a group of 10 similar boroughs 

. Diversion through 
triage and well structured occupational 

been key in this 

use (per 1,000 10-17 year olds) has reduced to 2.28 as at Q3 
2012/13 compared to 2.70 in 2011/12. However, this remains high amongst

has continued to 
increase and is likely to miss the end of year target. 
47.1% of offenders in the April 2010 to March 2011 
cohort have reoffended compared to 40% for the 
previous cohort. Similar increases have been seen 
across the YOS family group, though Haringey’s 

s higher than the group average. Local 
ing (which runs ahead of the published 

offending rate has 
peaked and will begin to reduce 

In contrast to the overall violence with injury trend, serious youth violence
There were 181 serious youth violence offences in 2012/13, down from 246 in the previous year, 
a reduction of over a third, bringing Haringey much closer to the average across 

stimated percentage of the population accused of a crime by age 
Sep 2011/12)� 

 

�������	�
��������
���������������������

������������ 

Haringey’s Community Safety Partnership has secured funding from the Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime (MOPAC) which in 2013/14 will provide: 

to victims and witnesses of anti-social behaviour in Haringey and 

£88,000 to support Haringey’s Integrated Offender Management (IOM) programme. 
£103,000 to support the work of the domestic violence (DV) partnership

Haringey

Statistical Neighbours

First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System 
per 100,000 10-17 year olds.

Haringey

Statistical Neighbours

 

 

17 year olds) has reduced to 2.28 as at Q3 
amongst Haringey’s YOS 

serious youth violence continues to fall. 
012/13, down from 246 in the previous year, 

 closer to the average across London. 

population accused of a crime by age 

funding from the Mayor’s Office for 

in Haringey and 

anagement (IOM) programme.  
partnership.  

First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System  
17 year olds. 

Page 135Page 57



Page 22 of 24 

 

 
66. The Council has allocated £400,000 to support the d

Key strands of which will be to d
particularly younger siblings of those already in g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

§ The Council’s recycling rate has increased by 6 per
(para 67) following the successful roll

§ Street cleanliness increased steadily through the year but the annual 
adversely affected by low performan
focus on ensuring that high levels of street cleanl
(para 68).�

 
67. 32.1% of household waste 

was recycled in 2012/13, 
exceeding the annual target of 
31.7%. Haringey remains 
below the London average and 
significantly below the top 
quartile.  The roll-out of 
fortnightly waste collection 
services across the borough 
has contributed to the increase 
over 2011/12 (26.2%)  

 
 
 

68. The annual performance of Haringey’s 
measured through a survey three times a year
performance improved steadily throughout 2012/13 
acceptable level of cleanliness in line with the ta

69. Green Flag status has been successfully retained for all 15 of
spaces. In addition, three non
Tottenham Marshes and Highgate Wood, making a total

A number of Haringey parks have also achieved 
recreational spaces as a legacy of Queen Elizabeth 
Road Recreation Ground, Lordship Recreation Ground,
Recreation Ground. Priory Park has also applied for Fields in Trust QEI
is awaited. 

The Council has allocated £400,000 to support the delivery of the Strategy for Young People
of which will be to divert young people away from the criminal justice s

particularly younger siblings of those already in gangs. 

 

Environment 

 
Overall Assessment 

 
The Council’s recycling rate has increased by 6 percentage points from 2011/12, to 32% 

following the successful roll-out of the fortnightly waste collection service.

increased steadily through the year but the annual figure 
performance at the beginning of the year. There needs to be a 

focus on ensuring that high levels of street cleanliness are maintained throughout the year 

of 

below the London average and 

has contributed to the increase 

The annual performance of Haringey’s street cleansing contractor is based on levels of litter 
measured through a survey three times a year. The surveys identified that in 2012/13 
performance improved steadily throughout 2012/13 and overall 8% of streets fell below the 
acceptable level of cleanliness in line with the target set.  

status has been successfully retained for all 15 of Haringey’s parks and open 
tion, three non-Council spaces were awarded Green Flags: Alexandra 

Tottenham Marshes and Highgate Wood, making a total of 18 for the borough overall.

A number of Haringey parks have also achieved Fields in Trust status which protects outdoor 
recreational spaces as a legacy of Queen Elizabeth II’s (QEII) Diamond Jubilee in 2012: Albert 
Road Recreation Ground, Lordship Recreation Ground, Muswell Hill Playing Fields, Down Lane 

riory Park has also applied for Fields in Trust QEII status, and the outcome 

 

 

Strategy for Young People. 
ivert young people away from the criminal justice system, 

centage points from 2011/12, to 32% 
out of the fortnightly waste collection service. 

increased steadily through the year but the annual figure has been 
There needs to be a 

iness are maintained throughout the year 

contractor is based on levels of litter 
The surveys identified that in 2012/13 

8% of streets fell below the 

Haringey’s parks and open 
Council spaces were awarded Green Flags: Alexandra Palace, 

 of 18 for the borough overall. 

status which protects outdoor 
II’s (QEII) Diamond Jubilee in 2012: Albert 

 Muswell Hill Playing Fields, Down Lane 
I status, and the outcome 

Page 136Page 58



 

 

Page 23 of 24 

 

70. By the end of the 2012/13 planting season, a total of 388 new trees had been planted (307 were 
street trees). This means that between 2010 and 2013 an overall 1,244 new trees were planted.  

71. A detailed business plan for a strategic Lee Valley Heat Network is now in development. The 
network locally covers part of Northumberland Park, Tottenham Hale and Tottenham Green, and 
aims to utilise energy from waste processing facilities in Edmonton for the benefit of the local 
economy. The overall network covers Haringey, Enfield and Waltham Forest. 

72. Haringey has been awarded £100,000 from a cross-borough funding bid to the European 
Regional Development Fund led by Islington. The scheme is providing free environmental support 
to hundreds of small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) to help them reduce CO2 and save 
money on their fuel bills. To date, approximately 50 businesses have received one-to-one support 
from the service, and many businesses have been delighted with the service and the financial 
savings they have been able to make to reduce their operating costs. In addition, thousands of 
businesses have received information and advice from direct mailings and online resources. 

73. Haringey's Car Club scheme now offers Zipcar members access to 87 car club vehicles across 
the borough. The scheme has been extremely popular, with over 4,000 Zipcar members in the 
borough (a member growth of 240% in three years), and has led to up to 1,040 private vehicles 
being sold through residents joining the scheme. Zipcar members drive on average 68% less 
than prior to joining (and using public transport 40% more). There is significant potential for car 
club expansion in Haringey and the Council aims to have a car club within five minutes’ walk of all 
residents and businesses. 

 

 

Health and social care 
 

 

 
Overall Assessment 

 
§ Steady progress towards the national target has been made for self directed support in 

social care (personal budgets; see para 74). 
§ Good progress has also been made in reducing teenage pregnancy (see para 76). 

Haringey is now average amongst its statistical neighbours, improving from a low ranking 
the previous year. 

§ The rate of delayed transfers of care has increased from last year (the majority are 
attributable to the NHS; see para 75). Nationally, there is a clear expectation that rates 
should improve, reinforcing the need for this to remain a focus for adult social care for 
2013/14 

 

Adult Social Care 
 
74. As at March 2013, 68% (3,150 clients) 

of social care clients are on self-
directed support against a target of 
70%. This is in the top quartile for 
London (based on Q3 data).  

 
75. Delayed transfers of care have 

increased to 9.8 per 100,000 adult 
population (as at January 2013), 
compared to 7.7 last year, above the target of 7.5. Nationally about 60% of delayed transfers are 
attributable to the NHS and 33% to Social Care, with the remaining 7% being attributable to both. 
In Haringey, 67% are attributable to NHS, 32% to Social Care and 1% to both. There is a clear 

42.4

55 54
58.8

68

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2011/12 2012/13

Value

Target

London Average 
(Median)

London Top 
Quartile

Social care clients receiving Self Directed Support (2010 Definition)

Page 137Page 59



Page 24 of 24 

 

national expectation for reductions in both the number of Delayed 
length of wait which some people 
central London boroughs, this area should remain a focus for adult social 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Health 
 
76. The ONS 2011 quarterly rates and the annual rate for 

shown below. 
 
 

Quarter 
Q1 
Q2 
Q3 
Q4 
2011 Annual Rate 

 
Haringey is now average amongst 
significant decrease from 2010’s high rate of 64.7 per 1000.

 
11� 18.3% of drug treatment was completed 

successfully in 2012/13 (to February), 
maintaining the strong performance from the 
previous year. This remains better than the 
London and national figures.�

 

�
 
 
 
 
 
78. 37.9% of Haringey residents participate in at least

exercise per week (9th out of 32 London boroughs
percentage point increase from the previous year (3
significant, indicates a possible increase in parti

 

 

 

ation for reductions in both the number of Delayed Transfers of Care and the 
eople are experiencing. As Haringey rates are higher than other 

, this area should remain a focus for adult social care for

rates and the annual rate for under 18 conceptions

Rate per 1000 
43.5   
26.8 
41.6 
33.0 
36.2 

Haringey is now average amongst its statistical neighbours; the 2011 annual rate s
10’s high rate of 64.7 per 1000.  

drug treatment was completed 
in 2012/13 (to February), 

the strong performance from the 
previous year. This remains better than the 

37.9% of Haringey residents participate in at least one 30 minute session of sport or moderate 
out of 32 London boroughs; London overall 36.5%). This is a 2.8 

percentage point increase from the previous year (35.1%) and, although it is not statistically 
significant, indicates a possible increase in participation in sport and physical exercise.  

Haringey

London

Successful completions of drug 
treatment 

 

 

Transfers of Care and the 
As Haringey rates are higher than other north 

, this area should remain a focus for adult social care for 2013/14. 

under 18 conceptions for Haringey are 

its statistical neighbours; the 2011 annual rate shows a 

 one 30 minute session of sport or moderate 
; London overall 36.5%). This is a 2.8 

5.1%) and, although it is not statistically 
cipation in sport and physical exercise.   

Successful completions of drug 

Page 138Page 60



1

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 T

a
b

le
s
 Q

u
a
r
te

r
 4

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

la
n

 P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1

2
/

1
3

 

1
. 

W
o

r
k
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a
l 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 c

r
e
a
te

 j
o

b
s
 f

o
r
 l

o
c
a
l 

p
e
o

p
le

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
ty

 
Q

1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

H
Y
4
7
6

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

jo
b
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 J

o
b
s
 

F
u
n
d

N
e
w

In
d
ic

a
to

r

H
ig

h
1
4

3
1
5

1
1

4
3

5
0

R
e
d

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

H
Y
4
7
7

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

Jo
b
s
 f

o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

N
e
w

In
d
ic

a
to

r

H
ig

h

0
0

5
3
5

4
0

D
a
ta

O
n
ly

S
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

is
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

6
 

m
o
n
th

s
 i
n
 w

o
rk

 s
o
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 o
n
ly

 b
e
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 f

ro
m

 Q
3
. 

Jo
b
s
 F

o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 

2
0
1
2

H
Y
4
9
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 c

la
im

in
g
 

Jo
b
s
e
e
k
e
r’
s
 A

ll
o
w

a
n
c
e
 (

JS
A
)

5
.7

L
o
w

5
.5

5
.4

5
.3

5
.3

5
.3

N
o
 

ta
rg

e
t 

s
e
t

3
. 

T
a
c
k
le

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

h
a
ll

e
n

g
e
s

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
ty

 
Q

1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

O
p
1
5
5

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 (

g
ro

s
s
)

4
5
8

1
H

ig
h

-
3
7
6

4
1

0
 

R
e
d

H
Y
4
a

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
s

5
7
3

L
o
w

1
1
9

1
4
5

1
7
9

1
6
2

6
0

5
7

4
5

 
G

re
e
n

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 h

a
s
 h

ig
h
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 b

o
tt

o
m

 

q
u
a
rt

il
e
 w

e
ll
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
4
4
6
 a

s
 a

t 
Q

3
. 

1
 T

h
is

 i
s 

an
 a

n
n
u

al
ly

 r
ep

o
rt

ed
 i

n
d

ic
at

o
r.

 T
h
e 

H
ar

in
g

ey
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 f

ig
u

re
 i

s 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
al

 a
n
d

 h
as

 n
o

t 
y
et

 b
ee

n
 p

u
b

li
sh

ed
. 

It
 i

s 
se

t 
ag

ai
n

st
 a

 t
ar

g
et

 i
n

 t
h

e 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 P
la

n
. 

Page 61



2

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
ty

 
Q

1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

H
Y
4
b

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
s

5
5
4

H
ig

h
1
2
6

1
0
0

1
5
4

1
2
5

5
0

5
4

8
8

 
G

re
e
n

H
Y
1
5
6

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 

in
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

2
,9

4
4

L
o
w

2
,9

0
6

2
,8

9
6

2
,8

8
1

2
,8

3
2

2
,8

3
2

3
,0

0
0

 
G

re
e
n

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 2

n
d
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 T

A
, 

w
e
ll
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 g

ro
u
p
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
2
0
6
 

H
Y
6
6

V
o
id

s
: 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
le

t 
ti
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
w

e
ll
in

g
s
 

(c
a
le

n
d
a
r 

d
a
y
s
)

3
4
.2

 d
a
y
s

L
o
w

2
9
.7

d
a
y
s

3
3
.8

d
a
y
s

3
2
.6

d
a
y
s

2
8
.7

d
a
y
s

3
1

.2
d

a
y
s

3
0

d
a
y
s

A
m

b
e
r

4
. 

I
m

p
r
o

v
e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

n
d

a
r
d

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 f

o
r
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
ty

 
Q

1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

C
o
m

p
a
r

a
to

r

G
ro

u
p

T
o
p

/B
e
s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

i

le

O
p
3
8

3

R
e
-r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 w
it
h
in

 1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

re
fe

rr
a
l

1
6
.6

%
L
o
w

1
6
.4

%
1
8
.5

%
1
5
.1

%
1
6
.8

%
1

5
.3

%
1

6
%

G
re

e
n

O
P
3
8

8
a

T
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
C
h
il
d
re

n
 

S
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 C
P
 p

la
n
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

4
9

5
1
.9

1
5
6
.9

4
5
8
.1

6
4
7
.7

4
4

8
2

5
2

G
re

e
n

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rs

O
P
3
8

9
a

T
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
C
h
il
d
re

n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

1
0
0

-
9

4
3

9
1

A
m

b
e
r

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rs

H
Y
6
2

S
ta

b
il
it
y
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
: 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

o
v
e
s

1
0
.3

%
L
o
w

9
.9

%
7
.6

%
7
%

7
.2

%
7

.2
%

1
1

%
G

re
e
n

E
n
g
la

n

d
 &

 

S
ta

t 
N

b
 

2
 H

ar
in

g
ey

’s
 r

at
e 

o
f 

C
h

il
d
re

n
 s

u
b
je

ct
 t

o
 a

 C
P

 P
la

n
, 
al

th
o
u

g
h

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g

 r
em

ai
n

s 
si

g
n

if
ic

an
tl

y
 h

ig
h

er
 t

h
an

 t
h
e 

ra
te

 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

st
at

is
ti

ca
l 

n
ei

g
h

b
o

u
rs

 (
4
0
) 

3
 A

lt
h
o

u
g
h

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g

 t
h

e 
ra

te
 o

f 
ch

il
d
re

n
 i

n
 c

ar
e 

in
 H

ar
in

g
ey

 i
s 

ar
o

u
n
d

 a
 t

h
ir

d
 h

ig
h

er
 t

h
an

 t
h

e 
E

n
g

la
n
d

 r
at

e 
(5

9
) 

an
d
 r

em
ai

n
s 

si
g
n

if
ic

an
tl

y
 h

ig
h

er
 t

h
an

 o
u
r 

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
al

 n
ei

g
h

b
o
u

r 
ra

te
 (

7
4

) 

Page 62



3

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
ty

 
Q

1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

C
o
m

p
a
r

a
to

r

G
ro

u
p

T
o
p

/B
e
s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

i

le

H
Y
1
1
7

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 A

g
e
 Y

r 
1
2
-1

4
 %

 
w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

(N
E
E
T
)

4
.3

%

L
o
w

3
.6

%
5
.5

%
4
%

3
.3

%
3
.3

%
4

8
.9

%
G

re
e
n

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rs

H
Y
 7

4
 

(N
I

7
3
) 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

le
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
li
s
h
 a

n
d
 

M
a
th

s
 a

t 
K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

7
1
.0

%
H

ig
h

-
7

8
.0

5

%
7

7
.0

%
G

re
e
n

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l

H
Y
7
5

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

A
*
- 

C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S
E
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
li
s
h
 a

n
d
 

M
a
th

s

5
7
.3

%

H
ig

h

-
5

8
.6

6
%

5
6

.0
%

G
re

e
n

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l

H
Y
 3

1
 

(N
I

9
2
) 

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 g

a
p
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 

P
ro

fi
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t

3
2
.1

%

L
o
w

-
3

2
.5

7

%
3

1
.4

%
A
m

b
e
r

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l

H
Y
4
8
3

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 f

ro
m

 

b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

to
 

b
e
in

g
 p

la
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 i
n
 

p
e
ri
o
d

7
1
5

L
o
w

6
7
8

7
5
8

6
0
0

5
3
9

6
6

1
8

6
3

9
 

A
m

b
e
r

E
n
g
la

n

d

H
Y
4
9
3

a

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
P
ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
a
te

d
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
r 

g
o
o
d
 b

y
 O

F
S
T
E
D

5
9
%

(S
e
p
t

2
0
1
2
)

H
ig

h
D

a
ta

 r
e
la

te
s
 t

o
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

7
1

%
9

8
0

%
A
m

b
e
r

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l

4
 D

at
a 

ar
e 

m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 m

o
n

th
ly

. 
H

o
w

ev
er

 t
h

is
 i

n
d

ic
at

o
r 

an
d

 N
E

E
T

 t
ar

g
et

 u
se

 a
n

 a
n
n

u
al

 r
es

u
lt

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
re

e 
o

n
e 

m
o

n
th

 s
n

ap
sh

o
ts

 a
t 

th
e 

en
d

 o
f 

N
o

v
em

b
er

, 
D

ec
em

b
er

 a
n

d
 J

an
u

ar
y

 e
ac

h
 

y
ea

r.
5
 H

ar
in

g
ey

’s
 r

an
k

in
g
 i

m
p

ro
v

ed
 f

ro
m

 1
0

9
th

 t
o
 9

9
th

 a
n
d

 w
er

e 
1

 p
er

ce
n

ta
g

e 
p
o

in
t 

aw
ay

 f
ro

m
 N

at
io

n
al

 A
v

er
ag

e.
 

6
 H

ar
in

g
ey

 r
an

k
s 

7
7

th
 p

la
ce

 o
u
t 

o
f 

1
5
1
 l

o
ca

l 
au

th
o
ri

ti
es

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
ar

es
 w

it
h
 a

n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
er

ag
e 

o
f 

5
9
.4

%
 

7
 H

ar
in

g
ey

’s
 r

an
k

in
g
 h

as
 d

ro
p
p

ed
 f

ro
m

 1
0
3

rd
 t

o
 1

3
2

n
d
.

8
 T

h
is

 i
s 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

fo
r 

ad
o
p

te
d

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 o
n

ly
 b

et
w

ee
n

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
2

 a
n
d

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
1
3

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
ar

es
 w

it
h

 a
 n

at
io

n
al

 t
h

re
sh

o
ld

 o
f 

6
3
6

 d
ay

s 
fo

r 
E

n
g

la
n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ro

ll
in

g
 y

ea
r 

p
er

io
d

 2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

. 

H
ar

in
g

ey
’s

 2
0
0

8
-2

0
1
1

 a
v

er
ag

e 
d

ay
s 

w
er

e 
7
3

9
. 

9
 T

h
is

 r
el

at
es

 t
o
 4

5
 o

u
t 

o
f 

6
3
 p

ri
m

ar
y
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 i

s 
b
el

o
w

 t
h

e 
n

at
io

n
al

 a
v

er
ag

e 
o

f 
7

4
%

 a
s 

at
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
0
1
2
. 
T

h
e 

fi
g
u
re

 i
n
cl

u
d
es

 a
ca

d
em

ie
s 

b
u
t 

ex
cl

u
d
es

 f
re

e 
sc

h
o
o
ls

. 

Page 63



4

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
ty

 
Q

1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

C
o
m

p
a
r

a
to

r

G
ro

u
p

T
o
p

/B
e
s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

i

le

H
Y
4
9
3

b

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
a
te

d
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
r 

g
o
o
d
 b

y
 O

F
S
T
E
D

6
2
%

(S
e
p
t

2
0
1
2
)

H
ig

h
D

a
ta

 r
e
la

te
s
 t

o
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

7
7

%
1

0
7

3
%

G
re

e
n

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l

H
Y
5
7
9

a

S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la

c
e
s
 -

 %
 g

e
tt

in
g
 

th
e
ir
 f

ir
s
t 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

(P
ri
m

a
ry

)

8
0
%

(A
Y
1
2
/1

3
 e

n
tr

y
) 

H
ig

h
D

a
ta

 A
v
a
il
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
 

8
0

%

H
Y
5
7
9

b

S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la

c
e
s
 -

 %
 g

e
tt

in
g
 

th
e
ir
 t

o
p
 p

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

(S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

)

6
7
%

H
ig

h
-

7
3

.2
%

7
0

%
G

re
e
n

H
Y
5
8
0

a

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
u
tt

in
g
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
s
 f

ir
s
t 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 (

P
ri
m

a
ry

)

-
9

4
%

H
Y
5
8
0

b

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
u
tt

in
g
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
s
 f

ir
s
t 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 (

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

)

-
6

9
.6

%

1
0
 T

h
is

 r
el

at
es

 t
o
 1

0
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
3
 s

ec
o

n
d

ar
y
 s

ch
o
o

ls
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g
 H

ar
in

g
ey

 s
ix

th
 f

o
rm

 c
en

tr
e 

an
d

 i
s 

ab
o

v
e 

th
e 

n
at

io
n

al
 a

v
er

ag
e 

o
f 

7
1

%
 a

s 
at

 D
ec

em
b
er

 2
0
1
2
. 
T

h
e 

fi
g
u
re

 i
n

cl
u
d
es

 a
ca

d
em

ie
s.

. 

Page 64



5

5
. 

D
e
li

v
e
r
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
, 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a
li

ty
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
ty

 
Q

1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

C
o
m

p
a
r

a
to

r

G
ro

u
p

T
o
p
/B

e

s
t

Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

i

le

H
Y
1
8
1

T
im

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t/

C
o
u
n
c
il
 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

n
e
w

 c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 (
d
a
y
s
)

2
2

L
o
w

1
3
.2

1
2
.4

1
8
.9

1
6
.6

1
3
.7

1
8

G
re

e
n

L
A
P
s

C
h
a
n
g
e

E
v
e
n
ts

 

N
e
w

C
la

im

s

H
Y
9

%
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 t

a
x
e
s
 d

u
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r

9
5
.3

%
H

ig
h

3
0
.0

4

%
5
7
.7

%
8
2
.6

6

%

9
5
.0

3

%

9
5

.0
3

%
9

5
%

G
re

e
n

L
A
P
s

H
Y
5
0
2

M
e
m

b
e
rs

' 
E
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 -

 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

1
0

L
o
w

8
.8

8
.1

8
.1

8
.5

8
.4

1
0

G
re

e
n

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

H
Y
5
0
3

F
O

I'
s
 -

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

1
7
.5

L
o
w

1
8
.4

2
0
.1

1
6
.1

1
6
.7

1
7

.9
2

0
G

re
e
n

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

H
Y
1
2
a

D
a
y
s
 s

ic
k
 p

e
r 

fu
ll
 t

im
e
 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 

(E
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

’ 
S
ta

ff
)

7
.3

3
L
o
w

7
.4

3
7
.0

9
7
.2

7
.1

4
7

.1
4

7
A
m

b
e
r

L
A
P
s

H
Y
5
0
0

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 A
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 

to
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

1
2
.5

L
o
w

1
2
.1

1
0
.9

1
1
.3

1
1
.2

1
1

.4
1

5
G

re
e
n

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

H
Y
5
0
1

b

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 -
 %

 e
s
c
a
la

te
d
 

to
 s

ta
g
e
 2

5
%

L
o
w

8
.4

%
9
%

8
.9

%
9
.4

1
%

9
.4

1
%

D
a
ta

O
n
ly

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

O
p
5
0

1

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 S
2
, 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
s
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

7
0
.2

%
 i
n

2
5
 d

a
y
s
 

L
o
w

2
3
.2

2
1
.5

2
3
.2

2
3
.8

2
3

.8
2

5
G

re
e
n

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

Page 65



6

6
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
ty

 
Q

1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

C
o
m

p

a
ra

to
r

G
ro

u
p

T
o
p

/B
e
s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

i

le

H
Y
2
3

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 I

n
ju

ry
2
2
6
3

L
o
w

6
2
7

5
9
1

5
1
9

4
7
6

2
2

1
3

1
1

5
%

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

A
m

b
e
r

M
P
S

M
o
s
t

s
im

il
a

r

G
ro

u
p

&

L
o
n
d
o

n

H
Y
2
5

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 A

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 

O
ff
e
n
c
e
s
- 

in
c
l.
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

R
o
b
b
e
ry

 a
n
d
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

b
u
rg

la
ry

8
6
1
0

L
o
w

2
0
2
5

1
7
7
9

1
5
7
2

1
5
0
1

6
8

7
7

1
2

-1
1

%
  

fo
r
 

P
e
r
s
o

n
a

l

R
o

b
b

e
r
y

&
 -

6
%

 

fo
r
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

b
u

r
g

la
r
y

G
re

e
n

H
Y
5
8

V
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 f

e
e
li
n
g
 w

e
ll
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

1
0
0
%

H
ig

h
9
6
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0

0
%

9
0

%
G

re
e
n

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

H
Y
3
3
1

R
e
p
e
a
t 

v
ic

ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 

(H
e
a
rt

h
s
to

n
e
)

2
0
%

L
o
w

1
8
%

2
0
%

2
0
%

1
9

%
2

1
%

G
re

e
n

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

H
y

4
7
3

F
ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

Y
o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
 a

g
e
d
 

1
0
-1

7
 R

o
ll
in

g
 Y

e
a
r 

(r
a
te

 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 1

0
-1

7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
)

1
5
0
8

(J
a
n
 t

o
 

D
e
c

2
0
1
1
)

L
o
w

1
3
5
2

8
8
1

7
6
7

6
9
0

6
9

0
1

3
1

5
0

8
 

G
re

e
n

S
ta

t

N
e
ig

h

b
o
u
rs

Y
o
u
th

Ju
s
ti
c

e

B
o
a
rd

1
1
 H

ar
in

g
ey

 h
as

 a
 V

W
I 

ra
te

 o
f 

8
.5

8
 o

ff
en

ce
s 

p
er

 1
0
0
0

 r
es

id
en

ts
, 
4

th
 h

ig
h

es
t 

o
u

t 
o
f 

th
e 

1
5
 C

S
P

s 
in

 i
ts

 M
S

G
 a

n
d
 2

2
%

 g
re

at
er

 t
h

an
 t

h
e 

M
S

G
 a

v
er

ag
e 

o
f 

7
.0

2
 p

er
 t

h
o
u

sa
n

d
 r

es
id

en
ts

 
1
2
 H

ar
in

g
ey

 h
as

 a
 r

at
e 

if
 2

6
.8

2
 o

ff
en

ce
s 

p
er

 1
0

0
0

 r
es

id
en

ts
, 
3

rd
 h

ig
h

es
t 

o
u

t 
o
f 

th
e 

1
5

 C
S

P
s 

in
 i

ts
 M

S
G

 m
o

re
 t

h
an

 a
 t

h
ir

d
 (

3
4
.5

%
) 

h
ig

h
er

 t
h

an
 t

h
e 

M
S

G
 a

v
er

ag
e 

o
f 

1
9

.9
5
 p

er
 t

h
o
u

sa
n

d
 r

es
id

en
ts

 
1
3
 H

ar
in

g
ey

’s
 F

ir
st

 t
im

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 a

re
 t

h
e 

se
co

n
d
 l

o
w

es
t 

w
h

en
 c

o
m

p
ar

ed
 w

it
h

 i
t’

s 
fa

m
il

y
 g

ro
u
p

 a
n

d
 b

et
te

r 
th

an
 t

h
e 

fa
m

il
y
 g

ro
u
p

 a
v

er
ag

e 
o
f 

7
5
0

 b
u

t 
ab

o
v
e 

th
e 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 a
v

er
ag

e 
o

f 
5
8
5

. 

Page 66



7

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
ty

 
Q

1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

C
o
m

p

a
ra

to
r

G
ro

u
p

T
o
p

/B
e
s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

i

le

H
Y
4
9
5

%
 R

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 a

ft
e
r 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 r

a
te

 R
o
ll
in

g
 

Y
e
a
r

4
3
.1

 (
Ju

l
2
0
0
9
 t

o
 

Ju
n

2
0
1
0
)

L
o
w

4
3
.1

4
5
.2

4
7
.1

4
8
.2

4
8

.2
1

4
4

3
.1

R
e
d

Y
o
u
th

Ju
s
ti
c

e

B
o
a
rd

N
I 

4
3
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

d
y
 r

a
te

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0
-1

7
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

R
o
ll
in

g
 Y

e
a
r

2
.7

 (
A
p
r 

2
0
1
1
 t

o
 

M
a
r

2
0
1
2
)

L
o
w

2
.7

4
2
.4

2
.2

8
1
.9

4
1

.9
4

1
5

2
.7

0
G

re
e
n

Y
o
u
th

Ju
s
ti
c

e

B
o
a
rd

7
. 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

2
0
1
1
/1

2

P
o
la

ri
ty

 

Q
1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

T
o
p

Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

i

le
R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e
 i
s
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

C
o
m

p
a
r

a
to

r

G
ro

u
p

H
Y
1
9

2
R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 r

a
te

2
6
.2

4
%

H
ig

h
3
0
.4

7

%

3
3
.9

1

%

3
2
.8

1

%

3
1
.2

3

%

3
2

.1
%

3
1

.7
%

G
re

e
n

L
A
P
s

H
Y
1
9

5
a

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
, 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f:

 L
it
te

r

7
%

L
o
w

1
3
%

7
%

3
%

8
%

8
%

G
re

e
n

L
A
P
s

1
4
 H

ar
in

g
ey

’s
 R

e-
o
ff

en
d

in
g

 r
at

e 
is

 t
h

e 
se

co
n

d
 h

ig
h

es
t 

in
 o

u
r 

fa
m

il
y
 g

ro
u
p

 a
n
d

 t
h

e 
3

rd
 h

ig
h

es
t 

in
 L

o
n
d
o

n
  

1
5
 H

ar
in

g
ey

’s
 u

se
 o

f 
cu

st
o
d

y
 r

at
e 

h
as

 r
ed

u
ce

d
 b

u
t 

re
m

ai
n

s 
th

e 
se

co
n
d

 h
ig

h
es

t 
ra

te
 i

n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 

Page 67



8

8
. 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
r
e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
t

y

Q
1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
r

m
a
n
c
e
 

is
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c

ti
o
n
 

o
f

T
ra

v
e

l

C
o
m

p
a

ra
to

r

G
ro

u
p

T
o
p

/B
e
s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il

e

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

H
Y
1

S
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 r
e
la

te
d
 q

u
a
li
ty

o
f 

li
fe

1
7
.5

H
ig

h
A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
u
rv

e
y
 

1
8

T
a
rg

e
t

n
o
t 

s
e
t 

A
m

b
e
r

N
A
S
C
I

S
E
n
g
la

n
d

H
Y
1
3

0

S
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 c
li
e
n
ts

 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
2
0
1
0
 D

e
fi
n
it
io

n
)

4
2
.4

%
H

ig
h

5
5
%

5
4
%

5
8
.8

%
6
8
%

6
8

%
1

6
7

0
%

A
m

b
e
r

L
A
P
s

H
Y
1
9

a

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

w
e
ig

h
t 

in
 4

-5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

(%
 O

b
e
s
it
y
)

1
0

L
o
w

-
1
1
.8

%

L
A
P
s

H
Y
1
9

b

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

w
e
ig

h
t 

in
 1

0
-1

1
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

(%
 O

b
e
s
it
y
)

2
1

L
o
w

-
2
3
.8

%

L
A
P
s

H
Y
1
1

2

U
n
d
e
r 

1
8
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
. 

R
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

4
9
.2

1
7

L
o
w

4
3
.3

(Q
1

2
0
1
1
)

2
7
.5

(Q
2

2
0
1
1
)

4
2
.5

(Q
3

2
0
1
1
)

3
6
.2

(Q
4

2
0
1
1
)

3
6

.2
4

7
 b

y
 

2
0

1
5

A
m

b
e
r

L
o
n
d
o
n

H
Y
1
3

1
D

e
la

y
e
d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

9
.0

L
o
w

7
.7

7
1
1
.3

7
1
0
.4

2
9
.8

9
.7

1
8

7
.5

R
e
d

5
 N

o
rt

h
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

L
o
n
d
o
n

B
o
ro

u
g

h
s

H
Y
1
4

5
 (

N
I 

1
4
5
) 

A
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

d
is

a
b
il
it
ie

s
 i
n
 s

e
tt

le
d
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

4
7
.2

%
H

ig
h

6
.7

%
3
6
.0

%
4
5
.6

%
6
8
.7

%
6

8
.7

%
6

5
.0

%
G

re
e
n

L
A
P
s

H
Y
4
1

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 
7
0
.1

%
H

ig
h

7
4
.4

%
7
5
.6

%
7
6
.4

%
7
6
.3

%
7

6
.3

%
1

9
7

5
.0

%
G

re
e
n

L
A
P
s

1
6
 T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

to
ta

l 
o
f 

3
1
5
0
 r

ec
ei

v
in

g
 a

 p
er

so
n

al
 b

u
d

g
et

, 
an

 i
n
cr

ea
se

 o
f 

2
0
7
2
p
er

so
n
al

 b
u
d
g
et

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 s

in
ce

 t
h
e 

1
0
7
8
 r

ec
o
rd

ed
 a

s 
at

 3
0

th
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1

2
 a

n
d
 a

b
o

v
e 

av
er

ag
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

g
ro

u
p
 a

s 
at

 

Q
3
 (

5
6
.8

%
) 

. 
1
7
 F

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 2
0

1
1

 C
en

su
s 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
 e

st
im

at
es

 w
er

e 
re

v
is

ed
 a

n
d
 t

ee
n

ag
e 

co
n

ce
p

ti
o
n

 r
at

es
 w

er
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

. 
T

h
e 

ra
te

 f
o

r 
2
0
1

0
 w

as
 a

d
ju

st
ed

 f
ro

m
 6

4
.7

 t
o
 4

9
.2

 p
er

 1
,0

0
0
. 

1
8
 H

ar
in

g
ey

 h
as

 t
h

e 
2

n
d

 h
ig

h
es

t 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

d
el

ay
s 

p
er

 1
0
0

,0
0
0
 p

o
p
u

la
ti

o
n
 a

m
o

n
g

st
 t

h
e 

5
 N

o
rt

h
 C

en
tr

al
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 B
o

ro
u
g
h

s.
 O

u
r 

N
o
n

 a
cu

te
 D

T
O

C
 r

at
e 

is
 h

ig
h

er
 t

h
an

 o
u
r 

ac
u

te
 r

at
e 

1
9
 A

s 
at

 Q
3

 t
h

e 
av

er
ag

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
9

 b
o

ro
u
g
h

s 
th

at
 r

et
u

rn
ed

 a
 f

ig
u

re
 w

as
 7

9
%

. 

Page 68



9

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
t

y

Q
1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
r

m
a
n
c
e
 

is
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c

ti
o
n
 

o
f

T
ra

v
e

l

C
o
m

p
a

ra
to

r

G
ro

u
p

T
o
p

/B
e
s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il

e

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

li
v
in

g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
, 

w
it
h
 

o
r 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

H
Y
4
2

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

u
rs

in
g
 

c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
, 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

6
7
.2

3

L
o
w

1
8
.8

6
3
6
.5

7
6
0

6
4
.5

7
6

4
.6

7
2

.8
G

re
e
n

2
0

O
p
4
4

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

4
3
.6

%

H
ig

h

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
u
rv

e
y
 

5
6

.1
%

T
a
r
g

e
t

n
o

t

s
e
t

N
A
S
C
I

S
E
n
g
la

n
d

O
p
4
5

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

N
e
w

In
d
ic

a
to

r

H
ig

h

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
u
rv

e
y
 

3
9

%
T
a
r
g

e
t

n
o

t

s
e
t

N
/A

L
IE

G

1
3

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 

H
Y
4
6

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

rs
 

w
h
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 t

h
e
y
 

c
a
re

 f
o
r

N
e
w

In
d
ic

a
to

r

H
ig

h

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
u
rv

e
y
 

6
6

.4
%

T
a
r
g

e
t

n
o

t

s
e
t

N
/A

L
IE

G

1
3

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 

H
Y
5
0

L
e
a
v
in

g
 d

ru
g
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

fr
e
e
 o

f 
d
ru

g
(s

) 
o
f 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

1
8
.4

%

H
ig

h
1
7
.6

%
(J

u
ly

 

2
0
1
1
 t

o
 

Ju
n
e

2
0
1
2
)

1
7
.4

%
(O

c
t

2
0
1
1

to
 S

e
p
t

2
0
1
2
)

1
8
.1

%
(J

a
n
  

to
 D

e
c
 

2
0
1
2
)

1
8
.3

%
(A

p
r 

to

M
a
r

2
0
1
3
)

1
8

.3
%

2
2

.3
%

G
re

e
n

fo
r

O
p
ia

te
 

u
s
e
rs

 

R
e
d
 f

o
r 

N
o
n
-

o
p
ia

te
 

u
s
e
rs

H
Y
9
6

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
4
-w

e
e
k
 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
 w

h
o
 

2
1
2
4

H
ig

h
3
3
6

2
2
3

1
6

8
6

2
1

1
9

4
0

C
o
n
fi
d

e
n
t

ta
rg

e
t 

L
A
P
s

2
0
 T

h
is

 r
el

at
es

 t
o
 1

1
3
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
ad

m
is

si
o

n
s 

in
 2

0
1
2

/1
3

. 
In

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
 H

ar
in

g
ey

’s
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

d
m

is
si

o
n

s 
w

er
e 

th
e 

8
th

 l
o

w
es

t 
in

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

3
rd

 l
o

w
es

t 
am

o
n

g
st

 c
o
m

p
ar

at
o

r 
b
o
ro

u
g
h

s.
 

2
1
 H

ar
in

g
ey

’s
 r

at
e 

p
er

 1
0
0

,0
0

0
 a

t 
3

1
5

.8
 f

o
r 

st
o
p

p
in

g
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 i

s 
b

el
o

w
 t

h
e 

av
er

ag
e 

o
f 

3
3
3

 f
o

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n

. 

Page 69



1
0

2
0
1
1
/1

2
P
o
la

ri
t

y

Q
1

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
2

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

R
e
f:

D
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n

V
a
lu

e

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
r

m
a
n
c
e
 

is
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
a
rg

e
t

T
ra

ff
ic

 

L
ig

h
t 

D
ir

e
c

ti
o
n
 

o
f

T
ra

v
e

l

C
o
m

p
a

ra
to

r

G
ro

u
p

T
o
p

/B
e
s
t 

Q
u
a
rt

il

e

A
b
o
v
e

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
e
lo

w

A
v
e
ra

g

e

B
o
tt

o

m Q
u
a
rt

il
e
 

a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 N

H
S
 S

to
p
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

w
il
l 
b
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v

e
d

H
Y
9
7

N
H

S
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
 –

O
ff
e
re

d

1
7
4
9
3

o
r

2
6
.6

%

o
ff
e
re

d
6
0
4
7
 o

r 

9
.2

%
c
o
m

p
le

t

e
d

H
ig

h

6
3
4
8

2
5
7
8

1
5
3
6

2
3
2
1

1
2

7
8

3
 

o
r
 2

3
%

o
ff

e
r
e
d

 
6

6
2

0
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d

1
1

0
9

5
G

re
e
n

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

H
Y
4
9

0

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
in

 t
h
e
 C

-C
a
rd

 

(c
o
n
tr

a
c
e
p
ti
o
n
) 

s
c
h
e
m

e

N
e
w

In
d
ic

a
to

r

H
ig

h
4
6
3

2
3
4

2
3
0

2
2

T
a
r
g

e
t

n
o

t

s
e
t

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

H
Y
4
9

1
In

fa
n
t 

m
o
rt

a
li
ty

 r
a
te

4
.8

(2
0
0
8
-

2
0
1
0
)

L
o
w

-
4
.3

(2
0
0
9
-

2
0
1
1
)

4
.5

G
r
e
e

n

L
o
n
d
o
n

2
2
 O

v
er

al
l 

as
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1

3
 t

h
er

e 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 2

1
6
3

 r
eg

is
tr

at
io

n
s 

o
n
 t

h
is

 s
ch

em
e 

ag
ai

n
st

 a
 t

ar
g

et
 o

f 
2
6
0

0
 

Page 70



No.

Key performance indicators
2012/13 

Target

2012/13

Out turn

2013/14 

Target
Target 2013/14

Collection 

Frequency

1.1 Narrowing the gap between the 

lowest achieving 20% in the Early 

Years Foundation Stage Profile and 

the rest

31.40% 32.50% 31%

Reduce the gap between the lowest 

achieving children at the Early Years 

Foundation Stage  and the rest to 31%

Annually

1.2
Achievement at level 4 or above in 

combined reading, writing and 

maths

77% 74% 78%

Increase the percentage of children achieving 

level 4 or above in combined reading, writing 

and maths at Key Stage 2 to 78%

Annually

1.3 Achievement of 5 or more A*- C 

grades at GCSE including English 

and Maths (Key stage 4) exceeds 

London average

56% 58.60% 63%

Increase the percentage of pupils achieving 5 

or more A*- C grades at GCSE including 

English and Maths (Key stage 4)  to 63%

Annually

1.4
Achieving Level 2 by 19 - 84% 86%

Increase the proportion of 19 year olds 

achieving Level 2 (GCSE A*-C) to 86%
Annually

1.5
Achieving Level 3 by 19 - 59% 61%

Increase the proportion of 19 year olds 

achieving Level 3 (A level) to 61% 
Annually

1.6 Percentage of 18 year olds not in 

education, employment or training 

(academic year 12-14)

8.90% 3% 3.60%
Reduce the percentage of 18 year olds not in 

education, employment or training to 3.6%
Monthly

1.7
 Percentage of 18 year olds in 

education, employment or training 

(academic year 12-14) - Not Known

8.60% 18.60% 9.50%

Reduce the percentage of 18 year olds for 

whom their education, employment or 

training status is not known to 9.5%

Monthly

1.8 Schools & Child care provision rated 

as good/outstanding

Target Not Set 71% Primary 

77% 

Secondary 

57% Children's 

Centres

(April 2013)

100% by 2016 Increase the proportion of schools and 

children's centres rated as good/outstanding  

to 100% by 2016

Quarterly/Six 

Monthly

No.

Key performance indicators
2012/13 

Target

2012/13

Out turn

2013/14 

Target
Target 2013/14

Collection 

Frequency

1.9
Percentage of vulnerable 2 year olds 

taking up their free early years place
80%

Ensure that 80% of vulnerable 2 year olds in 

the borough take up  their free early years 

place

Annually

1.10
Percentage of 3 and 4 year olds 

taking up their free early years place
90%

Ensure that 90% of vulnerable 3 and 4 year 

olds in the borough take up their free early 

years place

Annually

1.11  Readiness for school at five years -

Achievement of at least 78 points 

across the Early Years Foundation 

Stage

52.40% 56% 61%

Increase the percentage of children achieving 

at least 78 points across the Early Years 

Foundation Stage (at age five) to 61%

Annually

1.12
  Narrowing the gap between the 

lowest achieving 20% in the Early 

Years Foundation Stage Profile and 

the rest

31.40% 32.50% 31%

Reduce the gap between the lowest 

achieving children at the Early Years 

Foundation Stage  and the rest to 31%

Annually

1.13  Number of adoptions/ special 

guardianship orders
15 & 25 14 & 31 20 and 25

Complete 20 adoptions and 25 special 

guardianship orders by March 2014
Monthly

1.14 Average time between a child 

entering care and moving in with its 

adopted parents, for children who 

have been adopted

639 average 

threshold
661 637

Reduce time between a child entering care to 

moving in with prospective adoptors to less 

than 637 days 

Monthly/ 

Quarterly

1.15  Number and rate of children on 

protection plans
300

275 (rate 48 

per 100,000)

250 (rate of 43 

per 100,000)

Stabilise the number of children on child 

protection plans to 250 
Monthly

1.16  Number of families supported 

through the Families First 

programme

337
Support 337 families through the Families 

First programme
Quarterly

1.17 Early access to maternity services 

- 76.90%

80% at 12 

weeks by March 

2015

Increase the percentage of women with 

access to maternity services in 12 weeks to 

80% by March 2015

Quarterly

New indicator

New indicator

Outcome 1: Outstanding for all: enabling all Haringey children to thrive

Priority 1:    Work with schools, and early years and post 16 providers, to deliver high quality education for all 

Haringey children and young people (Lead service: CYPS)

Priority 2:   Enable every child and young person to thrive and achieve their potential 

(Lead service: CYPS)

New indicator

Page 71



No.

Key performance indicators
2012/13 

Target

2012/13

Out turn

2013/14 

Target
Target 2013/14

Collection 

Frequency

2.1 Domestic violence: proportion of 

referrals to the MARAC which are 

repeat referrals

5%

Ensure that the percentage of referrals to the 

MARAC which are repeat referrals is not 

more than 5%

Annually

2.2a Gangs: Gang Unit Project caseload
70 Work with 70 young people involved in gangs Quarterly

2.2b Gangs: proportion of the gang 

caseload who are engaged and 

retained

80%
Ensure that 80% of the gang caseload are 

engaged and retained
Quarterly

2.3 Number of offenders in the 

Integrated Offender Management 

cohort

- 70 130

Increase the number of offenders in the 

Integrated Offender Management cohort from 

70 to 310 over 4 years (60 per year) 

Quarterly

2.4
 Youth re-offending rate 43% 47% 40%

Reduce re-offending amongst 0-19 year olds 

to no more than 40%
Quarterly

2.5
Community confidence in dealing 

with crime and anti-social behaviour 

(percentage of residents who feel 

the council and police are dealing 

with crime and anti-social behaviour 

effectively

- 54% 59%

Increase the percentage of residents who 

feel the council and police are dealing with 

crime and anti-social behaviour effectively to 

59%

Annually

2.6
Anti-social behaviour- Reduce 

incidents of reported ASB
5%

Reduce incidents of reported anti-social 

behaviour by 5% year on year for four years
Quarterly

No.

Key performance indicators
2012/13 

Target

2012/13

Out turn

2013/14 

Target
Target 2013/14

Collection 

Frequency

2.7
Proportion of children referred to 

social services seen within 10 days
95%

Ensure that 95% of children referred to social 

services are seen within 10 days
Monthly

2.8 Proportion of assessments 

completed within 45 working days
85%

Ensure that 85% of assessments are 

completed within 45 working days
Monthly

2.9 Percentage of looked after children 

placed more than 20 miles from 

Haringey

-

20% up from 

17% in 

2011/12

16%

Reduce the proportion of looked after 

children placed more than 20 miles from 

Haringey to 16%

Monthly/ 

Quarterly

2.10
Percentage of children who cease to 

be subject to a child protection plan 

whose child protection plan lasted 2 

years or more

7% 7% 7%

Ensure that no more than  7% of children 

subject to a child protection plan have a child 

protection plan lasting 2 years or more

Monthly

2.11
Stability of placements of looked 

after children – number of moves
11% 7.20% 10%

Ensure that no more than 10% of looked 

after children have three or more placements 

in the year

Monthly

2.12
The proportion of people who use 

Adult Services who feel safe and 

secure

- 83% 85%

Increase the proportion of adult social care 

users who state that the services they use 

make them feel safe and secure to 85%

Annually

No.

Key performance indicators
2012/13 

Target

2012/13

Out turn

2013/14 

Target
Target 2013/14

Collection 

Frequency

2.13 Number of parks with green flag 

status
- 16 16

Maintain green flag status for 16 Haringey 

parks
Annually

2.14
Proportion of parks inspected that 

are graded at A or B standard
65%

Ensure that 65% of parks inspected are 

graded to a high standard of cleanliness (A or 

B)

Quarterly

2.15

 Improved street and environmental 

cleanliness levels of: Litter
8% 8% 8%

Ensure that the proportion of land with 

unacceptable level of litter does not exceed 

8%  
Monthly

2.16

Improved street and environmental 

cleanliness: Detritus
16% 8% 13%

Ensure that the proportion of land with 

unacceptable level of detritus does not 

exceed 13%  
Monthly

2.17
Number of fly-tips reported by 

residents
-

To be 

confirmed
480

Reduce the number of fly tips reported by 

residents to 480 per month in 2013/14
Monthly

Priority 4:  Safeguard children and adults from abuse and neglect wherever possible and deal with it appropriately and 

effectively if it does occur 

New indicator

New indicator

New indicator 

(single assessments introduced 

Jun 2013)

Priority 5:  Provide a cleaner, greener environment and safer streets 

(Lead service: P&S)

New indicator

New indicator

Outcome 2: Safety and wellbeing for all: a place where everyone feels safe and has a good quality of life

Priority 3:   Make Haringey the safest borough in London 

(Lead service: P&S)

Page 72



2.18

Percentage reduction of people 

killed or seriously injured  
-

Adult KSI =78 

(96 2011/12)

5% annual 

reduction

Reduce the number of people killed or 

seriously injured on Haringey roads by 5% 

each year (based on a 3 year rolling average)

Quarterly in 

arrears

No.

Key performance indicators
2012/13 

Target

2012/13

Out turn

2013/14 

Target
Target 2013/14

Collection 

Frequency

2.19  Under 18 conception rates 

(conceptions per 1,000) for 15 to 17 

year olds

- 36.2 28.7 by 2015

Reduce Haringey's under 18 conception rate 

to the rate for London by 2015 (London rate 

28.7 per 1,000 in 2011)

Quarterly

2.20 Childhood obesity rates - reception 

(4-5 year olds)
- 11.80% 11.80%

Halt the rise in childhood obesity amongst 4-

5 year olds
Quarterly

2.21 Childhood obesity rates - Year 6 (10-

11 year olds)
- 23.80% 23.80%

Halt the rise in childhood obesity amongst 10-

11 years olds
Quarterly

2.22 Cardiovascular mortality rate (per 

100,000)
- - 76

Reduce cardiovascular mortality to 76 per 

100,000
Annually

2.23 Alcohol-related hospital admissions 

(per 100,000)

- 2,253 

(2011/12)

2523 Ensure that alcohol-related hospital 

admissions do not increase by more than 6%

Annually

2.24 Proportion of people using Adult 

Services who receive self-directed 

support, and those receiving direct 

payments

70% 68% 70%
Increase the proportion of adult social care 

users in receipt of a Personal Budget to 70%
Monthly

2.25 Proportion of people who use Adult 

Services and have control over their 

daily life

- 67.60% 75%

Increase the percentage of adult social care 

users reporting that they have control over 

their daily life to 75%

Annually

2.26
Proportion of adults with a learning 

disability who live in their own home 

or with their family

65% 68.70% 80%

Increase the proportion of adults with 

learning disabilities living in settled 

accommodation to 80%

Monthly/ 

Quarterly

2.27
Number of clients aged 65 and 

above achieving independence 

through rehabilitation

85% 88.40% 90%

Increase the proportion of clients aged 65 

and over above achieving independence 

through rehabilitation to 90%

Annually

2.28 Proportion of adults in contact with 

secondary mental health services 

living independently, with or without 

support

75% 76.30% 80%

Increase the proportion of adults in contact 

with mental health services living 

independently to 80%

Monthly/ 

Quarterly

2.29 Percentage of people with learning 

disabilities who received a health 

check

- - 86%

Increase the number of people with learning 

disabilities who receive an annual health 

check to 86%  

Quarterly

No.

Key performance indicators
2012/13 

Target

2012/13

Out turn

2013/14 

Target
Target 2013/14

Collection 

Frequency

3.0
Percentage of working population 

claiming job seekers allowance
- 5.30% 4.80%

Reduce the proportion of working population 

claiming job seekers allowance by 10%
Quarterly

3.1 Number of young people supported 

into work  
65

Support 65 young people into work by March 

2014
Quarterly

3.2
Number of apprenticeships created 

for Haringey residents under 25  
100

Create 100 apprenticeships for Haringey 

residents under 25 years by March 2014
Quarterly

3.3
Number of people supported into 

work by the Jobs for Haringey 

programme, 30% youth  

300

Support 300 people into work through Jobs 

for Haringey programme, 30% of whom will 

be young people

Quarterly

3.4 Number of people supported into 

work through Haringey HUB/DWP 

response to the impact of the 

Benefit Cap  

80

Support 80 people into work through 

Haringey HUB and work with the DWP in 

response to  the impact of the Benefit Cap

Quarterly

Priority 6:  Support health and wellbeing for all  

(Lead services: CYPS, A&H and PH)

Outcome 3: Opportunities for all: a successful place for everyone

Priority 7:  Drive economic growth in which everyone can participate

(Lead service: P&S)  

New indicator

New indicator

New indicator

New indicator

Priority 8:  Deliver regeneration at priority locations across the borough (Lead service: P&S)

Progress to be measured through project milestones (see corporate plan for details)

Page 73



No.

Key performance indicators
2012/13 

Target

2012/13

Out turn

2013/14 

Target
Target 2013/14

Collection 

Frequency

3.5 Number of affordable housing units 

delivered by the Council and 

housing associations 

410 376 410
Deliver 820 housing units annually, 50% of 

which should be affordable housing.
Annually

3.6
Net additional homes provided - 600

Provide more homes by building or 

converting 300 - 600 new homes
Annually

3.7 Proportion of expired mandatory 

HMOs re-licensed
- - 90%

Re-license 90% of mandatory HMO’s where 

licenses have expired within year
Annually

3.8
Number of additional HMOs 

licensed within the Additional HMO 

Licensing Scheme in Harringay ward

- - 100

License an additional 100 Properties within 

the 'Additional HMO Licensing Scheme' in 

Harringay ward

Quarterly

3.9
Number of homeless acceptances 

per 1,000 population
- - To be agreed

Prevent homelessness - reduce homeless 

acceptances to XX per 1,000 population
Quarterly

3.10  Number of households in 

temporary accommodation

3,000 2832 2,800 Reduce the number of households in 

temporary accomodation to 2,800 by March 

2104

Monthly/ 

Quarterly

No.

Key performance indicators
2012/13 

Target

2012/13

Out turn

2013/14 

Target
Target 2013/14

Collection 

Frequency

4.1
Proportion of calls to the call centre 

answered (of calls presented)
90% 63% 90%

Increase the proportion of calls answered 

(call centre) to 90%
Monthly

4.2 Proportion of calls to the call centre 

answered within 30 seconds (of 

calls presented)

70% 17% 70%

Ensure that 70% of calls to the call centre 

are answered within 30 seconds (of calls 

presented)

Monthly

4.3
Percentage of complaints upheld by 

the Ombudsman where they have 

found no fault following investigation

-

48% 

(26 out of 54 

local estimate)

70% (Top 

Quartile for 

London 

2011/12)

Increase the proportion of complaints upheld 

by the Ombudsman where no fault was 

found following investigation to 70%

Quarterly/ 

Annually

4.4 Percentage of personal callers to 

Customer Service Centres seen 

within 20 minutes

70% 69% 75%

Reduce waiting times at Customer Services 

Centres so that 75% of personal callers are 

seen in 20 mins

Monthly

4.5
Number of transactions through the 

council's website (to be defined) 
To be agreed

Increase access to Council services through 

the web
Quarterly

4.6 Increase in number of visits to 

Haringey libraries
-

10% by 

2015/16

Increase visits to Haringey libraries by 10% 

by 2015/16

Quarterly/ 

Annually

4.7
Percentage of principal roads where 

maintenance should be considered 
- 17% 7%

Reduce the percentage of Principal roads 

where maintenance should be considered to 

7% 

Annually

4.8 Percentage of minor planning 

applications processed within 8 

weeks 

65% 57% 65%

Increase the percentage of minor planning 

applications processed within 8 weeks to 

65%

Monthly

4.9 Percentage of other planning 

applications processed within 8 

weeks 

80% 68% 80%

Increase the percentage of other planning 

applications processed within 8 weeks to 

80%

Monthly

4.10 Percentage of major planning 

applications processed within 13 

weeks 

60% 63% 65%

Increase the percentage of major planning 

applications processed within 13 weeks to 

65%

Monthly

4.11 Percentage of households returning 

completed electoral registration 

forms

- - 90%

Increase the proportion of residents returning 

completed electoral registration forms to 

90%

Annually

4.12
 Percentage of staff receiving 

performance appraisals
-

To be 

confirmed
95%

Increase the percentage of staff receiving 

performance appraisals to 95%
Annually

4.13 Percentage of council tax due that 

was collected 
95% 95.03% 92.50%

Ensure that 92.5% of council tax is collected 

in year  
Monthly

4.14
 Percentage of household waste 

recycled 
31.70% 32.11% 35.40%

Increase the proportion of household waste 

recycled to 35.4% (to be reveiwed) 
Monthly

4.15  Delayed transfers of care from 

hospital
7.5 9.8 8.0

Reduce the rate of delayed transfers of care 

to 8.0 per 100,000 population 
Monthly

Priority 11:  Get the basics right for everyone

Priority 12:  Strive for excellent value for money 

Outcome 4: A better Council: delivering responsive, high quality services; encouraging residents who 

are able to help themselves

Additional basket of unit cost indicators to be added by end June 2013

Priority 9:  Ensure that everyone has a decent place to live

Priority 10:  Ensure the whole Council works in a customer focussed way  (Lead service: All)

Page 74



Appendix 3: Emerging Policy Issues 2013 onwards 
 

Priority 1: Work with local businesses to create jobs for local people 

 
Heseltine report on growth: The Government has published its response (“Government’s response 
to the Heseltine review”) to Lord Heseltine’s report on growth (“No Stone Unturned in pursuit of 
growth”) which was published in October 2012. 

The Mayor of London has endorsed the findings of a new report published by the independent 
London Finance Commission, chaired by Professor Tony Travers. The report outlines a 
comprehensive package of devolution measures to give Londoners a more direct say over a greater 
proportion of taxes raised in their city. It concludes that London government could better promote its 
own economic development. 

The Mayor of London has also announced the publication of the London Enterprise Panel’s (LEP) 
Jobs and Growth Plan for London. It aims to deliver jobs and growth for London through: 

Skills and employment: to ensure Londoners have the skills to compete for and sustain London’s 
jobs;  
Micro, small and medium sized enterprises: to support and grow London’s businesses;  
Digital creative, science and technology: for the capital to be recognised globally as world 
leading hub; for science, technology and innovation - creating new jobs and growth; and  
Infrastructure: to keep London moving and functioning. 

 
The Council’s plans for economic growth will need to take all of the above into account. 

Raising the Participation Age: From Summer 2013, all young people up until the end of the 
academic year in which they turn 17 will be required to participate in education or training. From 
2015, this requirement will apply until their 18th birthday. This raising of the participation age places 
new responsibilities on local authorities, including two new duties: to promote the participation of 16 
and 17 year olds, and to identify those 16 and 17 year olds who are not participating. 

 

Priority 2: Deliver regeneration to key areas of the borough 

 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) took full effect from 27 March 2013: 

The framework is based on a ‘presumption in favour of sustainable development’. From now, the 
NPPF takes precedence where the local plan is ‘absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of-
date’. An up-to-date adopted local plan is therefore critical for local planning authorities (LPAs) – 
but 51 per cent do not have one. 
There is a concern that LPAs without a plan cannot demonstrate a 5-year ‘deliverable’ supply of 
specific housing sites (plus a 5 or 20 per cent buffer) – as set out in the NPPF – and will be 
vulnerable to applications for housing development on land where the community does not want 
it, especially on greenfield sites where development costs are lower. 
Robust evidence, especially on housing need and market housing, is vital – planning inspectors 
are looking for a ‘compelling link between what the evidence states and what the plan says’. 
There remains a tension between the pressure to significantly increase the development of new 
housing nationally, and localism and the right of communities to shape where they live. 

 

Priority 3: Tackle the housing challenges 

Housing and the budget: Budget March 2013 announcements 

Help to Buy: a commitment to significantly expand the Help to Buy scheme to total £3.5 billion. Help 
to Buy will comprise of two schemes: ‘equity loan’ where the Government will loan individuals up to 

Page 75



20% of the value of new homes and ‘mortgage guarantee’ with lenders incentivised to make 
mortgages available to those with only small deposits. The schemes will be open to existing 
homeowners and first time buyers. 

Right to Buy: Further measures designed to encourage more council housing tenants to exercise 
their right to buy. From 25 March 2013, the cash cap in London will be increased from £75,000 to 
£100,000. This change will be applied to those tenants with ‘live’ applications. The eligibility criteria 
for those tenants who can exercise their right to buy will fall from the 5 years at present to just 3 
years of tenancy before being able to purchase. Local government will play a role in informing 
tenants of the changes to the cap and the eligibility criteria. 

‘Build to Rent’ and Affordable Homes Guarantee: Expansion of the Build to Rent fund will provide 
either equity or loan finance to enable the development of more homes. The budget doubled the 
affordable homes guarantee, providing an additional £225 million, estimated to enable the delivery of 
a further 15,000 affordable homes in England by 2015. 

Social rents: From 2015/16, Government will set out social rent policy providing certainty to social 
landlords to 2025. Government will take steps towards allowing social landlords to charge market 
rent to tenants with an income of over £60,000 per annum. A consultation will help examine how this 
will work in practice; the expectation will be that tenants declare their income. 

Pension investment rules: Commitment to examine changes to pension investment rules in the near 
future, to encourage conversion of unused and under occupied commercial space into residential 
properties, in particular in town centres and high street areas. 

 

Priority 4:  Improve school standards and outcomes for young people 

 

Revised statutory guidance on adoption will come into effect on 1 July 2013 to support the 
amendments to the Adoption Agencies Regulations which come into force on that date. The reforms 
include the introduction of an “adoption passport” showing adopters what support is available to 
them, and a new duty on local authorities to make this information explicitly clear to potential 
adopters. 

From April 2013, the Government implemented a further reduction in Early Intervention Grant 
funding levels. The Early Intervention Grant has been rolled into general local government funding 
allocations together with a reduction in resources. It is no longer possible to separately indentify 
funding for children’s centres. Funding allocated for the delivery of the two-year old programme 
moved to the Dedicated School Grant from April 2013. 

 

Priority 5:  Deliver responsive, high quality services to residents 

 

Local authority budgets in 2014/15 are set to be cut by a further one per cent, a reduction of £220 
million, but the Government has protected local government and police from the one per cent cut to 
be applied to most other departments in 2013/14. The reduction in 2014/15 comes on top of the two 
per cent, or £445 million, reduction announced in the 2012 autumn statement. 

The Comprehensive Spending Review 2013 will consider public sector resources from 2015/16 
onwards. Downward forecasts of economic growth and lack of progress on deficit reduction will 
mean that the Council will be facing further rounds of cuts beyond those originally envisaged. 

The Government will further develop community budgets, outlined in the 2013 budget, facilitated 
by a multi-agency network. 

Mainstreaming equality in procurement was published by the Equality and Human Rights 
Commission in March 2013. The guidance is intended to support councils in complying with the law 

Page 76



in a proportionate and cost effective way. It explains how incorporating equalities objectives in 
commissioning and procurement can help buy better outcomes for service users, achieve value for 
money, and help meet corporate objectives. 

The Cabinet Office has published The Choice Charter setting out government principles to increase 
choice in public services and what users should receive from their services. Three Choice 
Frameworks – in adult social care, early years and education – have also been published with this 
charter. 

 

Community Safety 

 

The Home Office has published its response to the draft Anti–Social Behaviour Bill focusing on 
better handling of ASB calls from the public; a coordinated approach to high-risk cases; changes to 
the county courts; and community harm statements. 

The Ministry of Justice has consulted on Transforming Youth Custody: Putting education at the 
heart of detention. The proposals aim to reform and intensify the role of education and skills 
provision within youth custody. The consultation looks to programmes such as free schools and 
academies for inspiration and possible involvement, and invites proposals on how to implement a 
network of Secure Colleges, which is central to the consultation’s vision. 

The Government has published plans to change the way in which offenders are managed in the 
community. Transforming Rehabilitation set out the Justice Secretary’s “top priority” – to reduce 
rates of reoffending and improve value for money. The delivery of offender management services will 
impact across local authority services and responsibilities. Proposals included: 

Opening up probation services to competition with ‘payment by results’ in order to reduce rates 
of reoffending and ensure efficiency savings. 
16 commissioned contracts across England and Wales with independent providers. 

The outcome is awaited of a consultation on Improving the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime 
setting out the Government’s plans to reform the Victims’ Code to give victims clearer entitlements 
from criminal justice agencies and to better tailor service to individual need. 

 

Health and social care 

 
The Law Commission report on Adult Social Care, May 2011, recommended a three level 
structure containing new statute, regulations and a code of practice. It includes safeguarding adults 
“wherever practicable from abuse and neglect”; and to “use the least restrictive solution where it is 
necessary to interfere with the individual’s rights and freedom of action wherever ... practicable”. 

Transforming care: a national response to Winterbourne View Hospital responded to the abuse 
revealed at Winterbourne View hospital, and set out an action plan to transform care and support for 
all people with learning disabilities and challenging behaviour. 

New criteria in the Adult social care outcomes framework 2013/14 against which councils have to 
report progress include: 

a measure of how services improve ‘people’s experience of integrated care’ 
effectiveness of ‘reablement’ services, helping older hospital leavers to readjust to home 
quality of dementia care services 
extent to which care users report having ‘as much social contact as they would like’. 

The Care Bill, published in May 2013, builds on the draft Care and Support Bill published last year. 
All the major elements of the draft bill remain – wellbeing, prevention, carers’ rights, choice and 
personalisation. 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 7 

 

 

Report for: 
Adults & Health Scrutiny 
Panel 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: 

 
Joint Strategic Plan (Winterbourne View Concordat Delivery 
Plan) and Achievement of Care Reviews    
 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

 
Mun Thong Phung, Director of Adult and Housing Services; and 
Sarah Price, Chief Operating Officer, Haringey CCG. 
 

 

Lead Officer: 

 
Beverley Tarka, Acting Deputy Director, Adult and Community 
Services; and 
Tristan Brice LD/MH Commissioner, Haringey CCG. 
 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: All 

 
Report for: Non-key decision  

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 This report provides a summary update on the implementation and progress of the 

Winterbourne View Concordat Delivery Plan, against targets set by the Department 
of Health’s Winterbourne View Review Concordat Programme of Action. The Health 
and Wellbeing Board are asked to approve the latest version of the Haringey 
Winterbourne Review Joint Action Plan as set out at Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1 Haringey CCG, in collaboration with Haringey Council, has developed a joint work 

plan in response to the Winterbourne View Review (Appendix 1), which was 
presented and agreed at the shadow Health and Wellbeing Board in February of 
this year. This is overseen and monitored by the Winterbourne View Project Board, 
made up of senior management and clinical representatives from Haringey’s 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), the Local Authority, the Barnet, Enfield and 
Haringey Mental Health Trust (BEHMHT) and Whittington Health. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 79



 

Page 2 of 7 

 

2.2 The Department of Health has supported the establishment of an NHS England and 
Local Government Association led Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Board, 
who have requested for a stock take report detailing the progress that Haringey has 
made to date against objectives set out. This report is attached as Appendix 2 and 
will be submitted to the Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Board (5th July 
2013).  

 
3. Recommendations 

 
3.1 That members of the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel comment on and note the 

contents of this report. 
 

4. Alternative options considered 
There are no alternative options. The DH concordant made it a requirement to carry 
out these actions.  
 

5. Background information 
 

5.1 On 31st May 2011, an undercover investigation by the BBC’s Panorama programme 
revealed criminal abuse by staff of patients at Winterbourne View Hospital near 
Bristol. This resulted in the closure of Winterbourne View and the placement of the 
remaining residents in other settings. The police launched their own investigations, 
with 11 criminal convictions, and the Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspected all 
hospitals and homes operated by Winterbourne View’s owners (Castlebeck Care) 
and conducted a wider “health check”, inspecting 150 learning disability services 
across England. 
 

5.2 In addition, the Government set up its own Review, led by the Department of Health 
(DH) to investigate the failings surrounding Winterbourne View, understand what 
lessons we should be learning to prevent similar abuse and explore and 
recommend wider action to improve quality of care for vulnerable groups. An interim 
report was published in June 2012, followed by the full Government response to 
Winterbourne View in December 2012. 
 

5.3 A Concordat between commissioners and providers of health care and Local 
Government agencies was developed by the Department of Health following the 
Winterbourne Review. The Concordat is a commitment to change and improve 
services delivered to people with learning difficulties associated with challenging 
behaviour.  

 
5.4 The document sets out its vision for a whole systems change by stating: ‘all parts of 

the system – commissioner, providers, the workforce, regulators government, all 
agencies, councils and providers, the NHS and the police - have a role to play in 
driving up standards for this group of people. There should be zero tolerance of 
abuse or neglect.’ 

 
 

Page 80



 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 
5.5 Given the extent of the failures of the health and social care system revealed in the 

Government’s Winterbourne View Report, there was need for local commissioning 
organisations to take stock of the current commissioning arrangements for people 
with learning disabilities. Haringey Council and Haringey CCG needs to assure 
themselves that its commissioning and contracting framework for Learning 
Disabilities is robust and meets with the expectations and requirements outlined in 
the Winterbourne View Report, the Concordat and the NHS Mandate.  

 
5.6 The Winterbourne View Report, the Concordat and the Circular from Sir David 

Nicholson outline the immediate steps that the local authority and Haringey CCG 
need to take as commissioning organisations.  

 
5.7 Step one required all CCGs to put in place a register for people with learning 

disabilities or autism funded by the NHS for their care needs, and submit this to 
NHS England by the end of March 2013. Haringey CCG met this deadline. The 
register identified that 81 clients are fully funded by Haringey CCG, and 38 clients 
are jointly funded by the CCG and the Local Authority.  

 
5.8 Step two requires all CCGs to have reviewed the care of all people with a learning 

disability or autism in inpatient beds, and agree a personal care plan for each 
individual based on their and their families' needs and agreed outcomes. The 
review needs to include a personalised care plan, evidence of engagement and 
agreement with families and carers, discharge plan (Including estimated discharge 
date), named care co-ordinator, an identified lead CCG, date of comprehensive 
physical health check and identified independent advocacy to support move on. All 
26 clients were assessed by the deadline of May 31st 2013.  

 
5.9 Step three requires all CCGs to facilitate the transition of clients inappropriately 

placed in hospital to move to community-based support as quickly as possible, but 
no later than 1st June 2014.  For the 26 clients reviewed thus far, two clients 
transitioned back to the community in April 2013, 9 clients have estimated discharge 
dates (May - December 2013) and 15 clients require further treatment in the current 
setting before commencing the transition process. All clients will be regularly 
reviewed. Appendix 3 gives a summary of estimated discharge dates for clients.  

 
5.10 Clinical and operational personnel are being drawn from Haringey Learning 

Disabilities Partnership and the NHS Continuing Health Care team to support the 
process. The Haringey Learning Disability Partnership was established in October 
2003 pursuant to Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006. This has been 
a partnership between the Local Authority and the NHS for the provision of LD 
services. The current Section 75 agreement ceases end of June 2013. The future 
Section 75 will include processes for monitoring admissions into inpatient hospitals 
and facilitating timely discharge.  

 
 
 

Page 81



 

Page 4 of 7 

 

5.11 As people are being moved back to their local community, there is ongoing 
assessment of the resources needed to provide accommodation, clinical and other 
holistic opportunities.  

 
5.12 A reflective learning workshop is planned for September 2013 and will engage 

individuals, families and all stakeholders, including multi-agency safeguarding 
representatives.  

 
5.13 Winterbourne is a standing agenda item on the Haringey Learning Disabilities 

Partnership Board with carers, self advocates, voluntary sector, police 
representative, CCG and local authority officers represented on the Board.  
Meetings are held bi-monthly. Winterbourne is a standing agenda item at the 
Learning Disabilities Executive, of which Haringey CCG is a partner. 

  
5.14    In response to a request for a stock take report detailing the progress that Harigney 

has made to date against the Winterbourne concordant targets a report will be 
submitted to the Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Board on the 5th July 2013.  

 
5.15  Highlights of this report are as follows: 
 
5.15.1 Local arrangements for the joint delivery of this programme between the Local 

Authority and Haringey CCG have been developed and agreed by the Health and 
Well Being Board; 

 
5.15.2 Strong governance arrangements are in place with the joint action plan a standing 

agenda item at HLDP Board, HLDP executive, as well as regular briefings to 
Cabinet and elected Members. Update reports are presented to the Safeguarding 
Adults Member Panel and the Multi-agency Safeguarding Adults Board. An update 
on implementing the recommendations of the Concordat was presented to the CCG 
Quality Committee in April 2013; 

 
5.15.3 Following a comprehensive review of all NHS funded LD clients, it was identified 

that 26 clients fulfilled the Winterbourne View Review criteria. All 26 clients have 
received a comprehensive review of their current needs; 

 
5.15.4 An assessment pathway and protocols for care management and safeguarding has 

been developed;  
 
5.15.5 Other key partners, such as Housing, are working with us to develop innovative 

commissioning practice, thus for example through a protocol arrangement with 
Homes for Haringey (Arm’s Length Management Organisation) ALMO, the Learning 
Disability Partnership has acquired four houses and maisonettes which are being 
re-developed. This arrangement has been negotiated with and is part of the 
Council’s response to Winterbourne;  

 
5.15.6  Section 75 arrangements between CCG commissioners and the Local Authority are 

being reviewed and renewed in order to ensure efficient use of funds; 

Page 82



 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 
5.15.7 A multi-disciplinary project team reports to the Winterbourne View Board; 
 
5.15.8 A communication and consultation plan has been developed. This is focused on 

involving families, individuals and advocates in very stage of the process. As well as 
face to face meetings, questionnaires have been developed to capture people’s 
experience of past and current practice; and  

 
5.15.9 A health hub website is in development and a reflective learning workshop with 

families planned for September 2013. 
 
6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 
 
6.1 The costs of the action taken to date have been met within Health and Council 

budgets including the LD Pooled Budget.  Funding has been identified within the 
HRA capital programme for the property costs of the development of the new 
Supported Living Schemes and from the Community Capacity Grant for project 
management and other associated costs.   

 
6.2 The costs of the current hospital placements are fully met by Health and the transfer 

of clients into community settings creates a financial risk to the Council unless 
agreement is reached over appropriate funding for these new placements.  NHS 
England has said that local bodies should agree a “financial strategy in the medium 
term that is built on current cost, future investment and potential for savings.”  This 
needs to be developed in Haringey as a matter of urgency.     

 
6.3 In addition to the cost of the placements there will be an impact on other Council 

and Health services for these clients.  The new arrangements and ways of working 
should be reflected in the revision of the section 75 budget to ensure that 
appropriate funding is allocated to meet client needs.   

 
7. Head of Legal Services and legal implications 
 
7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on this report. There are no 
 specific legal implications arising from this report. 
 
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
8.1 This report addresses the needs of people with learning disability or autism to 

ensure that the lessons learned from the Winterbourne View investigations and 
reviews are used to improve outcomes for these, some of the most vulnerable 
groups in our society. Learning disability is a category of disability, and as such, is 
one of the characteristics protected by section 4 of the Equality Act 2010. This 
means that in addition to its safeguarding duty to people with learning disability or 
autism, the Council has a public sector equality duty to ensure among other things, 
that due regard is given to their needs and to ensure that they do not suffer undue 
detriment as a result of their disability.  

Page 83



 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 
9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
9.1 Not applicable. 
 
10. Policy Implication 

 
10.1 The following section lists the links that set the policy context relevant to this paper. 

 
10.2 Department of Health (2012). Transforming care: A national response to 

Winterbourne View Hospital. 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1273
10/final-report.pdf.pdf  
 

10.3 Department of Health (2012). DH Winterbourne View Review Concordat: 
Programme of Action. 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1273
12/Concordat.pdf.pdf 

 
10.4 Department of Health (2012). Transforming Care: A National Response to 

Winterbourne View Hospital 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1273
31/Letter-on-the-national-response-to-Winterbourne-View-Hospital.pdf.pdf 

 
10.5 The Health and Wellbeing Strategy is Haringey’s overarching plan to improve the 

health and wellbeing of children and adults in our borough and to reduce health 
inequalities. 
 

10.6 The relevant priorities in the Strategy that refer to the content of this report are 
priorities 2 & 3: 

 
 A reduced gap in life expectancy 

• Support people with long term conditions (LTC) 
 
 Improved mental health and wellbeing 

• Promote the emotional wellbeing of children and young people 

• Support independent living 

• Address common mental health problems among adults 

• Support people with severe and enduring mental health needs 
 
11. Reasons for Decision  
 
11.1 Not applicable. 
 
12. Use of Appendices 

 
12.1 Appendix 1: Winterbourne View Response Joint Action Plan 

Page 84



 

Page 7 of 7 

 

12.2 Appendix 2: Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Programme: Stock Take 
12.3 Appendix 3: Progress of Reviews and Estimated Discharge Dates 
 
13. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
13.1 See Section 10 above. 
 
 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

Appendix 1 
Haringey Council’s Adult Social Care Response to the Winterbourne View Review

Programme of Action and Work Planning
 

Introduction  
 

In response to the recently published Winterbourne View Review (Concordat: Programme of Action, December 2012) and in line 

with the existing commissioning work streams and planned redesign of services’ in Haringey, a single over overarching work pl

has been developed.    

 

It is also intended that the attached work plan merges the Councils’ existing work commitments and planned intentions regardi

how and in what form services will be delivered to Adults with a Learning Disability and people who challenge

 

Winterbourne View Review  
 

The Winterbourne View Review has resulted in a

Government agencies.  

 

The Concordat is a commitment to change and improve services 

sets out its vision for a whole systems change by stating: 

 

‘All parts of the system –commissioner, providers, the workforce, regulators government, all agencies, councils and providers, the 

NHS and the police - have a role to play in driving up standards for this group of people. There should be zero tolerance of abuse 

(DH Winterbourne View Review: Concordat: Programme of Action 2012

 

Action Plan     

Haringey Council’s Adult Social Care Response to the Winterbourne View Review
Programme of Action and Work Planning 

In response to the recently published Winterbourne View Review (Concordat: Programme of Action, December 2012) and in line 

with the existing commissioning work streams and planned redesign of services’ in Haringey, a single over overarching work pl

It is also intended that the attached work plan merges the Councils’ existing work commitments and planned intentions regardi

how and in what form services will be delivered to Adults with a Learning Disability and people who challenge

The Winterbourne View Review has resulted in a Concordat between commissioners and providers of health care and Local 

The Concordat is a commitment to change and improve services delivered to people with challenging behaviour.  The document 

sets out its vision for a whole systems change by stating:  

commissioner, providers, the workforce, regulators government, all agencies, councils and providers, the 

have a role to play in driving up standards for this group of people. There should be zero tolerance of abuse 

or neglect.’  
DH Winterbourne View Review: Concordat: Programme of Action 2012) 

     Page 1 
of 17 

Haringey Council’s Adult Social Care Response to the Winterbourne View Review 

In response to the recently published Winterbourne View Review (Concordat: Programme of Action, December 2012) and in line 

with the existing commissioning work streams and planned redesign of services’ in Haringey, a single over overarching work plan 

It is also intended that the attached work plan merges the Councils’ existing work commitments and planned intentions regarding 

how and in what form services will be delivered to Adults with a Learning Disability and people who challenge services in the future.  

oncordat between commissioners and providers of health care and Local 

delivered to people with challenging behaviour.  The document 

commissioner, providers, the workforce, regulators government, all agencies, councils and providers, the 

have a role to play in driving up standards for this group of people. There should be zero tolerance of abuse 

P
a
g
e
 8

7



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

The signatories of this Concordat have committed to a mandate that requires a complete commitment to joint working, which is 

drafted in the Concordat as:   

 

‘We commit to working together, with individuals and their families and with the groups that 

(DH Winterbourne View Review: Concordat: Programme of Action 2012)

 

This vision and mandate for change is support by a list of key actions and commitments that 

measured against.  

 

Work streams    

 

Adult Social Care’s commissioning, safeguarding and market development approach has for sometime recognised the need for 

change and has in recognition developed a number of work streams that will fit seamlessly with the approach, vision

commitments published in the Winterbourne View Review.  

 

People who use services, family carers, service providers and a wide range of professionals’ from multi disciplinary backgrou

have been and are invited to participate in Adult Socia

Many of which are currently organised and used to promote the return of people placed in residential services outside the Lon

Borough of Haringey.  

 

It is an aim within Adult Social care that family carers participate in reviews, work with multi agency review teams in making 

recommendations and with people who use services 

 

The focus of much of this work has been organised into work streams that includes safeguarding, service redesign, transformin

care, promoting independence, choice and the de

well specified service provision .        
Action Plan     

The signatories of this Concordat have committed to a mandate that requires a complete commitment to joint working, which is 

We commit to working together, with individuals and their families and with the groups that represent them, to deliver real change.’

(DH Winterbourne View Review: Concordat: Programme of Action 2012) 

This vision and mandate for change is support by a list of key actions and commitments that the signatory’s will be monitored and 

Adult Social Care’s commissioning, safeguarding and market development approach has for sometime recognised the need for 

change and has in recognition developed a number of work streams that will fit seamlessly with the approach, vision

commitments published in the Winterbourne View Review.   

People who use services, family carers, service providers and a wide range of professionals’ from multi disciplinary backgrou

have been and are invited to participate in Adult Social Care’s service reviews and commissioning and procurement processes.  

Many of which are currently organised and used to promote the return of people placed in residential services outside the Lon

care that family carers participate in reviews, work with multi agency review teams in making 

recommendations and with people who use services to help commission and remodel service provision within Haringey.   

The focus of much of this work has been organised into work streams that includes safeguarding, service redesign, transformin

care, promoting independence, choice and the de-commissioning of poor performing services and re-

     Page 2 
of 17 

The signatories of this Concordat have committed to a mandate that requires a complete commitment to joint working, which is 

nt them, to deliver real change.’ 

he signatory’s will be monitored and 

Adult Social Care’s commissioning, safeguarding and market development approach has for sometime recognised the need for 

change and has in recognition developed a number of work streams that will fit seamlessly with the approach, vision, mandate and 

People who use services, family carers, service providers and a wide range of professionals’ from multi disciplinary backgrounds 

l Care’s service reviews and commissioning and procurement processes.  

Many of which are currently organised and used to promote the return of people placed in residential services outside the London 

care that family carers participate in reviews, work with multi agency review teams in making 

help commission and remodel service provision within Haringey.    

The focus of much of this work has been organised into work streams that includes safeguarding, service redesign, transforming 

-commissioning of high-quality, 

P
a

g
e
 8

8



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

 

Strategic Approach   

 

To ensure the existing work commitments, strategy and commissioning plans seamlessly combine 

and aims stated in the Concordat, a work plan has been drafted that 

actions identified in the Concordat. 

 
Haringey Learning Disabilities Partnership
 
Haringey’s Joint Work Plan is in response to the Winterbourne 
 

• to review all people placed in out of borough hospital/Assessment and Treatment U

• to review all people in in-borough hospital/

• to respond immediately to any safeguarding concerns

• to plan for local high quality care including independent advocacy to support change 
to their local community; 

• to put in place independent monitoring advocacy for people not 
 
Once all reviews are completed by June
Safeguarding Adult Board Partnerships and 
the outcomes of the review. Each partner agency will be tasked to identify outcome measures, and performance improvements 
which will then be reported on at subsequent Safeguarding
 

 

 

Winterbourne View Project Board Members

 

Action Plan     

To ensure the existing work commitments, strategy and commissioning plans seamlessly combine with 

and aims stated in the Concordat, a work plan has been drafted that accounts for all the existing work commitments and key 

Partnership- Response to Winterbourne View Review – Work Plan

in response to the Winterbourne View report and has a focus: 

ced in out of borough hospital/Assessment and Treatment Units (ATU’s)

borough hospital/ATU’s;  

to any safeguarding concerns; 

including independent advocacy to support change for people who are able 

monitoring advocacy for people not yet ready to move to quality assure current 

June 2013, outcomes will be presented at a consultation e
and partner agencies will come together and focus on strategic and front line response 

of the review. Each partner agency will be tasked to identify outcome measures, and performance improvements 
which will then be reported on at subsequent Safeguarding Adult Board meetings.  

Project Board Members 

     Page 3 
of 17 

with and complement the vision 

accounts for all the existing work commitments and key 

Work Plan 

(ATU’s)by June 2013 ;  

for people who are able to move back 

assure current  provision. 

be presented at a consultation event where multi-agency 
agencies will come together and focus on strategic and front line response to 

of the review. Each partner agency will be tasked to identify outcome measures, and performance improvements 

P
a
g
e
 8

9



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

Beverley Tarka: Acting Deputy Director Adult and Community Services
Carol Gillen: Director ICAM, Whittington Health
Janet Alldred: Director Psychosis, BEHMHT
Claire Collins: Interim Deputy Service Manager, 
Peter White: Commissioning Manager 
Catherine Poyner: Shared Service Manager, North London Strategic Alliance 
Dr Ken Courtenay: Consultant Psychiatrist 
Dr Sujeet Jaydeokar: Consultant Psychiatrist
Sue Southgate: Manager, Adult Safeguarding Team 
Lorraine Stanforth: Safeguarding Manager, NCL Haringey
Tristan Brice: Learning Disabilities and Mental Health Commissioner, NCL Haringey
Georgia Preston: Safeguarding Monitoring Officer
 
                                                                                                      
Winterbourne View Clinical Project Manager

 

 Dr Ursula Mazur, Clinical Psychologist, HLDP

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.  Commissioning Approach

Action Plan     

Deputy Director Adult and Community Services 
Carol Gillen: Director ICAM, Whittington Health 
Janet Alldred: Director Psychosis, BEHMHT 

Interim Deputy Service Manager, Head of Learning Disabilities Partnership 

Catherine Poyner: Shared Service Manager, North London Strategic Alliance  

Dr Sujeet Jaydeokar: Consultant Psychiatrist 
Sue Southgate: Manager, Adult Safeguarding Team  

Manager, NCL Haringey 
Tristan Brice: Learning Disabilities and Mental Health Commissioner, NCL Haringey 
Georgia Preston: Safeguarding Monitoring Officer 

                                                                                                             
Winterbourne View Clinical Project Manager: 

Dr Ursula Mazur, Clinical Psychologist, HLDP 

Commissioning Approach 

     Page 4 
of 17 

 

P
a

g
e
 9

0



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

 Activity 

1.1 

Attain mandate from Deputy Director of 
Adult and  Community Services and Chief 
Officer, Haringey Clinical Commissioning 
Group  Social Care for an agreed joint 
action plan which responds to the 
Winterbourne View Report  

Project planning documentation, 
including work plans with time scales 
    
Incorporate key aims, findings and 
recommendations from Winterborne 
View Hospital Concordat (programme of 
Action) in all commissioning, purchasing 
and procurement activities 

1.2 Form Project Board 
Identify project sponsor and project 
board members 

1.3 Communication and consultation plan  
Identify key stakeholders and method of 
communication

1.4 

Develop individual project and work plans 
for all commissioning areas identified as 
relevant to the Winterborne View Hospital 
Concordat   
 

Draft individual work plans for each 
commissioning project identified.  Link 
actions to time bound outcomes 

1.5 
Agreed Register of people with learning 
disabilities in NHs funded care.  

NHS CCG representatives

1.6 
Respond to all  safeguarding concerns 
with action plans and reference to the 
wider commissioning strategy 

Curocare identified and prioritised.
 
Other Hospital and assessment and 

Action Plan     

Key actions Who 
Time 
Scales 

RAG 
Status

Project planning documentation, 
ncluding work plans with time scales  

Incorporate key aims, findings and 
recommendations from Winterborne 
View Hospital Concordat (programme of 
Action) in all commissioning, purchasing 
and procurement activities  

BT/PW 
December 

2012 

G  

Identify project sponsor and project 
board members  

PW/ 
LRLBH 

/BT/ 
SP CCG 

December 
2012 

G 

Identify key stakeholders and method of 
communication 

PW/BT 
January 

2012 

A 

Draft individual work plans for each 
commissioning project identified.  Link 
actions to time bound outcomes  

PW 
January 

2013 

A 

NHS CCG representatives 
SD/LB/

DC 
January 

2013 
G 

Curocare identified and prioritised.   

Other Hospital and assessment and 
LR/SP 

December 
2012 - 

ongoing 

G 

     Page 5 
of 17 

RAG 
Status 

Progress/comments 

Key strategic aims and commissioning 
work plans have recognised and 
assimilated the aims and plan for 
action from the Concordat. 
 
 

Identified and complete. 

In progress, but will be assimilated 
with existing work and communication 
plans.  Existing commissioning 
projects and projects relevant to this 
project are progressing and are in 
existence, further work is planned 
around consultation. 

Work plans relevant to the delivery of 
stages current within the projects that 
fall within this project have been 
completed.  Further work plans will 
need to be developed as sub projects 
progress. 

In progress. 

Move on mandate agreed by senior 
officers. 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

1



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

treatment services will be identified and 
included  

1.7 Safeguarding measures in place.  

Regular  “Establishment Concerns” 
meeting under Haringey Pan London 
Safeguarding Procedures involving CQC 
and placing authorities in place .

1.8 
Communication with families and Carers 
re our response to Winterbourne View 
Review 

Ongoing communication and 
engagement with families and carers

1.9 
Meet with families/advocates to discuss 
options for move on  

Communication will be on
of our communication plan

1.10 
Capacity assessment and best interest 
meetings  

Involve residents, families, carers and 
professionals from multi disciplines 

1.11 
Discussions with high performing 
providers not currently active in the 
Borough  

Identify viable move on options for 
Curocare residents

Action Plan     

treatment services will be identified and 
included   

Regular  “Establishment Concerns” 
meeting under Haringey Pan London 
Safeguarding Procedures involving CQC 
and placing authorities in place . 

BT/SS 
Nov 2012 - 

ongoing 

G 

Ongoing communication and 
engagement with families and carers 

BT/PON ongoing 
G 

Communication will be on-going as part 
of our communication plan 

BT/PW Ongoing 

A 

Involve residents, families, carers and 
professionals from multi disciplines  

PON 
January 

2013 
A 

Identify viable move on options for 
Curocare residents 

PW ongoing 
A 

     Page 6 
of 17 

In progress.  

In progress 

• Rota of unannounced visits by all 
placing authorities; 

• Service improvement Plan 
developed and ongoing 
monitoring; 

• Voluntary embargo on future 
placements; and 

• Move on plans for majority of 
residents from all placing 
authorities. 

Initiated. Face to face meeting. 
Telephone liaison. 

This has been undertaken and is 
complete in terms of those people 
who have been assessed as ready 
and suitable for move on.  However, 
as the options continue to change and 
develop with the determination and 
agreement of families and available 
move on options this remains an on-
going process that continuously needs 
to be reviewed. 
 

In progress. 

Three providers have been short 
listed and are undertaking individual 
assessments prior to participating in a 

P
a

g
e
 9

2



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

1.12 
Involve families, advocates and carers in 
all commissioning activities 

Selection of providers and development 
of new market in Haringey.

1.13 Alternative accommodation  
Move on completed for Curocare 
Residents

1.14 
Agree quality of life template for people 
placed OOB in hospital and Assessment 
and Treatment Units 

Review Template Developed

1.15 
Implement quality of life reviews for 
people placed Out of Borough in hospitals 
and Assessment and Treatment Units 

Develop plan for individual review. 

1.16 
Identify people able to move on to 
supported accommodation from out or 
borough placements. 

Out Of Borough (OOB) Placement group 
set up. Agreed terms of reference of the 
group mirrors the aims of the 
Winterbourne concordat

1.17 
Commission independent advocacy to 
monitor people unable to move on  

Implement commissioning plan, 
complete PID and business case, 
develop personal budgets into RAS, co
ordinate approach with independent 
project board 

Action Plan     

Selection of providers and development 
of new market in Haringey. 

PW/BT 
On-going 
approach 

A 

Move on completed for Curocare 
Residents 

Project 
Team 

Feb/March 
2013 

A 

Review Template Developed  
Clinical 
staff of 
HLDP 

December 
2012 

G 

Develop plan for individual review.  
Clinical 

Staff 
June 2013 

A 

Out Of Borough (OOB) Placement group 
set up. Agreed terms of reference of the 
group mirrors the aims of the 
Winterbourne concordat  

BT/PW June 2013 

A 

Implement commissioning plan, 
complete PID and business case, 
develop personal budgets into RAS, co-
ordinate approach with independent 
project board  

PW July 2013 

A 

     Page 7 
of 17 

selection process that will involve the 
application of a quality and cost 
evaluation. 

This process has been designed, but 
has yet to be implemented due to the 
number of assessments the providers 
short listed for this work need to 
undertake.  

Work is progressing.  
 

Completed. 

Plan for reviews completed. 

Terms of Reference for OOB group 
developed and has been operational 
for over a year.  From the 11 names 
required and short listed six have 
been or are being assessed as 
appropriate for move on to 
independent living four more names 
need to be assessed as suitable from 
a number people already identified. 
  

Agreement between NHS 
Commissioning and Adult Social care 
Commissioning has been agreed.  An 
opportunity to develop a framework 
agreement that facilitates and enables 
people to choose who their advocate 

P
a
g
e
 9

3



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

1.18 
Develop a move on plan for people able 
to move from long term residential 
services 

Liaison with families people who use 
services and their advocates, include 
capacity assessments and best interest 
assessments and meetings

1.19 Equalities Impact Assessment  
Draft equalities impact assessment and 
attain sign off from LBH and CCG

1.20 Environment Impact Assessment  
Draft environmental impact assessment 
and attain sign off from 

1.21 Communication  
Include in all  project planning including 
the PID and Business Case 

1.22 Benefits Realisation plan  
Draft plan to include non 
benefits

1.23 Highlight reports  
To be generated prior to each 
board meeting.

1.24 Shared Drive  
Set up shared drives for all 
commissioning projects and publishing 
of project documents 

1.25 
Develop Project Initiation Document and 
business case     

Project planning and project products to 
be determined    

Action Plan     

Liaison with families people who use 
services and their advocates, include 
capacity assessments and best interest 
assessments and meetings 

BT/PON 
Up to June 

2014 

A 

Draft equalities impact assessment and 
attain sign off from LBH and CCG 

PW June 2013 
A 
 

Draft environmental impact assessment 
and attain sign off from LBH and CCG 

PW June 2013 
A 

Include in all  project planning including 
the PID and Business Case  

PW 
January 

2013 
A 

Draft plan to include non cashable 
benefits 

PW March 2013 

A 

To be generated prior to each project 
board meeting. 

PW Fortnightly 
G 

Set up shared drives for all 
commissioning projects and publishing 
of project documents  

PW and 
IT 

January 
2013 

A 

Project planning and project products to 
be determined     

PW 
January 

2013 

A 

     Page 8 
of 17 

is, is being developed. 

In progress. 

Outcome of assessments to be 
advised. 

Outcome of assessments to be 
advised. 

In progress, ongoing. 

Develop alongside PID and Business 
cases’ this is part of the project 
planning process and its progression 
is subject to a number of extraneous 
project activities. 

In progress. 

In progress. 

Templates and plans completed and 
progress with populating and 
analysing data is ongoing. 

P
a

g
e
 9

4



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

 

2.  Physical Resource and Capacity 
 

Activity 

2.1 
DOH/GLA Care and Support Specialised 
Housing funding  

Review existing sites and opportunities for 
funding bids  

2.2 
Agree a model of supported housing 
appropriate to people who are discharged 
from hospital /ATU’s. 

Will require local specialist developments 
to be set in motion.

2.3 
Project the potential capital costs and 
available capital associated funding that 
might be required. 

Identify the possible  local impacts that 
might result from a change of use to the 
proposed sites for investment including 
consulting the local community and building 
regulation restrictions 

2.4 
Identify council owned stock that can be 
used for supported living developments. 

Council’s owned stock and what the re
development or capital costs might be to 
the Council

2.5 
Agree timescales for the readiness of use of 
Council housing stock 

Continue to meet and work with Homes for 
Haringey to identify available stock and 
housing for use as residence for people 
currently placed out of Borough

2.6 
Agree specifications for the properties with 
Homes for Haringey 

These will be undertaken with Homes for 
Haringey 

2.7 
Submit Capital bids for works to be carried 
out 

Joint approach to be undertaken 

2.8 Works completed   

  

Action Plan     

Physical Resource and Capacity  

Key actions Who 
Time 
Scales 

RAG 
Status

Review existing sites and opportunities for 
funding bids   

PW/MP 
 

Jan 18
th
 

2013 
G 

Will require local specialist developments 
to be set in motion. 

PW/LD 
Team 

 
 

March 2013 A 

Identify the possible  local impacts that 
might result from a change of use to the 
proposed sites for investment including 
consulting the local community and building 

n restrictions  

PW/ 
PDLBH 

Feb/ 
March 2012 

G 

Council’s owned stock and what the re-
development or capital costs might be to 
the Council 

PW/BT/H
fH 
 

January 
2013 

G 

Continue to meet and work with Homes for 
Haringey to identify available stock and 
housing for use as residence for people 
currently placed out of Borough 

PW/BT/H
fH 

January 
2013 

G 

These will be undertaken with Homes for 
Haringey  

PW/BT/H
fH 

April 
2013 

G 

Joint approach to be undertaken  
PW/ 
HfH 

April 2013 G 

HfH 
August 
2013 

A 

     Page 9 
of 17 

RAG 
Status 

Progress/comments 

 Deadline date for submission of bid. 

 In progress.  

 In progress. 

 Progressing. 

 Progressing. 

 Completed. 

 Completed. 

 On Target. 

P
a
g
e
 9

5



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

 

3.  Workforce   
 

Activity 

3.1 Commissioning Activity  
Personnel identified
Business case to be completed 

3.2 Review Team Clinical staff identified 

3.3 
To be approved by Health and Wellbeing 
Board 

Joint plan for high quality local care and 
support services for people based on 
revised local JSNA and joint health and 
wellbeing strategy. 

3.4 Workforce Strategy 
Ensure staff development and future 
recruitment meets the needs of people 
coming back into borough 

 

Action Plan     

Key actions Who 
Time 
Scales 

RAG 
Status

Personnel identified 
Business case to be completed  

PW 
January 

2013 
A 

Clinical staff identified  PON 
January 

2013 
G 

Joint plan for high quality local care and 
support services for people based on 
revised local JSNA and joint health and 
wellbeing strategy.  

BT July 2013 A 

Ensure staff development and future 
recruitment meets the needs of people 
coming back into borough  

PON 
 

June 2014 A 

    Page 10 
of 17 

RAG 
Status 

Progress/comments 

 In progress. 

 Completed. 

 In progress. 

 Under review. 

P
a

g
e
 9

6



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

 

4.  Review Joint Commissioning Opportunities 

 Activity 

4.1 
Integrated commissioning approach with 
NHS CCG 

Map the commissioning priorities NHS 
CCG has with those of LBH concerning 
the development of supported living 
alternatives for people.

4.2 

Contact commissioners from London 
Boroughs’ of Islington, Camden, Enfield 
and Barnet.  Purpose to identify joint 
commissioning opportunities  

Opportunity to identify and share physical 
resources available for specific needs 

4.3 
Scope treatment and care pathways with 
NHS commissioners and NHS care 
providers 

Map health care pathways with 
care pathways to include the delivery of 
day opportunities as well as supported 
accommodation
  

4.4 Long Term Management complex needs Commission for 

 

Action Plan     

Review Joint Commissioning Opportunities  

Key actions Who 
Time 
Scales 

RAG 
Status

Map the commissioning priorities NHS 
CCG has with those of LBH concerning 
the development of supported living 
alternatives for people. 

BT/PW March 2013 A 

Opportunity to identify and share physical 
resources available for specific needs  

PW March 2013 A 

Map health care pathways with social 
care pathways to include the delivery of 
day opportunities as well as supported 
accommodation 

PW/BT 
CCG rep 

 
March 2013 A 

Commission for quality local care BT/PW 
July 2013 –

ongoing 
 

A 

    Page 11 
of 17 

RAG 
Status 

Progress/comments 

 Ongoing.  

 

This is progressing through a number of 
cross borough commissioning groups 
organised for the purpose of identifying 
joint commissioning opportunities. 

 
Health pathway has been mapped out 
with a clear focus on recovery. 

 As above. 

P
a
g
e
 9

7



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

 

5.  Review good practice and LD supported accommodation market  

 Activity 

5.1 
Review existing models of supported 
living within other London boroughs  

Contact commissioners from neighbouring 
London Boroughs to scope out good 
practice, CQC requirements for the 
purpose of comparison, staffing 
structures, and skill based deployed.

5.2 

Identify current third sector provider 
market currently delivering LD supported 
living (medium to high support needs) to 
determine capacity and ability of market 
to tender for supported living 
accommodation.  

Map current ‘London’ market and its 
ability to tender for supported living for 
people. 

 

Action Plan     

Review good practice and LD supported accommodation market  

Key actions Who 
Time 
Scales 

RAG 
Status

Contact commissioners from neighbouring 
London Boroughs to scope out good 
practice, CQC requirements for the 
purpose of comparison, staffing 
structures, and skill based deployed. 

PW March 2013 A 

Map current ‘London’ market and its 
ability to tender for supported living for 

 
PW April 2013 A 

    Page 12 
of 17 

Review good practice and LD supported accommodation market   
RAG 
Status 

Progress/comments 

 

Existing structures and links have 
already been developed and are being 
used as opportunities to compare, 
contrast and benchmark.  

 
This is being progressed through a 
market develop approach to 
commissioning.  

P
a

g
e
 9

8



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

 

6.  Finance  
 

Activity 

6.1 

Contact finance LBH management and 
CCG and request nominated 
individuals from the finance team to 
participate as active members on a 
project board. 

Outline the role of finance in terms of the 
time required to participate as a project 
board member 

6.2 
Financial modelling of existing spend 
on supported living accommodation.  

Agree with finance the range of cost of 
current supported living provision and 
compare spend with neighbouring 
boroughs 
 
Get some limited time commitments from 
finance  

6.3 
Financial modelling of supported living 
accommodation against current 
hospital/ATU’s  

Review physical re
supported living accommodation, project 
future savings against current capital and 
revenue spend 
 
Future commissioning and financial 
remodelling must include provision for 
people who need secure accommodation. 
 
Cost comparisons must also include 
capital and revenue over the life of  new 
developments against the current set of 
arrangements 
 

6.4 Business case and reporting to Health Support from finance with presenting 

Action Plan     

Key actions Who 
Time 
Scales 

RAG 
Status

Outline the role of finance in terms of the 
time required to participate as a project 
board member  

PW/FLBH
/FCCG 

January 
2013 

A 

Agree with finance the range of cost of 
current supported living provision and 
compare spend with neighbouring 
boroughs  

Get some limited time commitments from 
 

PW/FLBH
/FCCG 

Feb 2013 A 

Review physical re-modelling of 
supported living accommodation, project 
future savings against current capital and 
revenue spend  

Future commissioning and financial 
remodelling must include provision for 
people who need secure accommodation.  

Cost comparisons must also include 
capital and revenue over the life of  new 
developments against the current set of 
arrangements  

PW/FLBH
/FCCG 

July 2013 A 

Support from finance with presenting PW/FLBH open A 

    Page 13 
of 17 

RAG 
Status 

Progress/comments 

 Discussions commenced. 

 Discussions commenced. 

 
Discussions commenced. 
 

 Discussions commenced. 

P
a
g
e
 9

9



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

and Wellbeing boards and Learning 
Disabilities Partnership Board , LD 
Executive, Cabinet and Elected 
Members  

financial data 
 
 

Action Plan     

financial data  /FCCG 

    Page 14 
of 17 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
0



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

 

7.  Governance 

  Activity  Key actions

7.1 
Monitoring , evidence based reviews 
and outcome measurements   

Develop outcome measures.
Project Board to ensure governance 

  

Action Plan     

Key actions Who 
Time 
Scales 

RAG 
Status

Develop outcome measures. 
Project Board to ensure governance  

BT March 2013 A 

    Page 15 
of 17 

RAG 
Status 

Progress/comments 

 

Project board established and will meet 
monthly. 
 
HEF outcomes measurement 
framework currently in advanced stage  
of development.  
 
A clinical contract will be agreed for 
each ATU placement to ensure that the 
CCG is assured in terms of the quality 
of care received. 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

8.  Reflective Practice  

  Activity  Key actions

8.1 

To integrate learning through the 
process  in order to support improved 
outcomes as identified in Transforming 
Social Care Report  
1
 Transforming care: A national response to 

Winterbourne View Hospital December 2012 

Department of Health: 

https://www.wp.dh.gov.uk/publications/files/20

12/12/final-report.pdf 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 
 

 

Action Plan     

Key actions Who 
Time 
Scales 

RAG 
Status

  improve commissioning across 
health and care services for 
people with behaviour which 
challenges with the aim of 
reducing the number of people 
using inpatient assessment and 
treatment services;  

 clarify roles and responsibilities 
across the system and support 
better integration between health 
and care; 

 improve the quality of services to 
give people with learning 
disabilities and their families 
choice and control; 

 promote innovation and positive 
behavioural support and reduce 
the use of restraint; and 

 establish the right information to 
enable local commissioners to 
benchmark progress in 
commissioning services which 
meet individuals’ needs, improve 
the quality of care, and reduce the 
numbers of people in in-patient 
services for assessment and 
treatment. 

WVPG ongoing A 

    Page 16 
of 17 

RAG 
Status 

Progress/comments 

 

This is a standing agenda item at the 
weekly WVPG meetings.  
 
Reflective and learning log forms part 
of the Highlight report to WVPB.  
 
Reflective practice/learning will be 
focussed on four areas: 
 
1) Family engagement/ Learning from 

the experiences of families - 
through family focus group/ 
workshop (planned to take place in 
the summer); 
 

2) Safeguarding- through discussions 
at the Safeguarding Adults Board; 
and 
 

3) Commissioning appropriate 
services. 

 
Working processes- by looking at 
ongoing clinical practice and ensuring 
that the learning from the Winterbourne 
project can embedded in everyday best 
practice. 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
2



 

HLDP Winterbourne Response Joint Action Plan 

 

9.  Project Tools  
 

Activity 

9.1 
Project Initiation Document  
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

9.2 Business case  

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Action Plan     

Key actions Who 
Time 
Scales 

RAG 
Status

 Project approach  

 Project scope 

 Research  

 Project method 

 Project planning 

 Project dependencies  

 Interfaces  

 Evaluation plan  

 Communication plan  

 Risk assessment/log 

 Contingency plan 

 Milestone plan  

PW/All Open A 

 Current situation  

 Workforce analysis  

 Need and demand  

 Utilisation  

 Consultation  

 Opportunities  

 Project categorisation  

 Scope  

 Strategic fit 

 Proposal and alternative 

 Resources  

 Communication  

 Value analysis  

 Cashable benefits  

 Non cashable benefits 

 Conclusions & Recommendations 

PW/All Open A 

    Page 17 
of 17 

RAG 
Status 

Progress/comments 

 

This project approach will be applied to 
all commissioning projects undertaken.  
Purchasing and procurement activity 
incorporated into   the PID. 
 

 

A business case approach will be 
taken and used to evidence, analyse 
and recommend the best 
commissioning and purchasing 
approach to each and all individual 
commissioning projects. 
 
The Market Position Statement will be 
used as a means of developing the 
market.  
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



P
a
g

e
 1

0
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

1  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

 
 

Appendix 2 
Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Programme 

 

Initial Stocktake of Progress against key Winterbourne View Concordat Commitment 
 

The Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Programme is asking local areas to complete a stocktake of progress against the commitments made 
nationally that should lead to all individuals receiving personalised care and support in appropriate community settings no later than 1 June 2014. 
 

The purpose of the stocktake is to enable local areas to assess their progress and for that to be shared nationally. The stocktake is also intended to 
enable local areas to identify what help and assistance they require from the Joint Improvement Programme and to help identify where resources can 
best be targeted. 
 

The sharing of good practice is also an expected outcome. Please mark on your return if you have good practice examples and attach further details. 
 

This document follows the recent letter from Norman Lamb, Minister of State regarding the role of HWBB and the stocktake will provide a local assurance 
tool for your HWBB. 
 

While this stocktake is specific to Winterbourne View, it will feed directly into the CCG Assurance requirements and the soon to be published joint 
Strategic Assessment Framework (SAF). Information compiled here will support that process. 
 

This stocktake can only successfully be delivered through local partnerships. The programme is asking local authorities to lead this process given their 
leadership role through Health and Well Being Boards but responses need to be developed with local partners, including CCGs, and shared with Health 
and Wellbeing Boards. 
 

The deadline for this completed stocktake is Friday 5 July. Any queries or final responses should be sent to Sarah.Brown@local.gov.uk 
 

An easy read version is available on the LGA website 
 
May 2013 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



 

2  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

 

 

Winterbourne View Local Stocktake June 2013 

1.     Models of partnership Assessment of current position evidence of work and 

issues arising 

Good practice 

example (please 

tick and attach) 

Support 

required 

1.1 Are you establishing local arrangements for joint delivery of this programme 

between the Local Authority and the CCG(s). 

 

 

 

 

There is a local Winterbourne View Programme Board 

overseeing implementation of the recommendations 

in the Concordat (ToR and minutes available upon 

request). Both CCG and Local Authority are 

represented at the Board. 

    

1.2 Are other key partners working with you to support this; if so, who. (Please 

comment on housing, specialist commissioning & providers).  

 

Homes for Haringey (Arm’s Length Management 

Organisation) ALMO.  Through a protocol agreement 

with Haringey’s Learning Disability Partnership, have 

acquired control of four houses and maisonettes.  The 

four properties are being re-developed with capital 

funding from Homes for Haringey’s Housing Revenue 

Account.   

 

This arrangement has been negotiated with and as 

part of the Council’s response to the Winterbourne 

View Concordat.   

 

The capital works have been specified by 

Commissioners from Adult Social Care, officers from 

Homes for Haringey and Property Services, Social 

Workers and clinical staff from the Learning Disability 

Partnership. 

 

Each of the properties are being developed to allow 

two people to live independently in each, which when 

completed will be eight people in total.   

Only third sector providers compliant with 

    P
a
g

e
 1

0
6



 

3  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

Hangingey’s safeguarding polices and procedures and 

only those providers from the third sector who are 

registered with and compliant with the Care Quality 

Commission’s national standards are being considered 

suitable to provide the necessary care and support.    

 

Third sector providers will provide a tailored package 

of care that will enable people assessed as part of the 

Council’s review process to live independently with a 

licence agreement.   

     

1.3 Have you established a planning function that will support the development of 

the kind of services needed for those people that have been reviewed and for 

other people with complex needs. 

Each client is discussed by the MD project team on a 

regular basis to plan transition from ATU’s/hospitals 

to the community. There is dialogue between the 

project team and the commissioners which supports 

planning of clinically appropriate services for people 

with complex behavioural support needs.  

 

    

1.4 Is the Learning Disability Partnership Board (or alternate arrangement) 

monitoring and reporting on progress. 

Yes. Click here for HLDP Board minutes. 

   

    

1.5 Is the Health and Wellbeing Board engaged with local arrangements for delivery 

and receiving reports on progress. 

 

Yes – Board presentation 26
th

 February and 9
th

 July 

2013. 

    

1.6 Does the partnership have arrangements in place to resolve differences should 

they arise. 

 

Section 75 (dispute resolution section in 

development). 

    

1.7 Are accountabilities to local, regional and national bodies clear and understood 

across the partnership – e.g. HWB Board, NHSE Local Area Teams / CCG fora, 

clinical partnerships & Safeguarding Boards.  

 

 

Regular updates are presented to the CCG Quality 

Committee, LD executive, HW Board, Clinical 

Leadership and Operational Group, HLDP and 

Haringey multi-agency Safeguarding Board. 

    

1.8 Do you have any current issues regarding Ordinary Residence and the potential 

financial risks associated with this. 

None at present. 

 

 

 

    

P
a
g
e
 1

0
7



 

4  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

1.9 Has consideration been given to key areas where you might be able to use 

further support to develop and deliver your plan.  

 

The North London Strategic Alliance (NLSA) is working 

together to identify and discuss opportunities for joint 

commissioning. 

 

    

2. Understanding the money       

2.1 Are the costs of current services understood across the partnership. Yes (available upon request).  

 

    

2.2 Is there clarity about source(s) of funds to meet current costs, including funding 

from specialist commissioning bodies, continuing Health Care and NHS and Social 

Care. 

Yes (information available via Caretrack). 

 

  

    

2.3 Do you currently use S75 arrangements that are sufficient and robust. 

 

Section 75 arrangements are in place in Haringey for 

the Learning Disability Partnership pooled provider 

budget. A renewed Section 75 is currently being 

negotiated with the LA and the CCG. There is no LD 

Joint Commissioning Strategy. 

 

    

2.4 Is there a pooled budget and / or clear arrangements to share financial risk. 

 

No – Section 75 currently for certain provision, 

however no pooled budget arrangement for complex 

clients’ support packages. 

  

    

2.5 Have you agreed individual contributions to any pool. 

 

No.     

2.6 Does it include potential costs of young people in transition and of children’s 

services. 

 

No. 

 

    

2.7 Between the partners is there an emerging financial strategy in the medium term 

that is   built on current cost, future investment and potential for savings. 

 

Needs to be developed.  

 

  

3. Case management for individuals       

3.1 Do you have a joint, integrated community team. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The joint integrated team is made up of three partner 

organisations, Haringey Council, Whittington Health 

and Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust. 

The team is made up of multi disciplinary professions 

including social workers, clinical psychologists, 

consultant psychiatrists, occupational therapists, 

music therapists, physiotherapists and community 

 

Winterbourne Review 

Protocol_updated (2).doc
 

  

P
a
g

e
 1

0
8



 

5  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

 

 

nurses. 

 

Yes – Section 75 service specification.  

 

3.2 Is there clarity about the role and function of the local community team.     

3.3 Does it have capacity to deliver the review and re-provision programme.  

 

Yes.      

3.4 Is there clarity about overall professional leadership of the review programme. 

 

Yes. There are named clinical and operational leads.     

3.5 Are the interests of people who are being reviewed, and of family carers, 

supported by named workers and / or advocates. 

Yes – (see feedback questionnaires which are being 

utilised throughout the review process). 

 
 

Questionnaire for 

family ( next of kin).docx
 

  

4. Current Review Programme      

4.1 Is there agreement about the numbers of people who will be affected by the 

programme and are arrangements being put in place to support them and their 

families through the process. 

Yes – 18 inpatient and 8 forensic clients      

4.2 Are arrangements for review of people funded through specialist commissioning      

clear. 

 

CCG is currently developing a robust process with 

BEH-MHT (forensic provider) 

    

4.3 Are the necessary joint arrangements (including people with learning disability, 

carers, advocacy organisations, Local Healthwatch) agreed and in place. 

Currently in development.      

4.4 Is there confidence that comprehensive local registers of people with behaviour 

that challenges have been developed and are being used. 

There is a comprehensive register of all people who 

are fully or partially health funded. 

    

4.5 Is there clarity about ownership, maintenance and monitoring of local registers 

following transition to CCG, including identifying who should be the first point of 

contact for each individual 

Yes – available on Caretrack      

4.6 Is advocacy routinely available to people (and family) to support assessment, care 

planning and review processes 

Available locally. CCG commissioning voluntary sector 

organisation to provide advocacy to those in out of 

area placements – service specification in 

development.  

 

    

4.7 How do you know about the quality of the reviews and how good practice in this 

area is being developed. 

CCG representatives regularly attend the London CHC 

leads meeting chaired by NHS England. Regular 

contact with NHS England seeking advice and support.  

 

    

P
a
g
e
 1

0
9



 

6  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

4.8 Do completed reviews give a good understanding of behaviour support being 

offered in individual situations. 

All of the reviews have incorporated questions which 

evaluate the behaviour support needs of the 

individuals in question, how behavioural challenges 

are understood (e.g. Functional Analysis) and if they 

are being responded to appropriately (e.g. PRN 

medication/Physical Interventions used as a last 

resort).   

 

The reviews have been underpinned by an ethos of 

Positive Behavioural Support and associated best 

practice guidance (e.g. Challenging behaviour: A 

Unified Approach). 

  

    

4.9 Have all the required reviews been completed. Are you satisfied that there are 

clear plans for any outstanding reviews to be completed. 

 All reviews have been completed with multi-

disciplinary input.  

 

    

5. Safeguarding      

5.1 Where people are placed out of your area, are you engaged with local 

safeguarding arrangements – e.g. in line with the ADASS protocol. 

CCG has started to use the Out of Area Placement 

protocol.  

 

CHC201~1.DOC

 

  

5.2 How are you working with care providers (including housing) to ensure sharing of 

information & develop risk assessments. 

Third sector providers will provide a tailored package 

of care that will enable people assessed as part of the 

Council’s review process to live independently with a 

licence agreement. Providers are involved in 

assessments of individuals with families and families 

and individuals are involved in selection of providers. 

Haringey Assessment and intervention team 

(intensive outreach model) work closely with 

providers during transition.  

 

    

5.3 Have you been fully briefed on whether inspection of units in your locality have 

taken place, and if so are issues that may have been identified being worked on.  

 

 

 We work closely with the Care Quality Commission 

and there are regular formal and informal meetings. 

Safeguarding staff of the CCG and LA and HLDP staff 

work on joint improvement plans as appropriate for 

local establishments where there is not full 

compliance.  

    

P
a
g

e
 1

1
0



 

7  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

5.4 Are you satisfied that your Children and Adults Safeguarding Boards are in touch 

with your Winterbourne View review and development programme. 

Regular updates are made to multi-agency 

safeguarding Board. 

 

    

5.5 Have they agreed a clear role to ensure that all current placements take account 

of existing concerns/alerts, the requirements of DoLS and the monitoring of 

restraint.  

Yes. The Safeguarding Head of Service sits on the 

Winterbourne Project Board and also the SAB and 

monitors compliance with these issues.   

 

    

5.6 Are there agreed multi-agency programmes that support staff in all settings to 

share information and good practice regarding people with learning disability and 

behaviour that challenges who are currently placed in hospital settings. 

This area is being developed.  We are planning a 

reflective practice workshop within the Learning 

Disability Partnership to share learning from the 

Winterbourne Project Group which will aim to 

incorporate good practice examples.   

 

    

5.7 Is your Community Safety Partnership considering any of the issues that might 

impact on people with learning disability living in less restrictive environments.  

Community Safety Partnership representative sits on 

the SAB. There is joined up protocols with planning 

department, anti-social behaviour unit so that cross 

cutting issues are addressed.  

    

5.8 Has your Safeguarding Board got working links between CQC, contracts 

management, safeguarding staff and care/case managers to maintain alertness 

to concerns. 

  

Safeguarding /commissioning officer works across 

these areas to proactively manage issues through 

early indication of concern process and then work to 

support improvements. 

 

    

6. Commissioning arrangements       

6.1 Are you completing an initial assessment of commissioning requirements to 

support peoples’ move from assessment and treatment/in-patient settings. 

Yes, The multi disciplinary WV Project team work 

closely with commissioning staff to facilitate 

identification of strategic and ongoing commissioning 

requirements of people. North London Strategic 

alliance also represented on the WV Board and co-

ordinates regional response to commissioning 

requirements. 

 

    

6.2 Are these being jointly reviewed, developed and delivered. 

 

 Yes, ongoing work.     

P
a
g
e
 1

1
1



 

8  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

6.3 Is there a shared understanding of how many people are placed out of area and 

of the proportion of this to total numbers of people fully funded by NHS CHC and 

those jointly supported by health and care services. 

 

Yes - comprehensive register of all people, joint 

funding arrangements and location. 

    

6.4 Do commissioning intentions reflect both the need deliver a re-provision 

programme for existing people and the need to substantially reduce future 

hospital placements for new people.  

Yes.  Multi-disciplinary Assessment and Intervention 

outreach team proactively supports community 

placements and transition from hospital placements. 

 

    

6.5 Have joint reviewing and (de)commissioning arrangements been agreed with 

specialist commissioning teams. 

Placements within the provider market are made on a 

spot contract basis.  Termination of a spot contract 

will only result from the person to whom such a 

contract has been attached, and this will only happen 

when that person is moved from that individual 

placement to another placement or into independent 

living.   

 

Where an individual placement is terminated and the 

person to whom that contact is attached is ended as a 

result, the move will always involve a multi-discipline 

response to ensuring the needs of the individual are 

met. 

   

    

6.6 Have the potential costs and source(s) of funds of future commissioning 

arrangements been assessed. 

 

The funding of individual placements is known and 

has been identified.   

 

Joint funding tool currently being reviewed and will 

impact on future commissioning funding source. 

 

    

6.7 Are local arrangements for the commissioning of advocacy support sufficient, if 

not, are changes being developed. 

 

Yes, but future commissioning intentions include a 

scoping exercise that includes the introduction of 

personal and health budgets.  However, some block 

contracting arrangements are expected to remain.    

 

    

6.8 Is your local delivery plan in the process of being developed, resourced and 

agreed. 

 

Commissioning framework and delivery plan 

advanced stages of development. 

 

    

P
a
g

e
 1

1
2



 

9  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

6.9 Are you confident that the 1 June 2014 target will be achieved (the commitment 

is for all people currently in in-patient settings to be placed nearer home and in a 

less restrictive environment). 

 

We are confident that this target will be reached for 

the most part, in that all but one or two people will 

have been moved out of their present placement.  If 

service users need to remain in hospital settings, we 

will ensure that the environments impose as few 

restrictions as possible. Robust measures will be in 

place to ensure that service users are being 

safeguarded (e.g. regular on-site visits, identified 

independent advocacy, liaison with families) and that 

that there is an evidenced clinical decision making 

process which justifies their placement in a hospital 

setting. Providers will be expected to make available 

documentation which evidences care planning and 

goal setting and to report on what progress is being 

achieved with regards to these.   

 

The second issue is the financial issues highlighted in 

Section 2.4 to 2.7 of this report. 

 

    

6.10 If no, what are the obstacles, to delivery (e.g. organisational, financial, legal). 

 

Some of the obstacles are clinical in nature. We are 

mindful that some of the service users which are part 

of the Winterbourne Project have long histories 

numerous placement breakdowns and of multiple 

admissions. As a consequence of these experiences, 

some service users have become accustomed to 

settings which incorporate a high degree of external 

control and/or restriction.  One of the key challenges 

therefore, is how community based services can be 

skilled, robust, boundaries and structured enough 

whilst being as least restrictive as possible. 

 

There is a need to develop local, small specialist 

services (robust residentials), especially for service 

users with Mild LD and Mental Health problems.  For 

service users with the most complex needs, there is a 

need to commission locally based hospital services 

which include step-down bed provision, enabling 

    

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3



 

10  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

continuity of care. Should hospitals be commissioned, 

this should be done to a clinical specification which is 

underpinned by a time-limited evidenced based 

assessment/treatment model. This is imperative to 

ensure that service users move on to more 

appropriate placement as soon as possible.  

Funding issues as previously highlighted.  Section 2.4 

to 2.7. 

 

7. Developing local teams and services 

 

      

7.1 Are you completing an initial assessment of commissioning requirements to 

support peoples’ move from assessment and treatment/in-patient settings.  

 

Individuals identified and assessed as appropriate for 

a move from Assessment and Treatment and in-

patient settings are subject to an assessment and 

assessment by third sector providers prior to any 

referral being made.  

   

    

7.2 Do you have ways of knowing about the quality and effectiveness of advocacy 

arrangements. 

 

Through the quarterly reporting mechanisms of the 

CCG voluntary sector contracts.  

    

7.3 Do you have plans to ensure that there is capacity to ensure that Best Interests 

assessors are involved in care planning. 

 

CCG to develop.      

8. Prevention and crisis response capacity - Local/shared capacity to manage 

emergencies 

 

      

8.1 Do commissioning intentions include an assessment of capacity that will be 

required to deliver crisis response services locally. 

 

Scoping of the caseload of Assessment and 

Intervention Team (AIT) at present to ensure can 

meet projected demand.  

 

    

8.2 Do you have / are you working on developing emergency responses that would 

avoid hospital admission (including under section of MHA.)  

 

Links with BEH Home Treatment Team or 

development of an equivalent? This will require some 

liaison and possibly training. Crucial to have support 

which is available out of hours.  

    

 

 

 

 

    

P
a
g

e
 1

1
4



 

11  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

8.3 Do commissioning intentions include a workforce and skills assessment 

development.  

 

Yes. 

9.  Understanding the population who need/receive services 

 

  

 

    

9.1 Do your local planning functions and market assessments support the 

development of support for all people with complex needs, including people with 

behaviour that challenges. 

 

Linked to the Council’s response to the Winterbourne 

View Concordat, Haringey’s Learning Disability 

Partnership is currently reviewing all Care Quality 

Commission and independent living providers within 

the Borough.  Site visits have been undertaken at each 

site by a multi-agency team that has included a Carer, 

Social Worker and clinical staff (NHS) member of the 

Learning Disabilities partnership.  

 

The review teams have collected information, which is 

being used to short list the Council’s commissioning 

priorities in Haringey, which is being informed by the 

need to change the way services are currently 

delivered, the quality of the existing provider market 

and need to ensure a balance exists between the 

number of Registered Residential Care and 

independent living bed based services within the 

borough, against the need and demand from people 

who use services and their family carers.  

 

It is planned that through this process a planned, well 

informed commissioning approach can be taken to 

changing the current market in Haringey to one that 

better reflects and incorporates the learning from 

Winterbourne.  

 

    

9.2 From the current people who need to be reviewed, are you taking account of 

ethnicity, age profile and gender issues in planning and understanding future care 

services. 

A person centred approach to planning embeds   

ethnicity, age profile, gender and cultural needs in 

planning for individuals.  Future care needs are 

informed by planned update of joint strategic needs 

analysis (JSNA). 

    

P
a
g
e
 1

1
5



 

12  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

10.  Children and adults – transition planning       

10.1Do commissioning arrangements take account of the needs of children and 

young people in transition as well as of adults. 

 

10.2 Have you developed ways of understanding future demand in terms of numbers 

of people and likely services. 

 

Yes. Detailed demographic information available for 

young people in transition from 14 plus. 

 

Yes. Linked to local market developments. 

    

11.   Current and future market requirements and capacity 

 

      

11.1 Is an assessment of local market capacity in progress. 

 

A full assessment of the market in Haringey has been 

undertaken.  This has included an audit of each 

service, its physical capacity, its capacity to deliver a 

service to people who present with complex needs 

and capacity to move from registered care to 

independent living. 

  

    

11.2 Does this include an updated gap analysis. 

 

A full need, demand and gap analysis is being 

undertaken that include all bed based residential 

services.  Within the range of this analysis is CQC 

registered residential care and independent living.     

  

    

11.3 Are there local examples of innovative practice that can be shared more widely, 

e.g. the development of local fora to share/learn and develop best practice. 

 

Reflective practice/learning will be focussed on four 

areas: 

1) Family engagement/ Learning from the 
experiences of families - through family focus 
group/ workshop (planned to take place in the 
summer); 

2) Safeguarding- through discussions at the 
Safeguarding Adults Board; 

3) Commissioning appropriate services; and 
4) Working processes- by looking at ongoing 

clinical practice and ensuring that the learning 
from the Winterbourne project is embedded in 
everyday best practice. 

     

    

 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
6



 

13  Winterbourne View Local Stocktake  

 

Please send questions, queries or completed stocktake to Sarah.brown@local.gov.uk by 5
th

 July 2013 

This document has been completed by 

Name……………………………………………………………………………………… 

Organisation………………………………………………………………………….. 

Contact…………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Signed by: 

Chair HWB ………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

LA Chief Executive …………………………………………………………………….. 

 

CCG rep……………………………………………………………………………………….  

P
a
g
e
 1

1
7



P
a
g

e
 1

1
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Appendix 3 
 
Estimated Discharge Dates 
 

 Named Care Coordinator Estimated  
Discharge Date 

Estimated Discharge Destination  

1 Yes Discharged May 2013 Own tenancy with 24 hour support (Haringey)  

2 Yes Discharged April 2013 Own tenancy with 24 hour support (Haringey)  

3 Yes July 2013 Own tenancy with 24 hour support (Haringey) 

4 Yes July 2013 Residential Service (Haringey) 

5 Yes July 2013 Residential Service  (Cheam, Sutton) 

6 Yes August 2013 Residential Service (Enfield) 

7 Yes August 2013 Residential Service (Surbiton, Kingston) 

8 Yes July 2013 Own tenancy with 24 hour support (Haringey) 

9 Yes September 2013 Own tenancy with 24 hour support (Haringey)  

10 Yes  September 2013 Supported Living (Cambridgeshire area) 

11 Yes October 2013 Residential Service (currently being assessed) 

12 Yes November 2013 To be decided pending second opinion from 
HLDP Psychiatry 

13 Yes December 2013 Own tenancy with 24 hour support (Haringey) 

14 Yes January 2014 Hospital (Locked Rehabilitation) 

15 Yes January 2014 Hospital (Locked Rehabilitation) 

16 Yes February 2014 Residential or own tenancy (Haringey) 

17 Yes February 2014 Hospital (Locked Rehabilitation) 

18 Yes June 2014 To be decided 

19 Yes April 2013 Own tenancy with Support Haringey 

20 Yes May 2013 Own tenancy with Support Haringey 

21 Yes April 2014 To be decided based on clinical needs 

22 Yes August 2013 To be decided based on clinical needs 

23 Yes May 2014 To be decided based on clinical needs 

24 Yes May 2014 St Martin’s Hostel 

25 Yes April 2015 To be decided based on clinical needs 

26 Yes July 2014 To be decided based on clinical needs 

 

 

 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page | 1 

 

 

Report for: 
Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel, 

19th September 2013 
Item Number:  

 

Title: Scoping report – mental health and accommodation 

 

Report 

Authorised by: 

Cllr Gina Adamou 

Chair of the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel  

 

Lead Officer: 

Melanie Ponomarenko, Senior Scrutiny Officer,  
Strategy & Business Intelligence 
Melanie.Ponomarenko@haringey.gov.uk 
0208 489 2933 

 

Ward(s) affected: All Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 

 

1 Describe the issue under consideration  
 
1.1 The Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel received a presentation on mental health and 

wellbeing in Haringey (Appendix A) at its panel meeting in July 2013. 
 
1.2 Following this presentation the Panel agreed to undertake two projects focused on 

mental health: 
§ Physical health and mental health 

§ Access to accommodation for people with mental health needs 

§ It is anticipated that both of these projects will have a specific BME strand 

1.3 .  The following provides scope of the planned work which is to be agreed by the 
panel. 

 
2 Cabinet Member Introduction  
 
2.1 N/A 
 
3 Recommendations  
 
3.1 That the Adult and Health Scrutiny Panel discuss and agree the terms of reference 

and objectives set out in this report.   
 

4 Other options considered 

Agenda Item 11Page 121



 

Page | 2 

 

 
4.1  N/A 
 
5 Background information  

 
5.1  Under the agreed terms of reference1, the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel can assist 
the Council and the Cabinet in its budgetary and policy framework through conducting 
in depth analysis of local policy issues.  

 
5.2  In this context, the Adults and Health scrutiny panel may: 

§ Review the performance of the Council in relation to its policy objectives, 

performance targets and/or particular service areas; 

§ Conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of policy 

issues and possible options; 

§ Make recommendations to the Cabinet or relevant non-executive Committee 

arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process. 

5.3  Cabinet Members, senior officers and other stakeholders were consulted in the 

development of an outline work programme for Overview & Scrutiny Committee and 

Scrutiny Panels.  Project work undertaken by the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel on 

mental health was agreed as part of this work programme by the Committee on the 

June 17th 2013.   

6 Context 
 

6.1  The Health and Social Act of 20122 put a responsibility on the health secretary to 
secure improvement “in the physical and mental health of the people of England”. 
 

6.2  The government’s mental health strategy, “No health without mental health3” 
aims to mainstream mental health.  The strategy includes a number of objectives to 
improve the mental health of the population.  Most relevant to this project is 
objective 2: 

 
More people with mental health problems will recover – More people who develop 
mental health problems will have a good quality of life: 

• Greater ability to manage their own lives; 

• Stronger social relationships; 

• A greater sense of purpose; 

• The skills they need for living and working; 

• Improved chances in education; 

• Better employment rates; and 

• A suitable and stable place to live. 
 

                                                           
1
 Overview and Scrutiny Protocol, 2012, Haringey Council 

2
 Health and Social Care Act 2012, www.legislation.gov.uk 

3
 No health without mental health, 2011, HM Government 

Page 122



 

Page | 3 

 

6.3  A Mental Health Network NHS Confederation briefing4 makes the following points: 
 

• Good housing is critical for good mental health. 

• ‘No health without mental health’ stresses the importance of housing for mental 
health and particularly for those recovering from mental health problems. 

• Without a settled place to live, recovery can be significantly impeded. 

• People with mental health problems, particularly those with a serious mental 
illness, can sometimes find it difficult to secure and maintain good quality 
accommodation. 

• Mental health is frequently cited as a reason for tenancy breakdown. 

• Housing problems are often given as a reason for a person being admitted or 
readmitted to inpatient care. 

• Cooperation between commissioners and making good use of new structures 
such as Health and Wellbeing Boards are essential to ensure that there is a more 
strategic approach to commissioning health and housing support. 

• Safe, secure and affordable housing is critical in enabling people to work and 
take part in community life. 

• A lack of settled accommodation for service users can lead to unnecessary 
admissions and increase overall costs to the public purse. 

• A national evaluation (Capgemini for DCLG, 2009) estimated that investing £1.6 
billion annually in housing related support services generated net savings of 
£3.41 billion for the public purse.  This includes an estimated £3153.2 million in 
health, £413.6 million in costs associated with the costs of crime and £95 million 
in the costs of homelessness. 

• Cooperation between commissioners is essential to ensure there is a strategic 
approach to commissioning that includes housing. 
 

 
7 Local context 

 
7.1 The Haringey Health and Wellbeing Strategy is the Borough’s overarching plan to 
improve the health and wellbeing of children and adults in our borough and to reduce 
health inequalities between the east and west.  The strategy is informed by the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment and supported by a delivery plan. 
 

7.2 The Strategy sets out three objectives: 

• Outcome 1 - Every Child has the best start in life; 

• Outcome 2 - A reduced gap in life expectancy; and of particular reference to 
this project 

• Outcome 3 - Improved mental health and wellbeing 

“We want all residents to enjoy the best possible mental health and wellbeing and 

have a good quality of life – a greater ability to manage their own lives, stronger 

social relationships, a greater sense of purpose, the skills they need for living and 

                                                           
4
 Mental Health Network, NHS Confederation, Briefing 2011 Issue 233 Housing and Mental Health 

 

Page 123



 

Page | 4 

 

working, improved chances in education, better employment rates and a suitable and 

stable place to live.” 

7.3 Priorities for outcome 3: 

• Promote the emotional well being of children and young people  

• Support independent living  

• Address common mental health problems among adults  

• Support people with severe and enduring mental health problems  

• Increase the number of problematic drug users in treatment 
 

8 Needs Assessment 
 

8.1 The Panel received a presentation by Public Health at its Panel in July 2013.  This 
presentation, ‘Mental Health and Wellbeing’ provides an overview of the demographics 
and mental health needs in the borough. 
 

8.2 The presentation can be found at Appendix A. 
 

9 Aims, objectives and outcomes from scrutiny involvement 
 
Access to accommodation for people with mental health needs 
 
9.1 Terms of reference 
 
To review housing needs and availability along the whole care pathway for people with 
mental health problems in order to make recommendations to assist people with mental 
health needs maintain, return to and/or access appropriate housing to support and 
maintain recovery from ill mental health (whether this is high level supported housing, 
housing as part of the pathway to recovery e.g. recovery houses or mainstream housing.) 
 
9.2 Objectives 

• To assess variety of accommodation offer available to people with mental health 
problems within the borough and outside the borough. 

• To ascertain current utilisation of available accommodations by Haringey’s residents 
compared to ‘out of the borough’ placements. 

• To compare availability of accommodation and needs locally 

• To consider the barriers for access to appropriate accommodation. 

• To assess the practical barriers which prevent people with mental health needs 
returning to and/or gaining accommodation following discharge. 

• To consider the practical barriers for people with mental health needs in maintaining 
tenancies. 

• To consider the funding arrangements across the partnership. 

• To gain an understanding of the care pathway from the perspective of patients and 
carers. 

• To ensure that specific strand of the project focuses on BME communities. 
 

9.3 Output of project 
 

Page 124



 

Page | 5 

 

• To make recommendations to assist more people with mental illness gaining 
appropriate housing at the appropriate point in the care pathway. 
 
 

10 Project Plan 
 
Evidence session 1 
Aim: To gain an understanding of the issues relating to the availability of 
accommodation in Haringey and access to accommodation. 

• Overview of available accommodation in Haringey 

• Discharge data – reasons why people are delayed – BEH MHT 

• Overview of issues - availability of accommodation 

• Overview of issues – returning to and maintaining tenancies, reasons for 
tenancies breaking down linked to mental health 

• Overview of best practice 
 
Evidence session 2 
Aim: To gain an understanding of the care pathway and how different agencies work 
together and fit into the care pathway. 

• Care pathway – admission to settled accommodation 
o Support provided to people to find suitable accommodation 
o Role of care coordinator at Panel 

• Partnership working and role within the pathway of: 
o Voluntary and Community Sector 
o Adult Services 
o BEH MHT 
o Housing 

§ Housing Related Support Team 
§ Vulnerable Adults Team 

• Cabinet Member 
 
Evidence session 3 
Aim: To gain an insight into patient experiences. 

• Report back on patient survey 

• Report back on patient/carer focus groups 

• Voluntary and Community Sector  
 

Evidence session 4 
Aim: to discuss and agree conclusions and recommendations. 
 

11 Stakeholders 
§ BEH Mental Health Trust 
§ Public Health 
§ Housing Services 

o Vulnerable Adults Team 
o Housing Related Support Team  

§ Adult Services 
§ Healthwatch Haringey 
§ Mental Health Support Association 

Page 125



 

Page | 6 

 

§ Mind in Haringey 
§ Haringey Association of Voluntary and Community Organisations 
§ Patients 
§ Polar Bear Community 
§ St Mungoes 
§ Haringey User Network 
 

  
 
 

 Aug. 

13 

Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. 

14 

Feb. Mar. Apr. 

Scoping          

Scoping 

agreed by 

Panel 

  

 

       

Scope agreed 

by OSC 

         

Meeting 1           

Meeting 2          

Meeting 3          

Consultation          

Reporting           

OSC          

Cabinet          

 
 
12 Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications  

 
There are no finance implications arising directly out of this report.  The work to 
support it will be carried out by officers of the stakeholder budgets and all costs should 
be met from existing resources.   
 

13 Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications 
 

 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on this Report. The draft Terms of 

Reference and Objectives are within the remit of the Panel.  

 
 

Page 126



 

Page | 7 

 

14 Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 

14.1 Overview and scrutiny has a strong community engagement role and aims to 
regularly involve local stakeholders, including residents, in its work. It seeks to do 
this through: 
§ Helping to articulate the views of members of the local community and their 
representatives on issues of local concern 

§ As a means of bringing local concerns to the attention of decision makers and 
incorporate them into policies and strategies 

§ Identified and engages with hard to reach groups 
§ Helping to develop consensus by seeking to reconcile differing views and 
developing a shared view of the way forward 

§ The evidence generated by scrutiny involvement helps to identify the kind of 
services wanted by local people 

§ It promotes openness and transparency; all meetings are held in public and 
documents are available to local people. 

 
14.2 A number of engagement processes will be used as part of the work of the Panel 
and will seek to include a broad representation from local stakeholders.  It is expected 
that any equalities issues identified within the consultation will be highlighted and 
addressed in the conclusions and recommendations reached by the panel.   

 

15 Head of Procurement Comments 
 

15.1 Not applicable. 
 

16 Policy Implications  
 

16.1 Haringey’s Corporate Plan 2013/14 - 2014/15 sets out the council’s strategic 
direction for the next two years and includes a number of outcomes being sought and 
the priorities associated with each outcome. 
 

16.2 This project aims to contribute to the Corporate Plan outcomes of: 
 

• Safety and Wellbeing for all: A place where everyone feels safe and has a 
good quality of life. 
Priority – Reduce health inequalities and improve wellbeing for all 

 

• Opportunities for all: A successful place for everyone 
Priority - Ensure that everyone has a decent place to live 

 

17 Use of Appendices 
 

17.1 Appendix A – Mental Health and Wellbeing 
   

18 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



A
D

U
L
T

S
 A

N
D

 H
E

L
T

H
 

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 P

A
N

E
L
: 

M
E

N
T
A

L
 H

E
A

L
T

H
  
A

N
D

 

W
E

L
L
B

E
IN

G
 

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

, 
H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

Page 129



W
h

y
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 m

a
tt

e
rs

?
 

 l
o
c
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

  M
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 i
n

 H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

 w
id

e
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

a
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h

, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 

d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
s
, 

c
u

rr
e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

 N
e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
 

 w
h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
 a

re
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 

a
n
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 

 D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 

 w
h

a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
fu

l 
to

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
n
 m

o
re

 i
n

-d
e
p
th

 

O
&

S
 

O
u

tl
in

e
 

Page 130



W
h

y
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 

Page 131



B
u

rd
e
n

 o
f 
m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 l
o
c
a

lly
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

tt
p
:/
/n

a
s
c
is

.i
c
.n

h
s
.u

k
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3
 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 

(u
n

v
a

lid
a

te
d

) 

is
 7

6
.3

%
 

3
1

%
 

2
3

%
 

1
7

%
 

0
%

 

1
0
%

 

2
0
%

 

3
0
%

 

4
0
%

 

H
a
ri
n

g
e

y
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 

%
 c

li
e
n

ts
 i

n
 d

ru
g

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 

w
it

h
 d

u
a
l 

d
ia

g
n

o
s
is

  
N

e
w

 c
li
e
n

ts
 i

n
 d

ru
g

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 A

ll
o

w
a
n

c
e
 

 

%
 A

d
u

lt
s
 i

n
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

w
it

h
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 

m
e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l

iv
in

g
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

tl
y
  

(2
0
1
1
/1

2
) 

H
a

ri
n
g

e
y
 

6
1
.3

%
  

G
ro

u
p

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 

7
3
.9

%
  

Page 132



B
u

rd
e
n

 o
f 
m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 l
o
c
a

lly

D
ru

g
 m

is
u

se
 l

in
k

e
d

 

to
 o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

2
4

8
M

e
n

ta
l h

e
a

lt
h

 

co
n

ce
rn

s 

3
3

2

A
lc

o
h

o
l 

m
is

u
se

 li
n

k
e

d
 

to
 o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 

2
0

9

5
9

7
6

2
0

1
2

5

5
5

7
7

7
5

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n

 

K
e
y
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 l

in
k
e
d

 t
o

 o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
  

(o
f 

th
e
 1

0
6
2
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
ff

e
n

d
e
rs

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 

p
ro

b
a
ti

o
n

 S
e
p

-A
u

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
)1

 

0
%

 6
%

 

1
1

%
 1
9

%
 

2
2

%
 

2
8

%
 

2
9

%
 4

1
%

 

4
5

%
 

4
5

%
 5

6
%

 

6
1

%
 

6
2

%
 

6
7

%
 

7
4

%
 

0
%

 
2
0
%

 
4
0
%

 
6
0
%

 
8
0
%

 

In
d

ic
ta

b
le

 M
o

to
ri
n

g
 

 

F
ra

u
d

 &
 F

o
rg

e
ry

 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 M
o

to
ri
n

g
 

 

D
ru

g
 O

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 

T
h

e
ft

 a
n

d
 H

a
n

d
lin

g
 

B
u

rg
la

ry
 

O
th

e
r 

In
d

ic
ta

b
le

 
 

R
o
b

b
e

ry
 

V
io

le
n

c
e

 A
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 

 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
O

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 

O
th

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
 

D
ru

g
 m

is
u
s
e

 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 
 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
m

is
u

s
e

 l
in

k
e

d
 

 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 

C
ri
m

in
a

l 
D

a
m

a
g
e

 

3
2

%
 o

f 
a

ll
 

o
ff

e
n

d
e
rs

 h
a
v
e

 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

p
ro

b
le

m
s

 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
o

ff
e
n

d
e
rs

 w
it

h
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
  

(p
ro

b
a
ti

o
n

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
m

e
n

ts
 S

e
p

-A
u

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
) 

 

3
2

%
 

  
 2

0
%

 

2
3

%
 

2
0

7
 o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 (
1

9
.5

%
) 

h
a

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

p
ro

b
le

m
s

 a
n
d

 s
u

b
s

ta
n

c
e

 m
is

u
s

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 133



T
h
e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 v
ic

ti
m

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

is
s
u
e
s
, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e
 e

x
tr

a
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
: 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 A

S
B

 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 b
y
 t

h
o
s
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

O
n
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 3

5
2
 f
e
w

e
r 

c
a
lls

, 
d
o
w

n
 t

o
 4

1
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 A
n
o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
is

s
u

e
 h

a
s
 s

e
e

n
 8

1
 f

e
w

e
r 

c
a

lls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 

  

C
lo

s
e
r 

lia
is

o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 T

ru
s
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

e
a
m

 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 c

a
ll 

v
o
lu

m
e
s
 f
a
lli

n
g
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 f
ro

m
 2

1
8
 t
o
 4

7
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 

 

A
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 134



a
n

d
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 f
o

r 
m

e
n

; 

A
b

o
u

t 
2

6
 H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

m
it
 s

u
ic

id
e

 

e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r;

  

T
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
d

e
a

th
s
 b

y
 s

u
ic

id
e

 a
re

 i
n

 

m
e

n
 a

g
e

d
 2

5
-4

4
 

In
 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
1

0
 y

e
a

rs
, 
6

2
%

 o
f 
s
u

ic
id

e
s
 w

e
re

 

p
e

o
p

le
 b

o
rn

 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 3
4

%
 b

o
rn

 

a
b

ro
a

d
 (

A
fr

o
-C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n

, 
E

a
s
te

rn
 E

u
ro

p
e

a
n

) 
; 

  

B
u

rd
e
n

 o
f 
m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 l
o
c
a

lly

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
C

o
ro

n
e

rs
 S

u
ic

id
e

 A
u

d
it
 d

a
ta

 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

T
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 s

u
ic

id
e

s
 w

e
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 b
y
 1

1
%

 r
e

ti
re

d
; 
4

7
%

 w
e

re
 

s
in

g
le

 a
n

d
 1

7
%

 w
e

re
 d

iv
o

rc
e

d
; 
 

4
.8

%
 c

a
s
e

s
 f
o

r 
w

h
o

m
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 w

e
re

 k
n

o
w

n
 t
o

 a
 G

P
. 
A

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

re
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 h
a

d
 n

o
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
 b

u
t 
1
1

%
 h

a
d

 d
ia

g
n

o
s
is

 o
f 
m

e
n

ta
l 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

Page 135



M
e
n

ta
l 
 I
ll
n

e
s
s
 c

o
s
t 

s
o

c
ie

ty
 a

b
o

u
t 

1
0
0
b

n
, 

3
0
b

n
 i
s
 w

o
rk

 r
e
la

te
d

 

1
 i
n

 6
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
il
l 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 a

t 
s
o

m
e
 p

o
in

t,
 1

 i
n

 1
0
0
 w

il
l 

h
a
v
e
 s

e
v
e
re

 M
H

 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 

M
H

 i
s

 t
h

e
 l

a
rg

e
s
t 

s
in

g
le

 
c
a
u

s
e
 o

f 
d

is
a
b

il
it

y,
 i

t 
 

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 2
3

%
 o

f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l 
b

u
rd

e
n

 o
f 

il
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 

5
0

%
 w

it
h

 l
if

e
ti

m
e
 i

ll
n

e
s

s
 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e
 s

y
m

p
to

m
s
 

b
e

fo
re

 a
g

e
 o

f 
1

4
, 

¾
 b

y
 

th
e
ir

 2
0
s
 

9
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 
M

H
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
b

e
in

g
 s

ti
g

m
a

ti
s
e

d
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 i
s

 a
s
s

o
c

ia
te

d
 w

it
h

: 
b

e
tt

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
s
, 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 l
if

e
 e

x
p

e
c

ta
n

c
y
, 

re
d

u
c

e
d

 c
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 v

io
le

n
c
e

, 
p

o
s

it
iv

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 r
e

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

M
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
g

e
t 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 
a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

W
h

y
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 -

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 

Page 136



P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h
 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
A

d
a

p
te

d
 f
ro

m
 H

u
p

p
e

rt
 2

0
0

5
: 
p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 f
ro

m
 K

e
y
e

s
 2

0
0

5
 

Page 137



F
ro

m
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
: 
im

p
a

c
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 l
if
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 

In
fl
u
e
n
c
in

g
 f

a
c
to

rs
 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

W
id

e
r 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

  

 L
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
t 

Il
ln

e
s
s
 

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
  

a
n
d
 

a
tt
a
c
h
m

e
n
t 

In
c
o
m

e
/E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

in
 f

a
m

ily
 

 

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 

 C
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e

 

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

R
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 

D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
n
s
it
y
 

 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

P
h
ys

ic
a
l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 

L
o
n
e
lin

e
s
s
 

R
e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

C
o
n
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 d

is
o
rd

e
r 

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
is

o
rd

e
r 

H
y
p
e
rk

in
e
ti
c
 d

is
o
rd

e
r 

(A
D

H
D

) 

L
e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 d

is
o
rd

e
rs

 (
e
.g

. 

e
a
ti
n
g
 d

is
o
rd

e
r)

 

C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

P
o
o
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

F
a
m

ily
 b

re
a
k
d
o
w

n
 

P
s
y
c
h
o
ti
c
 d

is
o
rd

e
rs

 

N
o
n
-p

s
y
c
h
o
ti
c
 (

d
e
p
re

s
s
io

n
, 

a
n
x
ie

ty
, 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lit

y
 

d
is

o
rd

e
rs

) 

D
u
a
l 
d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

 

 

C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 

U
n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

O
rg

a
n
ic

 d
is

o
rd

e
r 

(D
e
m

e
n
ti
a
) 

O
th

e
r 

c
o
g
n
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
ir
m

e
n
t 

D
e
p
re

s
s
io

n
 

Is
o
la

ti
o
n
 

A
n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

Page 138



C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

Page 139



K
e

y
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
in

g
 f

a
c
to

rs
 f
o

r 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

1
0
.1

 
9
.0

 
7
.9

 

2
 

4
 

6
 

8
 

1
0
 

1
2
 2

0
0
4
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
 

2
0
0
8

 
2
0
0
9
 

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
1
1
 

2
0
1
2
 

%  

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
2

0
0

4
-2

0
1

2
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y,
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 U

K
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

Y
o
u
th

 

J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 

7
6
7
 

0
 

5
0
0

 

1
,0

0
0
 

1
,5

0
0
 

2
,0

0
0
 

Oct 09 - 
 Sep 10 

Jan 10 -  
Dec 10 

Apr 10 - 
 Mar 11 

Jul 10 -  
Jun 11 

Oct 10 - 
 Sep 11 

Jan 11 - 
 Dec 11 

Apr 11 - 
 Mar 12 

Jul 11 -  
Jun 12 

Oct 11 - 
Sep 12 

F
ir

s
t 

ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
 y

o
u

th
 j

u
s
ti

c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 

a
g

e
d

 1
0
 -

1
7
 (

ra
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
) 

in
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
, 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
a
n

d
 Y

O
S

 F
a
m

il
y
 G

ro
u

p
 

L
o
n
d
o
n

 

Y
O

S
 F

a
m

ily
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

N
e

w
 p

o
p
n
. 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 140



T
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
n

e
e

d
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 (

C
Y

P
) 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

M
e
lt

z
e
r 

e
t 

a
l,
 2

0
0
3

 

5
7
5
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

a
s
 o

f 
3
1

s
t  

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

P
re

v
a

le
n

c
e
 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

 

(3
1

6
0

) 

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

3
.1

%
 

1
1
3
9
 

C
o

n
d

u
c
t 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

4
.5

%
 

1
6
5
3
 

H
y
p
e
rk

in
e
ti
c
 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

(A
D

H
D

) 

1
.8

%
 

6
6
1
 

L
e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

0
.7

%
 

2
5
7
 

P
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

 e
s

ti
m

a
te

s
 o

f 
 a

ll
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 5

-1
6

 y
e

a
rs

 

o
f 

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s

 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

(I
n

n
e

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

) 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

P
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

 
E

s
ti

m
a

te
 

(2
5

5
) 

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
is

o
rd

e
r 

1
1
.7

%
 

6
7
 

C
o

n
d

u
c
t 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

3
7
%

 
2
1
2
 

H
y
p
e
rk

in
e
ti
c
 d

is
o
rd

e
r 

7
.3

%
 

2
9
 

L
e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 d

is
o
rd

e
r 

3
.7

%
 

2
1
 

B
o
y
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
t 

a
n
d
 

h
y
p
e
rk

in
e
ti
c
 d

is
o
rd

e
rs

 

a
n
d
 g

ir
ls

 m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 

P
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

 e
s

ti
m

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

L
o

o
k

e
d

 

A
ft

e
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 2
0

1
2

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
O

ff
ic

e
 f
o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
, 
2
0
1
2
. 
G

re
e
n
, 
H

. 
e
t 
a
l 

(2
0
0
4
).

  

T
h

e
  

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 r

o
s

e
 b

y
 o

v
e

r 
a

 t
e

n
th

  
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

2
0

0
1

 a
n

d
 2

0
1
1

 (
1

2
%

 ,
 N

=
5

0
1

2
).

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
C

Y
P

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

  
d

e
c

re
a

s
e

d
  
(1

%
) 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 141



T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

c
o
m

m
o
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

 w
a
s
 a

u
ti
s
m

 

(3
5
%

) 
fo

llo
w

e
d
 b

y
 

m
o
d
e
ra

te
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 (

2
1
%

) 
a
n
d
 

e
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l,
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 (

1
2
%

) 

    

C
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

l 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

n
e
e

d
s
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n
g

e
y
 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
L

B
H

  
S

E
N

 R
e

g
is

te
r 

A
u

ti
sm

 i
n

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 b
y

 p
la

ce
 o

f 
re

si
d

e
n

ce
 

(4
9

1
) 

(2
0

1
3

, 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

) 
 

8
3
%

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

w
it
h
 a

u
ti
s
m

 a
re

 

b
o
y
s
 

0
 

5
 

1
0

 

1
5

 

2
0

 

2
5

 

3
0

 

3
5

 

4
0

 

4
5

 

5
0

 

Tottenham Hale 

Northumberlan 

St Ann's 

Noel Park 

Tottenham  

White Heart Lane 

Fortis Green 

Hornsey 

Woodside 

Alexandra 

Bounds Green 

Seven Sisters 

West Green 

Harringay 

Bruce Grove 

Stroud Green 

Highgate 

Crouch End 

Muswell Hill C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 142



1
1
1
3
 

1
0
7
 

3
1
6
0
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

C
Y

P
) 

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

 f
o

r 
5

-1
6
 

y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

(2
0
1
1
) 

C
A

M
H

S
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

  

(2
0
1
1
/1

2
) 

H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

d
m

is
s

io
n

s
 

5
-1

9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

2
0
0
8
/9

- 
2
0
0
9
-1

0
  

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

, 
2

0
1
1

 H
a
ri
n

g
e

y
 N

e
e

d
s
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 C
e
n

s
u

s
 2

0
1
1

  

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 e

s
ti

m
a
te

s
, 

C
A

M
H

S
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 a
n

d
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 

a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s

 
 

C
A

M
H

S
 R

E
F

E
R

R
A

L
S

 
 

2
7
%

 w
e
re

 B
la

c
k
 B

ri
ti

s
h

 f
o

ll
o

w
e
d

 

b
y
 W

h
it

e
 B

ri
ti

s
h

 (
1
5
%

) 
a
n

d
 

T
u

rk
is

h
 (

7
%

) 
 

 L
a

rg
e

s
t 

g
ro

u
p

 a
g

e
d

 1
4

-1
7
 (

4
0
%

) 

fo
ll
o

w
e
d

 b
y
 5

-1
0
 (

3
1
%

) 
a
n

d
 1

1
-

1
3
 (

2
3
%

).
  

6
%

 <
5

y
 

 T
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 c
o

m
e
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

(3
0
%

 r
e
s
id

e
 i

n
 N

1
7
, 

1
9
%

 i
n

 N
1
5
 

a
n

d
 1

8
%

 i
n

 N
2
2
).

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 

h
ig

h
e
r 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
y
 

a
re

 o
v
e
rr

e
p

re
s

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

. 
 

  

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 143



E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
rl
y
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 

C
ri

m
e
 

(O
R

) 

S
m

o
k

in
g

 

(O
R

) 

D
ru

g
 

(O
R

) 

D
e
p

re
s
s
io

n
 

(O
R

) 

S
u

ic
id

e
 

(O
R

) 

N
o

 p
ro

b
le

m
 

(5
0
%

) 
1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

S
o
m

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
t 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 (

4
5
%

) 
1
.9

5
 

1
.2

4
 

1
.5

1
 

1
.2

4
 

1
.6

9
 

C
o
n
d
u
c
t 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

(5
%

) 
4
.1

3
 

1
.5

9
 

2
.5

9
 

1
.5

7
 

3
.0

0
 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 s
a

v
in

g
 i
n

 

li
fe

ti
m

e
 c

o
s

t 
is

 

a
p

p
ro

x
. 
£

2
3

0
,0

0
0

 
p

e
r 

c
o

n
d

u
c

t 
d

is
o

rd
e

r 

c
a

s
e

 p
re

v
e

n
te

d
 

L
o

n
g

-t
e
rm

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it

h
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 

  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
F

ri
e
d
li 

L
 a

n
d
 P

a
rs

o
n
a
g
e
 M

 (
2
0
0
7
) 

M
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
: 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

a
s
e

 

7
1
%

 

1
3
%

 

7
%

 9
%

 
C

ri
m

e
  

M
e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 i
n
 

a
d

u
lt
h

o
o

d
 

L
if
e
ti
m

e
 e

a
rn

in
g
s
 

O
th

e
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

L
if

e
ti

m
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

d
is

o
rd

e
rs

 

  

B
o

y
s

 a
re

 m
o

re
 

li
k

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 

c
o

n
d

u
c

t 
d

is
o

rd
e

rs
 

th
a

n
 g

ir
ls

 

Page 144



P
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e

r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

Page 145



K
e
y
 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
in

g
 f
a

c
to

rs
 f
o
r 

m
e
n

ta
l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 i
n

 

w
o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

5
.0

4
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
D

C
L

G
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 146



 

 T
h
e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
n
e
e

d
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 (

A
d
u

lt
s
) 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 l
o

c
a
ll

y
 

M
ix

e
d

 a
n

x
ie

ty
 a

n
d

 

d
e

p
re

s
s
io

n
 

1
5

, 
9

6
2

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l a

n
x
ie

ty
 

1
0

, 
0

7
2

 

D
e
p

re
s
s
io

n
 

  
6

, 
6

6
7

 

A
ll 

p
h

o
b

ia
 

  
4

, 
1

5
9

 

O
C

D
 

  
2

, 
9

4
1

 

P
a

n
ic

 d
is

o
rd

e
r 

  
1

, 
5

9
3

 

T
o

ta
l 

 3
4

, 
4

8
5

 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 o
f 

n
o

n
-p

s
y
c

h
o

ti
c

 

d
is

o
rd

e
rs

 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

5
 i
n

 1
,0

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

v
e

r 
1

6
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 

a
g

e
 l
iv

e
 w

it
h

 p
s
y
c
h

o
ti
c
 d

is
o

rd
e

r.
 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 1

0
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
o
c
a
lly

  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 O

b
s
e
rv

a
to

ry
, 

N
E

P
H

O
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 N
e

e
d

s
 I
n

d
e

x
 (

M
in

i 
2

0
0

0
) 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 147



A
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
: 
n
o

n
-p

s
y
c
h
o

ti
c
 

d
is

o
rd

e
rs

 -
 d

e
p

re
s
s
io

n
 

D
ia

g
n

o
s

e
d

 d
e

p
re

s
s

io
n

 i
n

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 c

a
re

  

(1
5

, 
8

4
9

) 
%

 o
f 

re
g

is
te

re
d

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

, 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2
 

 S
o

u
rc

e
: 
Q

o
F

 2
0

1
2

 

0
 

1
0
0
0
 

2
0
0
0
 

3
0
0
0
 

Per 100,000 pop 

6
5
+

 (
1

2
0

2
 p

e
r 

1
0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

) 

2
0
-6

4
 (

5
6
1

.7
 p

e
r 

1
0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

) 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
S

U
S

 (
N

H
S

 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 U
s
e
rs

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

D
e

p
re

s
s

io
n

 r
e

la
te

d
 h

o
s

p
it

a
l 
a

d
m

is
s

io
n

s
 b

y
 

w
a
rd

  
(1

,1
4

7
) 

H
o

s
p

it
a
l 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
  
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 (

E
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 B

E
H

 M
H

 

T
ru

s
t)

 

6
,2

9
5

 c
a

s
e

s
 i
n

 w
e

s
t 
(9

%
) 

9
,5

4
0

 in
 e

a
s
t 
(6

.7
%

) 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 148



A
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

IA
P

T
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
ild

 t
o
 m

o
d

e
ra

te
 

d
e
p

re
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

/o
r 

a
n

x
ie

ty
 

M
a
le

 
3
0
%

 

F
e

m
a
le

 
7
0
%

 

4
7
%

 W
h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

 2
2
%

 W
h
it
e
 o

th
e
r 

 1
3
%

 B
la

c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 

/C
a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
/O

th
e
r 

3
7
%

 W
h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 

 2
8
%

 W
h
it
e
 o

th
e
r 

 1
6
%

 B
la

c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 

/C
a

ri
b
b
e
a
n
/O

th
e
r 

4
1
1
2

 

p
e
o
p
le

 

re
fe

rr
e
d
  

2
2
7
1

 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n
t 

1
6
2
0

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

IA
P

T
 =

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 P

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

T
h
e
ra

p
ie

s
; 

W
h

it
ti
n
g
to

n
 H

e
a
lt
h

 

Page 149



A
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
: 
 

p
s
y
c
h

o
ti
c
 d

is
o

rd
e

rs
 

D
ia

g
n

o
s
e
d

 p
s
y
c
h

o
ti

c
 d

is
o

rd
e
rs

 i
n

 p
ri

m
a
ry

 c
a
re

  

(3
,3

8
1
) 

%
 o

f 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

, 
H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
2

 
 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
Q

o
F

 2
0

1
2

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

P
ro

fi
le

 2
0
1
3

 

4
1

1
6

0

3
7

1
0

3

3
2

5
7

U
n

ip
o

la
r 

d
e

p
re

ss
iv

e
 

d
is

o
rd

e
rs

 D
S

R
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 t
o

 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

A
d

m
is

si
o

n
s 

fo
r 

sc
h

iz
o

p
h

re
n

ia
, 

sc
h

iz
o

ty
p

a
l a

n
d

 

d
e

lu
si

o
n

a
l 

d
is

o
rd

e
rs

 

H
o

s
p

it
a
l 

a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 (

D
S

R
) 

2
0

0
9

/1
0
 t
o

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

E
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 B

E
H

 M
H

 T
ru

s
t 

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

  L
o

n
d

o
n

 

  E
n

g
la

n
d
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

9
1
7
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 w

e
s
t 

(1
.2

%
) 

 

2
,4

6
2
 i
n
 e

a
s
t 

(1
.7

%
) 

Page 150



 

  T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 Q

o
F

 

re
g
is

te
r 

is
 6

8
4
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
1
3
8
7
 

(4
9
%

) 

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e

d
 

6
5
+

 h
a
s
 f

a
lle

n
 f

ro
m

 9
.8

%
 t

o
 

8
.8

%
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0

1
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
1

 

b
u
t 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

h
a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 2

,6
0
4
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
Q

O
F

 d
a
ta

 2
0
1
2

 

D
e
m

e
n

ti
a
 d

ia
g

n
o

s
e
d

 i
n

 p
ri

m
a
ry

 c
a
re

 (
6
8
4
) 

 
%

 o
f 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

, 
H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
2

  

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
: 
d

e
m

e
n
ti
a

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
S

U
S

 (
N

H
S

 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 U
s
e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

2
5
5
 (

0
.2

9
%

) 
in

 

w
e

s
t,

 4
2

9
 (

0
.3

0
%

) 

in
 e

a
s
t 

Page 151



  A
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 B
E

H
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ru

s
t:

 h
o
s
p

it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
  

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

4
4

%
 o

f 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

u
n

d
e

r 
M

H
A

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 

w
e

re
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 

o
ri
g
in

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
o

 

2
8

%
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 

a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

5
3
%

 

1
4
%

 

1
0
%

 

9
%

 7
%

 

3
%

 4
%

 

P
s
y
c
h
o
s
is

  

B
ip

o
la

r 
a
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 d

is
o
rd

e
r 

D
e
p
re

s
s
iv

e
 e

p
is

o
d
e

 

D
u
a
l 
d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

  

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lit

y 
d
is

o
rd

e
rs

 

S
tr

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
x
ie

ty
  

O
th

e
r 

 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
B

E
H

 M
H

 T
ru

s
t,

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 

0
%

 

5
%

 

1
0
%

 

1
5
%

 

2
0
%

 

2
5
%

 

3
0
%

 

3
5
%

 

4
0
%

 

Other 

British 

Irish 

African 

Other 

Caribbean 

Other 

Bangladeshi 

Indian 

Pakistani 

Other 

White and Asian 

W. & B. African 

W. & B. Caribbean 

Not Known 

Not Stated 

Other ethnic group 

Chinese 

W
h
it
e
: 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
 

B
la

c
k
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
: 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
 

A
s
ia

n
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
: 

 

M
ix

e
d
: 

O
th

e
r:

 

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 a

d
m

is
s

io
n

s
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 b

y
  

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 A
c

t 
s

ta
tu

s
 a

n
d

 e
th

n
ic

it
y
 

N
o
n
-s

e
c
ti
o
n
 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
  

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

(2
0
1
1
 

C
e
n
s
u
s
) 

6
3
2
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

x
. 

4
8
0
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y
 

w
a
s
 4

0
 d

a
y
s
 

M
o

s
t 

c
o

m
m

o
n

 d
ia

g
n

o
s
e

s
 

0
%

 

5
%

 

1
0
%

 

1
5
%

 

2
0
%

 

2
5
%

 

3
0
%

 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y 

P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

(C
e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
) 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

A
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 a

d
m

is
s

io
n

s
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 b

y
 a

g
e

 

Page 152



  

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 B
E

H
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ru
s
t:

  
o

u
tp

a
ti
e

n
t,
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
  

 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

6
,7

3
2
 

3
,3

5
2
 

9
1

,4
9

8
 

1
,8

0
0

 
3
8
3
 

6
,0

4
0
 

0
 

1
0

,0
0

0
 

2
0

,0
0

0
 

3
0

,0
0

0
 

4
0

,0
0

0
 

5
0

,0
0

0
 

6
0

,0
0

0
 

7
0

,0
0

0
 

8
0

,0
0

0
 

9
0

,0
0

0
 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

O
u
tp

a
ti
e
n
t 

D
a
y
 C

a
re

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

C
o

n
ta

c
ts

 

C
o

n
ta

c
ts

 

P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 

 

D
A

Y
 C

A
R

E
 

 

9
%

 n
e
w

 c
a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 9

1
%

 f
o
llo

w
-u

p
 

 M
o
s
t 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 

p
s
y
c
h
o
s
is

 (
5
0
%

) 
a
n
d
 d

e
p
re

s
s
io

n
 

(7
%

).
  

 L
a
rg

e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 (

1
7
%

) 
d
id

 n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 d
ia

g
n
o
s
e
s
  

 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 v
s
. 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

  

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
B

E
H

 M
H

 T
ru

s
t 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 P

u
b

lic
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 

  

O
U

T
P

A
T

IE
N

T
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T

S
  

 

5
%

 n
e
w

 c
a

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 9
5

%
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 

 M
o
s
t 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 

p
s
y
c
h
o
s
is

 (
6
7
%

),
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 (

7
%

),
 

d
e
p
re

s
s
io

n
 (

6
%

) 
a
n
d
 d

u
a
l 
d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

 

(4
%

).
  

    

3
.7

 
  
  
 8

.8
 

  
  
  
  
  

1
5
.1

 
C

o
n

ta
c
ts

 

p
e

r 
p

a
ti
e

n
t:

 

Page 153



A
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

C
IP

FA
 B

e
n

ch
m

a
rk

in
g

 C
lu

b
, 

S
D

S
 2

0
1

2
 &

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 P

o
li

cy
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

  

8
4
%

 

0
%

 

2
0
%

 

4
0
%

 

6
0
%

 

8
0
%

 

1
0
0
%

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

%
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
n

 S
e
lf

 
D

ir
e
c
te

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 (

"
P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

"
) 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

C
IP

F
A

 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
 

T
h

e
re

 w
e
re

 3
0
9
 M

H
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
g
e
d
 1

8
-6

4
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

e
lf
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

in
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d
 t

o
 6

1
 i
n
 2

0
1
1

-1
2
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n

ts
 a

 4
0
6
%

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

  

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 

p
ic

tu
re

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 154



A
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o

n
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

9
5
%

 o
f 
k
n
o
w

n
  

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 u

ti
lis

e
d
  

M
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 h
o

u
s

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

b
y
 c

a
p

a
c

it
y
 (

2
0

1
1

) 

M
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
h

o
m

e
s

 b
y
 c

a
p

a
c

it
y
 (

2
0

1
1

) 

2
2
5
 b

e
d
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 

o
n
ly

 1
0
0
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 L

B
H

 

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y,

 
9

6
 

C
a

m
d

e
n

, 
1

8
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

, 
1

2
 

E
n

fi
e

ld
, 
1

1

Is
li

n
g

to
n

, 
9

 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
  

H
a

ri
n
g

e
y
 

C
a

m
d

e
n
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 
E

n
fi
e

ld
 

Is
lin

g
to

n
 

W
e

s
tm

in
s
te

r 
W

a
lt
h

a
m

 F
o
re

s
t 

L
a
m

b
e
th

 
N

e
w

h
a
m

  
E

a
lin

g
 

N
e

w
h

a
m

 
B

re
n
t 

R
e

d
b

ri
d
g

e
 

H
a

c
k
n

e
y
 

E
s
s
e

x
 

Page 155



S
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o

n

O
v
e

r 
1

0
0

 u
n

it
s
, 
ru

n
n

in
g
 a

t 
n

e
a

rl
y
 1

0
0

%
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 

 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

A
d

u
lt

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 P
ro

vi
d

e
r 

S
u

rv
e

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
1

 

-2
5
%

 
-1

5
%

 
-5

%
 

5
%

 
1
5
%

 
2
5
%

 

%
 o

f 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

%
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

 

2
5
-3

4
 

3
5
-4

4
 

4
5
-5

4

5
5
-6

4
 

6
5
+

 

1
8
-2

4
 

M
a

le
 

F
e

m
a

le
 

0
%

 
1
0
%

 
2
0
%

 
3
0
%

 
4
0
%

 
5
0
%

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 

W
h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 

W
h
it
e
 I
ri
s
h

 

W
h
it
e
 O

th
e
r 

M
ix

e
d
 E

th
n
ic

it
y
 

O
th

e
r 

E
th

n
ic

 G
ro

u
p

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
  

(H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
la

te
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

) 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 L
iv

in
g

 (
p

ri
v
a

te
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
p

la
c

e
s

 

fu
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

-2
5
%

 
-1

5
%

 
-5

%
 

5
%

 
1
5
%

 
2
5
%

 

2
5
-

3
5

-4
4

 

4
5

-5
4

 

5
5

-6
4

 

6
5

+
 

1
8

-2
4

 

M
a

le
 

F
e

m
a

le
 

0
%

 
1
0
%

 2
0
%

 3
0
%

 4
0
%

 5
0
%

 6
0
%

 

A
s
ia

n
 o

r 
A

s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 

W
h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 

W
h
it
e
 I
ri
s
h

 

W
h
it
e
 O

th
e
r 

7
7

 u
n

it
s
 ,
 H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 u

s
e

s
 a

b
o

u
t 
9

5
%

 o
f 

k
n

o
w

n
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y.

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

a
g

e
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 

Page 156



A
g

re
e

d
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

o
in

ts
 

Page 157



 1
. 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 A

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 P

a
th

w
a
y
 (

C
A

M
H

S
):

 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 

a
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
a
th

w
a
y
 w

it
h
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 
T

ie
r 

1
 a

n
d
 T

ie
r 

2
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 2
. 
S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 d

a
ta

 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 i
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

  

 3
. 
E

x
p
lo

re
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 t

o
 d

ir
e
c
t 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 M

H
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 

a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

ri
m

in
a
l 
ju

s
ti
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 

 4
. 
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 t

o
 m

e
n

 a
n
d
 t

a
c
k
le

 

s
ti
g
m

a
 

5
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

M
H

 a
n
d

 e
x
p
lo

re
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

jo
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

6
. 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

e
v
e
re

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
: 

e
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
t 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e
 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
S

ta
t 
S

ix
 A

c
ti
o

n
 p

o
in

ts
 

Page 158



 

Page | 1 

 

 

Report for: 
Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel, 

19th September 2013 
Item Number:  

 

Title: Scoping report – mental health and physical health 

 

Report 

Authorised by: 

Cllr Gina Adamou 

Chair of the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel  

 

Lead Officer: 

Melanie Ponomarenko, Senior Scrutiny Officer,  
Strategy & Business Intelligence 
Melanie.Ponomarenko@haringey.gov.uk 
0208 489 2933 

 

Ward(s) affected: All Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 

 

1 Describe the issue under consideration  
 
1.1  The Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel have agreed to undertake two projects focused 

on mental health: 
§ Physical health and mental health; 

§ Access to accommodation for people with mental health needs; 

§ It is anticipated that both of these projects will have a specific BME strand. 

1.2 .  The following provides a scope of the planned work on mental health and physical 
health which is to be agreed by the panel. 

 
2 Cabinet Member Introduction  
 

2.1 N/A 
 
3 Recommendations  
 
3.1 That the Adult and Health Scrutiny Panel discuss and agree the terms of reference 

and objectives set out in this report.   
 

4 Other options considered 
 

4.1 N/A 
 

Agenda Item 12Page 159



 

Page | 2 

 

5 Background information  
 

5.1  Under the agreed terms of reference, the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel can assist 
the Council and the Cabinet in its budgetary and policy framework through conducting 
in depth analysis of local policy issues.  

 
5.2  In this context, the Adults and Health scrutiny panel may: 

§ Review the performance of the Council in relation to its policy objectives, 

performance targets and/or particular service areas; 

§ Conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of policy 

issues and possible options; 

§ Make recommendations to the Cabinet or relevant non-executive Committee 

arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process. 

5.3  Cabinet Members, senior officers and other stakeholders were consulted in the 

development of an outline work programme for Overview & Scrutiny Committee and 

Scrutiny Panels.  Project work undertaken by the Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel on 

mental health was agreed as part of this work programme by the Committee on the 

June 17th 2013.   

6 National context 
 

6.1 The Health and Social Act of 20121 put a responsibility on the health secretary to 
secure improvement “in the physical and mental health of the people of England”. 
 

6.2  The government’s mental health strategy, “No health without mental health2” aims 
to mainstream mental health.  The strategy includes a number of objectives to 
improve the mental health of the population.  Most relevant to this project is objective 
3: 
 
More people with mental health problems will have good physical health: 

• Fewer people with mental health problems will die prematurely; and  

• More people with physical ill health will have better mental health. 
 

 
6.3 The following points are taken from “Whole person care: from rhetoric to reality – 

Achieving parity between mental and physical health”3: 
 

6.3.1 Poor mental health is associated with a greater risk of physical health problems, and 
poor physical health is associated with a greater risk of mental health problems.  
Mental health affects physical health and vice versa.” 

 

                                                           
1
 Health and Social Care Act 2012, www.legislation.gov.uk 

2
 No health without mental health, 2011, HM Government 

3
 Whole person care: from rhetoric to reality – Achieving parity between mental and physical health, 

Occasional paper OP88, March 2013, Royal College of Psychiatrists 
 
 

Page 160



 

Page | 3 

 

6.3.2 A ‘parity response’ should enable health and social care services to provide a holistic 
‘whole person’ response to each individual and should ensure that people’s mental 
health is given equal status to their physical health. 

 
6.3.3 Research shows that people with mental health problems have higher rates of 

physical ill health and die earlier than the general population, largely from treatable 
conditions associated with modifiable risk factors such as smoking, obesity 
substance misuse and inadequate medical care.  These factors lead to a reduced life 
expectancy and higher levels of physical ill health several decades later (relevant to 
Domain 2). 

 
6.3.4 The life expectancy of those with severe mental illness is on average 20 year less for 

men and 15 years less for women, when compared to the population as a whole. 
 
6.3.5 People with severe mental illness are significantly more likely to have worse physical 

health than those without; for example, those aged under 50 years of age are 3 times 
more likely and those aged 50-75 are 1.9 times more likely to die from coronary heart 
disease. 

 
6.3.6 Efforts to reduce premature mortality must include a strong focus on increasing the 

life expectancy of people with mental health problems. This can contribute to 
achieving a reduction in deaths across all aspects of Domain 1 (NHS Outcomes 
framework Domain 1: Preventing people from dying prematurely). 

 
6.3.7 People with mental health problems are less likely to receive interventions to address 

or prevent such behaviour.  For example people with severe mental illness appear to 
be less likely to be prescribed several common medications for physical health 
conditions (largely cardiovascular problems). 
 

6.3.8 Smoking 

• People with mental health problems smoke more than the general population.   

• Smoking is the largest cause of health inequality in people with mental disorder 
yet only a minority receives smoking cessation intervention.  

• NHS stop smoking services do not record whether someone has a mental health 
problem or is taking medication for a mental health problem, despite national 
guidance requiring up to 50% reduction in doses of some medications for mental 
health problems within 4 weeks of cessation to prevent the risk of toxicity. 

• Royal College of Physicians’ Tobacco Group will publish a report on smoking and 
mental disorder in 2013. 

 
6.3.9 Diagnostic overshadowing 

• This describes what happens when healthcare staff incorrectly attribute 
symptoms of physical health to a mental health condition.  For example people 
with diabetes who present at A&E are less likely to be admitted to hospital for 
diabetic complications if they have a mental illness. 

 
6.3.10 Major public health issues, such as cardio vascular disease, cancer and 

obesity have complex presentations, encompassing both mental and physical health 
and social care interventions must be designed to respond to this complexity.  For 
example, depression is associated with: 

Page 161



 

Page | 4 

 

• 50% increased mortality from all disease 

• Two fold increased risk of coronary heart disease and diabetes 

• Three fold increased risk of death in the subsequent 4 years. 
 
Schizophrenia is associated with: 

• A two fold increased risk of diabetes and a two to three fold increased risk of 
diabetes. 

• A two and a half times increased rate of mortality from all disease. 

• Reduced life expectancy of 20.5 years for men and 16.4 years for women. 

• Increased likelihood of death from coronary heart disease. 
 
Source: Whole person care: from rhetoric to reality – Achieving parity between mental and 
physical health, Occasional paper OP88, March 2013, Royal College of Psychiatrists 
 

7 Local Policy context 
 

7.1 The Haringey Health and Wellbeing Strategy is the Borough’s overarching plan to 
improve the health and wellbeing of children and adults in our borough and to reduce 
health inequalities between the east and west.  The strategy is informed by the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment and supported by a delivery plan. 
 

7.2 The Strategy sets out three objectives: 

• Outcome 1 - Every Child has the best start in life; 

• Outcome 2 - A reduced gap in life expectancy; and of particular reference to 
this project 

• Outcome 3 - Improved mental health and wellbeing 

“We want all residents to enjoy the best possible mental health and wellbeing and 

have a good quality of life – a greater ability to manage their own lives, stronger 

social relationships, a greater sense of purpose, the skills they need for living and 

working, improved chances in education, better employment rates and a suitable and 

stable place to live.” 

7.3 Priorities for outcome 3: 

• Promote the emotional well being of children and young people  

• Support independent living  

• Address common mental health problems among adults  

• Support people with severe and enduring mental health problems  

• Increase the number of problematic drug users in treatment 
 

8 Mental health needs assessment 
 

8.1 The Panel received a presentation by Public Health at its Panel in July 2013.  This 
presentation, ‘Mental Health and Wellbeing’ provides an overview of the demographics 
and mental health needs in the borough. 
 

8.2 The presentation can be found at Appendix A. 
 

Page 162



 

Page | 5 

 

9 Aims, objectives and outcomes from scrutiny involvement 
 
9.1 Terms of Reference: 
 
To make an assessment of the physical health interventions and advice given to people 
with mental health needs across the care pathway in order to improve their physical 
health and wellbeing. 
 
To make recommendations to improve the physical health of people with mental health 
needs in Haringey based on available evidence. 

 
9.2 Objectives 
 

• To gain an understanding of the link between physical health and mental health of 
Haringey residents. 

• To identify the barriers for access to physical health intervention and advice for 
people with mental health needs (both personally and within the care pathway). 

• To gain an understanding of the health interventions and advice available to people 
with mental health needs across the whole care pathway. 

• To gain an overview of how partners are working together in order to improve the 
physical health of people with mental health needs in the borough. 

• To ensure that a specific strand of the project focuses on BME communities. 
 
 

10 Project Plan 
 

Evidence session 1 
Aim: To gain an understanding of the physical health needs of people with mental 
health needs in Haringey. 

• What do we know about the physical health of people with mental needs in 
Haringey (in acute care and in the community)? 

 
Evidence session 2 
Aim: To gain an overview of what services are currently provided to improve the 
physical health of people with mental health needs. 

• Current public health programmes targeting people with mental health needs. 

• Current work undertaken by GPs to improve the physical health of people with 
mental health needs. 

• Current work undertaken by BEH MHT to improve the physical health of people 
with mental health needs. 

• Current work undertaken by the VCS to improve the physical health of people 
with mental health needs. 

 
Evidence session 3 
Aim:  To gain an insight into patient experiences. 

• Report back on patient survey 

• Report back on patient/carer diaries 

• VCS 
 

Page 163



 

Page | 6 

 

Evidence session 4 
Aim: to discuss and agree conclusions and recommendations. 
 

Stakeholders 

§ BEH Mental Health Trust 
§ Public Health 
§ Clinical Commissioning Group 
§ Local Pharmaceutical Committee  
§ Healthwatch Haringey 
§ Haringey Association of Voluntary and Community Organisations 
§ Mental Health Support Association 
§ Mind in Haringey 
§ Patients 
§ Polar Bear Community 
§ Haringey User Network 

 
 

 Aug. 

13 

Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. 

14 

Feb. Mar. Apr. 

Scoping          

Scoping 

agreed by 

Panel 

  

 

       

Scope agreed 

by OSC 

         

Meetings 1           

Consultation          

Reporting           

OSC          

Cabinet          

 
 
6.  Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications  

6.1 There are no finance implications arising directly out of this report.  The work to 

support it will be carried out by officers of the stakeholder budgets and all costs 

should be met from existing resources.   

7  Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications  

Page 164



 

Page | 7 

 

7.1  The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on this Report. The draft Terms of 

Reference and Objectives are within the remit of the Panel.  

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 

8.1 Overview and scrutiny has a strong community engagement role and aims to 

regularly involve local stakeholders, including residents, in its work. It seeks to do this 

through: 

§ Helping to articulate the views of members of the local community and their 
representatives on issues of local concern 

§ As a means of bringing local concerns to the attention of decision makers and 
incorporate them into policies and strategies 

§ Identified and engages with hard to reach groups 
§ Helping to develop consensus by seeking to reconcile differing views and 
developing a shared view of the way forward 

§ The evidence generated by scrutiny involvement helps to identify the kind of 
services wanted by local people 

§ It promotes openness and transparency; all meetings are held in public and 
documents are available to local people. 

 
8.2 A number of engagement processes will be used as part of the work of the Adult and 

Health Scrutiny Panel and will seek to include a broad representation from local 
stakeholders.  It is expected that any equalities issues identified within the 
consultation will be highlighted and addressed in the conclusions and 
recommendations reached by the panel.   

 

9. Head of Procurement Comments 

 Not applicable. 

10. Policy Implications  

10.1Haringey’s Corporate Plan 2013/14 - 2014/15 sets out the council’s strategic direction 

for the next two years and includes a number of outcomes being sought and the 

priorities associated with each outcome. 

10.2This project aim to contribute to  

Outcomes linked to projects 
Safety and Wellbeing for all: A place where everyone feels safe and has a good 
quality of life. 
Priority – Reduce health inequalities and improve wellbeing for all 
 
Opportunities for all: A successful place for everyone 
Priority - Ensure that everyone has a decent place to live 

 

11. Use of Appendices 

Page 165



 

Page | 8 

 

11.1 All appendices are listed at the end of the attached report. 

10.1 Appendix A – Mental Health and Wellbeing 
 

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

 

 

Page 166



MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JULY 2013 

 

 

Councillo rs Adam ou (Chair ), Bu ll, Erskine, St ennet t  and Winskill 

 

 

Co-Opt ee Pam  Mof fat  (HFOP) 

 

Apolog ies Councillo r    

 

 

 

LC1. WEBCASTING  

 

LC2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

None received. 

 

LC3. URGENT ITEMS  

 

None received. 

 

LC4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

Cllr  Winskill declared t hat  he is current ly using t he services o f  Whit t ingt on 

Healt h . 

 

LC5. DEPUTATIONS/ PETITIONS/ PRESENTATIONS/ QUESTIONS  

 

None received. 

 

LC6. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE PANEL  

 

Not ed. 

 

LC7. BEH CLINICAL STRATEGY - BOROUGH UPDATE  

 

The panel received a present at ion on t he BEH Clin ical st rat egy. 

 

Key points noted: 

• The strategy makes changes to maternity services and A&E. 

• The drivers for change are patient safety and quality standards. 

• Chase Farm isn’t closing, it is changing. 

• The programme is on track. 

• The North Middlesex Hospital is growing and needs to recruit about 400 
members of staff for the changes to go ahead, this is in progress. 

• Barnet and Chase staff have been consulted and staff are currently being told 
the outcome of this consultation. 

• Key aspects of the programme are consulting and engaging people about the 
changes. 

Agenda Item 15Page 167



MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JULY 2013 
 

 

• The North Middlesex Labour Ward currently has 60 hrs consultant cover per 
week.  Under changes this will increase to 90 hours per week. 

• Midwives to patients ration is also improving. 
 

In response to questions by the Panel it was noted: 

• There is a directive from the Secretary of State to make the changes in the 
BEH Clinical Strategy. 

• Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) will meet in September to make a 
judgement on when these changes will take place. 

• The programme is currently working towards the changes taking place in 
November. 

• The CCG decision in September will be based on clinical safety. 

• If the changes do not go ahead it would have a significant impact on Haringey 
residents. 

• The Royal Free Hospital is keen for the changes to go ahead. 

• There is a potential legal challenge from Enfield Council with regards to the 
changes going ahead,  and work is being done by the BEH clinical strategy 
team around this.  The legal challenge is based on access to primary care. 

• The recruitment and workforce changes need to be in place to ensure the 
changes to services are successful and go ahead. 

• There is a Quality and Safety Scorecard which is monitored regularly. 

• NHS England are due to visit both sites. 
 

The Panel was invited to visit the North Middlesex Hospital to see the how the 
buildings works are being developed and accepted the invitation. 

 
Agreed: 

• The Panel would visit North Middlesex Hospital. 

• The Panel supports the BEH Clinical strategy changes going ahead. 
 
 

 

LC8. MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING  

 

The Panel received a present at ion (as at t ached). 

 

Key po in t s not ed: 

• 48% of Employment and Support allowance claimants whose condition is 
“mental and behavioural disorders”. 

• There is an improving picture around independent living. 

• Suicide rates are higher than the national average and are higher in the East of 
the Borough. 

• Suicide rates are also higher in men aged between 25-44 years of age. 

• There are high rates of mental health needs in Haringey. 

• The No Health without Mental Health strategy and the New Economic 
Foundation both say that prevention is key. 

• Population approach to mental health – there is a need to focus on the 11% 
classed as ‘languishing’ and move to ‘good mental health’.  This means those 
with symptoms which are not diagnosed. 

• Life course events are important. 

Page 168



MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JULY 2013 
 

 

• Factors which impacts/influences a child’s mental health: 
o Family environment 
o Disability 
o Adults in employment 
o Involvement in the criminal justice system 

• We rely on national research and prevalence data to estimate local needs. 

• Looked After Children in Haringey are one of the best nationally for good 
wellbeing. 

• A longitudinal study in New Zealand (over 20 years) showed that those with 
mental health needs are three times as likely to commit suicide. 

• There is a higher number of boys with autism in the East of Haringey and a 
difference between prevalence and referral rates.  This needs to be looked at in 
more detail to understand the reasons behind this.  

• Adults are more likely to have mental health needs if they are living alone. 

• Homelessness is also a risk factor, and you are also more likely to be homeless 
if you have mental health needs. 

• Women are more likely to access IAPT (Improving Access to Psychological 
Therapies).  This is linked to ‘health seeking behaviour’ rather than prevalence. 

o IAPT has employed staff from a range of communities to attempt to 
increase uptake across the borough. 

• People with mental health needs are being placed within the borough, and 
subsequently need services. 

• Haringey is in the top 3 in London for rate of psychosis. 

• It is estimated that only about 50% of people with dementia in the borough are 
diagnosed. 

 

In  response t o  quest ions f rom  t he Panel it  w as not ed: 

• The higher incidence of autism in the East of the borough doesn’t necessarily 
mean there is a higher autism rate, just that they are more likely to be 
diagnosed and receive support. 

o It is difficult to say what the true prevalence is as evidence is not there to 
support it.  

• Diagnosis of depression is by GP surgery, not by a person’s postcode. 

• GP Practice size will have an impact on figures. 

• Data suggests that you are more likely to develop mental health needs if you 
live with someone who has mental health needs themselves. 

• People with mental health needs are more likely to die on average ten years 
earlier than average. 

• Getting a person reconnected to power can take weeks, this has an impact on 
a person being discharged from acute care. 

• There is a need to improve access to other accommodation so that people are 
not unnecessarily in expensive acute beds. 

• What does the community think they need in terms of mental health services?  
For example in relation to housing.  This would include asking patients and 
carers as well as the wider community - Dr Djuretic noted that it would be a 
useful aspect for the panel to consider. 

 

 

 

LC9. MENTAL HEALTH PROJECT SCOPING  

Page 169



MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JULY 2013 
 

 

 

The Panel agreed t o undert ake t w o pro ject s focusing on m ent al healt h : 
1. Access to accommodation for people with mental health needs, including on 

discharge from acute care. 
2. The link between physical health and mental health. 

 

It  w as agreed t hat  bot h  o f  t hese pro ject s w ould have a specif ic BME st rand 

t o  t hem . 

 

ACTION: 

Panel Mem bers w ould  send any specif ic ob ject ives or  areas t hey w ould  like 

included in  t he scope t o  t he Scrut iny Of f icer . 

 

LC10. WHITTINGTON HEALTH - TRANSFORMING HEALTHCARE FOR TOMORROW  

 

 

Key po in t s not ed: 

• The Whittington Health Clinical Strategy is the main driver to changes, with 
other strategies following this. 

• Integrated care is a way of thinking for example Enhanced Recovery 
o Systematic with patient at the centre. 
o Getting people up and about quickly. 
o Multi-disciplinary case conferences. 

• Ambulatory care is about keeping people moving/walking and not in beds for 
long periods of time. 

• Aim to make decisions on care needs faster so that patients aren’t admitted just 
because the decision maker isn’t available at the time. 

• If you lie down for long periods of time your fitness deteriorates very quickly. 

• Maternity - The aim is to have 4,700 births per year. 

• Bed numbers - Any reduction in bed numbers will only take place if there is a 
reduction in activity.   

o Best estimate is that the number of beds will be stable for at least the 
next 18 months. 

• Whittington Health recognise that they upset the community in the way that 
they consulted previously. 

• Following the listening exercise changes have been made to the Estates 
Strategy. 

 

In  response t o  quest ions f rom  t he Panel it  w as not ed: 

• When NHS organisations became Trusts they could not take any surplus 
properties with them.  Any surplus properties were taken back to the Secretary 
of State. 

• There is an ongoing discussion with Haringey on integrated care and pooled 
budgets. 

o There is a Transformation Board which has member of the CCG and 
Whittington Health on it.  The Council is due to be invited onto this. 

• The Panel asked whether they would be able to see notes of these meetings 
and was informed that these would be send. 

 

Page 170



MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JULY 2013 
 

 

Cllr  Adam ou not ed t hat  she is happy t hat  t here is no cap on m at ern it y and 

raised concerns about  ensur ing t hat  o lder  people are not  m oved out  o f  

hosp it al t oo soon. 

 

Action 

• Dr Battle to send notes of the Transformation Board to the Panel. 

 

 

The Chair  t hanked represent at ives for  her  recent  visit  t o  t he Whit t ingt on 

Hospit al sit e w hich she found very usefu l. 

 

LC11. WORK PROGRAMME 2013/ 14  

 

The Panel quer ied how  t heir  ro le f it s w it h  pr ivat e resident ial hom es. 

 

The Panel felt  t hat  m ore in form at ion w as needed on t he Corporat e p lan 

for  exam ple: 

• What is the background and context? 

• Where have the priorities come from? 

• What consultation took place? 

• What are the current performance figures in relation to the targets? 

 

 

AGREED: 

• The Corporate Plan would form an agenda item on the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee work plan. 

• Cllr Winskill would be invited to informal meetings between the Chair of the 
Panel and Healthwatch Haringey. 

 

ACTIONS: 

• Scrutiny Officer to check scrutiny’s role in relation to private residential homes. 

 

LC12. MINUTES  

 

The Panel quer ied w hen t he t rain ing m ent ioned by t he Cabinet  Mem ber on 

t he Healt h  and Wellbeing Board w ould  be t aking p lace. 

 

The m inut es w ere agreed. 

 

ACTION: 

• Scrutiny Officer to follow up when the Member training will be on the Health 
and Wellbeing Board. 

 

LC13. JHOSC MINUTES  

 

Cllr  Bu ll invit ed t he Panel t o  t he for t hcom ing 111 call cent re visit . 

 

Minut es w ere not ed for  in form at ion. 

 

Page 171



MINUTES OF THE ADULTS AND HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JULY 2013 
 

 

LC14. LGG TRAINING SLIDES - 'THE NEW HEALTH LANDSCAPE'  

 

Not ed. 

 

LC15. FEEDBACK FROM AREA CHAIRS  

 

None received. 

 

LC16. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 

None received. 

 

LC17. DATE OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 

Not ed. 

 

 

Cllr Gina Adamou 

 

Chair 

 

 

Page 172


	Agenda
	5 Health Assessments of Looked After Children
	RHA Quality Audit 2012

	7 Budget Monitoring
	Adults and Health Scrutiny Report v2 (2)

	8 End of Year Performance monitoring
	Performance appendices

	9 Response to Winterbourne View
	Appendix 1 Work Plan-Winterborne View Action plan 18.06.13
	Appendix 2 Stocktake_Winterbourne_View_Joint_Improvement_Programme 18.06.13
	Appendix 3 Progress of Reviews and Estimated Discharge Dates 18.06.13

	11 Scoping report - mental health and accommodation
	Appendix A - Mental health and wellbeing

	12 Scoping report - mental health and physical health
	15 Minutes of last meeting

